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June 7, 2019

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council, and Residents of the
City of Homestead.

State law requires that all general purpose local governments publish, within nine
months of the close of each fiscal year, a complete set of financial statements
presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
government auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants.
Pursuant to that requirement, the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR) of the City of Homestead for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018 is
hereby transmitted.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of
the City of Homestead. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility
for the completeness and reliability of all of the information presented in this
report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, the
management of the City of Homestead has established a comprehensive internal
control framework that is designed both to protect the government’s assets from
loss, theft, or misuse, and to compile sufficient reliable information for the
preparation of the City of Homestead’s financial statements in conformity with
GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh the benefits,
the City of Homestead’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been
designed to provide reasonable, rather than absolute assurance that the financial
statements will be free from material misstatement. As such, management
asserts that this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects to
the best of managements’ knowledge and belief.

Marcum LLP, a licensed, certified public accounting firm has audited the City of
Homestead’s financial statements. The goal of the independent audit was to
provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City of
Homestead for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, are free of material
misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The
independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable
basis for rendering an unmodified opinion that the City of Homestead’s financial
statements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, are fairly presented in
conformity with GAAP. The independent auditors’ report is presented as the
first component of the financial section of this report.
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Ths independent audit of the financial statements of the City of Homestead was part of a broader, federaily
mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of Federal grantor agencies. The standards
governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair
presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government’s internal controls and
compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements
involving the administration of Federal and State of Florida awards. This reporting is available in the City of
Homestead’s Reporting Section issued as part of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. The entire
report is available on the City’s website at www.cityofhomestead.com.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the
baslc financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of
transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City of
Homestead’s MD&A can be found immediately following the independent auditors’ report.

'+ %le of the Government

The City of Homestead was incorporated in 1913, making the second oldest city in Miami-Dade County. The
City is located in the southern part of Florida, and currently occupies a land area of 16 square miles and serves
a population of approximately 73,800. The City of Homestead is empowered to levy a property tax on both
real and personal properties located within its boundaries. It is also empowered by state statute to extend its
corporate limits by annexation, with concurrent approval from Miami-Dade County, which occurs
periodically when recommended by the City Manager and approved by the City Council.

The City of Homestead operates under the Council-Manager form of government. Policy-making and
legislative authority are vested in a governing council consisting of the Mayor and six other members. The
Cauncil is elected on a non-partisan basis. Council members serve staggered four year terms, and although
the council seats include a geographical residency requirement for a specific area of the City, the Council
members are elected at-large. The Mayor is elected to serve a two-year term and is elected at-large. The City
Council is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing
conimittees and boards, and hiring the City Manager, City Clerk, City Attorney and Council Auditor (a.k.a.
“Internal Auditor”). The City Manager is responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the City
Council, overseeing the day-to-day operations of the City, and appointing the heads of the various
departments.

Th» City of Homestead provides its residents with a full range of services, including general government,
jiotive protection, public works and street maintenance, parks and recreational activities, planning and zoning
regulation, community development, and utilities, including electric, sanitation, stormwater, and water and
sewer. Most recently, the City is providing local trolley services. Fire protection is provided by Miami-Dade
County.

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with GAAP, which establishes standards for defining
and reporting on the financial reporting entity. The financial reporting entity consists of the primary
government, organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable and other
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such
that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The
accompanying financial statements present the City and its component units, entities for which the City is
considered to be financially accountable. The City is considered financially accountable if it appoints a voting
majority of an organization’s governing body and is either able to impose it’s will on that organization, or has
a linancial benefit/burden relationship with the organization. Blended component units, although legally
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sopirate entities, are, in substance, part of the government’s operations. Other than the operations of the
primary government, the accompanying statements include the Homestead Community Redevelopment
Agency (CRA), and the Homestead Station QALICB as a blended components.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City’s financial planning and control. All departments of
thie Cily of Homestead are required to submit requests for appropriation to the City Manager each year. The
City Manager uses these requests as the starting point for developing a proposed budget. The City Manager
then presents this proposed budget to Council for review. The Council is required to hold two public hearings
on the proposed budget and to adopt a final budget no later than September 30, the close of the City’s fiscal
year. The appropriated budget is prepared by fund (e.g., general fund), department (e.g., police), and division
(e.g., community service). No department may legally expend in excess of amounts appropriated for that
department within an individual fund. Department heads may make transfers of appropriations within a
department. However, transfers of appropriations between departments require the approval of the City
Council. The level of budgetary control (i.e., the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the
appropriated amount) is at the fund level, except for the General Fund which is at the department level. The
City adopts an annual budget for all its funds except the Sundries Grant Fund, the Community Development
Block Grant Fund, and its fiduciary funds. The City also maintains an encumbrance accounting system for
budgetary control. Unencumbered appropriations in the annual operating budget will lapse at the end of the
fiseal year. Unencumbered appropriations for capital items are evaluated on a case by case basis. Budget-to-
actual comparisons are provided for the general, special revenue and capital project funds. These
comparisons are presented on pages 133-137 as part of the basic financial statements and on pages 147 and
154-159 as part of the combining fund statements for the governmental funds.

Local Economy

Unhl the last quarter of 2008, the City of Homestead had experienced unprecedented economic growth in
commercial and residential development. The City’s population nearly doubled between 2004 and 2008.
With the downturn in the housing market and the malaise in the general economy, the growth rate had
declined considerably in 2009 and 2010. By 2011, the growth rate had rebounded, and the City’s population
reached 61,503, and in 2018 it is estimated at 73,800.

Under Florida’s Constitution, residential properties are owner-occupied and have a homestead exemption
limited to the Consumer Price Index increase or 3% whichever is less. The effect of this limitation burdens
the City’s tax base by exempting from taxation large portions of residential property value. The City has the
ability to tax property up to 10 mills, or $1 for each $1,000 of taxable value. It is not anticipated the City will
reach the tax rate cap anytime soon. In January 2008, Amendment One to the State Constitution, also known
as “Portability of Save Our Homes”, was passed through a statewide referendum. This amendment provided
an additional $25,000 homestead exemption, a $25,000 tax exemption for tangible personal property, and
poitability whenever the property is sold. The new exemption negatively impacts the City by reducing its
pruperty tax base. Moreover, effective with the City’s FY 2008 budget, the Florida Legislature has modified
its roll-back requirement. This change will require the City to “roll-back” its tax rate each year to a rate that
will produce the same property tax revenue as for the prior year plus the change in per capita personal
income. The City Council can vote with a super majority to increase that amount, but ultimately the
legislation will limit the ability of the City to increase its revenues from property taxes.

The impact of the economic decline on the real estate market resulted in a decline of the City’s property
valies: between 2009 and 2014, property values had declined by over 51% for a total decline of $2.0 billion.
Afler years of declining property values, values indicate that the bottom of the market may have been reached
as values begin to show signs of a recovery. For FY 2019 the City’s assessed valuation is estimated at $2.857
billion, representing a 9.54% increase from the prior year. Despite the multi-year decrease in property values,
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the City has maintained its commitment to provide a high level of municipal services while maintaining or
reducing its property tax operating millage rate. Between 2010 and 2012 the rate was maintained at 6.2917
mnills, reducing it in 2013 to 6.2435 mills, and then again to 5.9215 mills for 2014 through 2018. For FY 2019,
the City is again maintaining the rate at 59215 mills. The debt millage rate was reduced from .5575 to .5300
mills in FY 2019. The City has been able to manage the economic downturn, and the road ahead looks very
promising. However, we must remain cautious but diligent in our efforts to prioritize projects, identify
funding, and manage our personnel costs in an effort to avoid returning to a dependency on budget
stabilization support received from our utilities, and the use of reserves.

Hotnestead Hospital, built in 2007, remains the largest employer in the City. The 307,000 square-foot
hospital is located on a 60-acre site just east of the Florida Turnpike on the north side of Campbell Drive. The
$135 million facility is the first new hospital to be built in Miami-Dade County in more than 30 years, and is
three times the size of the old hospital. It includes a medical office building, 150 private patient rooms, an
emgrgency room twice the size of the one at the old facility, ample clinical space for outpatient diagnostic
serylees and tninimally invasive surgery.

The City owns the Homestead-Miami Speedway, a world-class motorsports facility featuring a state-of-the-art
1.5-mile variable banked oval and a 2.3-mile road course. The Homestead-Miami Speedway hosts many of
the premier North American motorsports championships. These major spectator events attract tourists from all
over the world and stimulate not only the City economy, but the Miami-Dade County economy as well.

Another integral part of the Homestead community is the Homestead Air Reserve Base which is maintained
and operated by the 482nd Fighter Wing, a fully combat-ready unit capable of providing F-16C Fighting
Falcon fighter aircraft, along with mission ready pilots and support personnel for short-notice worldwide
deployment. The base’s economic impact on South Miami-Dade County is estimated at approximately over
$313 million per year. In addition, the 482nd Fighter Wing supports several “tenant units” on Homestead Air
Reserve Base. A Florida Air National Guard Detachment from the [25th Fighter Wing, Jacksonville, Fla.,
operates the North American Aerospace Defense Command (NORAD) alert facility providing F-15 fighter
jets capable of intercepting, identifying, and if necessary, destroying unknown aircraft that penetrate U.S.
airspace. Other tenant units include the U.S. Coast Guard's Maritime Safety and Security Team Miami; and
the U.S. Special Operations Command South — a subordinate command of U.S. Southern Command located
in the City of Doral, Florida.

In addition to all the public schools operated by the Miami-Dade County School Board, the City has several
private parochial schools, charter schools and a recently opened Medical Academy for Science and
Technnlogy (MAST). Founded in 2010, MAST has established its place by achieving notable national
recognition as a Merit School of Excellence from Magnet Schools of America for several years running.
Miami-Dade College’s Homestead Campus provides higher education opportunities to residents in the area.
Offering associate in arts degrees, associate in science degrees and vocational and college credit certificates
programs, Homestead Campus is home to hundreds of educational options that include in-demand fields, such
as nursing, aviation, education and more. For Homestead citizens seeking higher education beyond the limits
of Miami-Dade College, Florida International University, a member of the State University System and the
largest public university in South Florida is located 20 miles from the City. There are also several private
colleges and universities located in the area including the University of Miami and Barry University.
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In the past couple of years, the City has continued its progress on the revitalization of its downtown with the
completion of several significant projects that represent a $49.5 million investment in its downtown area in an
effot to attract private investors, and stimulate the local economy. The projects include the following:

¢ A New City Hall ($26.5 million; groundbreaking was held on August 2014 and construction was
completed in April 2016; a grand opening was held in April 2016 welcoming residents and businesses
on a grand tour of the new facility).

e A New Police Building ($18 million; groundbreaking was held on September 29, 2015, and
construction was completed in February 2017; a grand opening was held on February 25, 2017
inviting all to tour the facility and meet and greet with police staff).

e Refurbished the Seminole Theatre into a Community Cultural Arts Center ($5 million; a soft opening
was held in October 2015, with a Gala Grand Opening held in December 2015). Since reopening, it
has been the host to many events and performances.

For FY 2019, the City will continue focusing on the following projects that represent another $65.2 million
investment in its downtown:

o  Homestead Station: A Multimodal Transit Station (estimated at $33.3 million). In March 2017, the
City Council approved a development agreement for the construction of a project that will include a
seven-story parking garage with at least 1,038 parking spaces, and 30,500 square feet of street-level
retail liner (“the public facility”’). The agreement also provides for the simultaneous construction of a
65,000 square foot multilevel structure that will house a 10-screen movie theater, 14 bowling lanes,
video arcade, food service and restrooms (“the private facility”). The public facility project will be
primarily funded with transportation surtax monies (through a bond issue, and currently available
surtax monies on hand), while the private facility will be privately funded by the developer. During
2018, the City successfully closed on a New Market Tax Credit (“NMTC”) transaction that generated
additional funding towards this project. The project will serve not only a public purpose, but it is
expected to provide a fiscal and economic benefit to the City. Construction is underway with an
expected opening in October 2019.

e  Homestead Cybrary (estimated at $36 million), that will provide for a new state-of-the-art facility in
the downtown area. Primary funding for the project is from a HUD loan, to be repaid from the City’s
annual CDBG Entitlement allocation. Additional funding will be needed from the CRA, grants,
available funds on hand, and other financing sources that could include funding through a NMTC
transaction. Funding from private investors is expected to be $18 million.

o Losner Park Expansion (estimated at $15 million; currently in the design phase of the project and
being funded with parks and recreation impact fees; grants and other financing sources will also be
sought for the development of the project).

Other future projects could include an Iconic Tourist Attraction (estimated at $30 million, but with no cost to
the City; a proposal is currently under consideration).

The City has been given the distinguished designation of Gateway to the Everglades & Biscayne National
Parks. As a result of this designation, the City has expanded its Trolley service to provide transportation and
entry to the Everglades and Biscayne National Parks. The initial reaction has surpassed expectations, with
hundreds of people participating in the weekend services. Participants include locals as well as out-of-
towners, which get an opportunity to visit Homestead.

long-Term Financial Planning

At fiscal year end, the City’s general fund balance remains adequate to buffer additional severe economic
blows without being excessive. The City is committed to a sound fiscal policy; it is maintaining financial
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stability with fiscal management controls by constantly reviewing and monitoring staff levels, and by
coinparing budget appropriations to actual expenditures, and estimated revenues to actual revenues.

Financial planning continues to be of significant importance to the City as we meet the challenges of the
imiediate and foreseeable future. Major projects undertaken by the City have long term financial
implications for existing as well as future resources. The planning and decisions undertaken by the City are
also weighed in the context of the financial burden that will be placed on both current and prospective
residents, as well as the potential economic and environmental impacts. As the City grows and develops, the
long-term strategy has to be targeted on the health, welfare, safety and quality of life of our residents,
balanced against the fiscal health of the City.

The City’s primary focus related to economic growth is the sale or lease of existing assets, the expansion of
transportatioh systems, and the enhancement of residential and commercial values through revitalization of
the downtown and southwest sections of the City.

In May 2014 the City voters approved a $26 million bond referendum. On September 11, 2014, the City
issued $26 million in general obligation bonds: $21 million in bond proceeds were used to fund the
construction of a new police building ($18 million), and to refurbish and renovate an existing facility into a
temporary site for police operations ($3 million). The old police building was built in 1910, but was found to
be unsafe; the remaining $5 million was used to renovate the historical Seminole Theatre transforming it into
a Community Cultural Arts Center. The New Police Building was completed in 2017, and the Seminole
Theatre reopened in 2015. The repayment of the bonds is funded through increased property tax revenues
through the implementation of a debt millage rate of 0.5575 mills for FY 2018.

In 2016, the City completed the construction of a New City Hall located in the downtown area. The project’s
construction cost was $26.5 million, and the building was completed on time and under budget in April 2016.
The project was funded from $16.6 million available in funds set aside for this project; the funds were
realized from the sale of the Park of Commerce parcels several years ago. The gap between the project cost
and the available funds was made possible through a $10 million line of credit that was converted to a bank
loan in August 2016. The City has always considered that the sale of the old City Hall site would generate the
ultimate gap financing for the project.

The New City Hall, the New Police Building, and the Seminole Theatre are all located in the City’s
downtown.

The City has approved a development agreement for the construction of a parking garage with a retail liner
(Homestead Station: a multimodal transit center), and the simultaneous construction of a family entertainment
center at the site of the old police station in the heart of the downtown. The cost of this endeavor is $33.3
million, and is funded with transportation surtax monies (including a bond issue being repaid primarily with
transportation surtax monies). Groundbreaking on the project (Homestead Station) began in May 2018,

Recently, the City approved a construction contract for the Cybrary project for the shell and outer core of the
facility. Additional agreements are also in negotiations for the furnishing and technological aspects of the
project, as well as an operating management agreement. The City continues to work with the County in an
effort to access and reprogram the property taxes paid to the County’s library special taxing district, as a
revenue source for the Cybrary’s operations. The cost of the project is currently estimated at $36 million,
City funding of $18 million includes a $3.85 million HUD Section 108 Loan (to be repaid from CDBG annual
entitlement funds), additional CDBG funds, funds on hand from the sale of an old bowling alley parcel, CRA
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funding, grants, and other financing sources that could include NMTC transactions and equity from private
investors. Funding from private investors is estimated at another $18 million.

In uddition to these projects, the City’s 5-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) identifies over $33.7 million
in projects to be undertaken in FY 2019- FY 2023, and funded by various sources.

Over the past few years, the City has developed the budget in such a way as to eventually reach an unassigned
General Fund balance at September 30, 2018 of $9,659,840 or 20% of General Fund expenditures. This
ensures that the City will have sufficient funds for future unexpected events. The City continues to exercise
cost stabilization measures, and seeks additional sources of recurring revenues whenever the opportunities
arise.

Relevant Financial Policies

Over the past several years, the State of Florida has passed statutory legislation regarding the manner in which
local governments may assess ad valorem taxes along with special voting requirements. Among the
provisions of the legislation are special tax exemptions and maximum millage rate calculations based on the
state’s rate of growth. Further impairment of tax proceeds occurred with the housing crisis when the assessed
value of property located within the City had declined from a peak of nearly $4 billion at January 1, 2008 to
just $2.857 billion by the valuation date of January 1, 2018.

In response to the City’s commitment to long-term sustainability, an ordinance was adopted beginning with
fiscal year 2005 which requires a fund balance commitment equal to 10% of general fund budgeted revenues.
These financial statements reflect this required reserve in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet.

The City maintains an investment policy with the primary focus of capital protection while seeking
investment earnings and providing for daily cash requirements. The City’s investment portfolio at September
30, 2018 was $37.6 million excluding investments of the fiduciary funds, and invested proceeds from a bond
issue.

The City of Homestead has a combination of insurance policies and self-insured programs to address the
City’s risks as a municipality. The City is self-insured for public liability and workers’ compensation.
Insurance policies have been purchased to cover employee health insurance, damage to City property,
including windstorm and acts of terrorism.

Major Initiatives

With the population growth, there is a growing demand for access to entertainment and recreational activities,
quality health care and educational opportunities. There are several projects and endeavors underway or
recently completed to provide citizens with the means to fulfill these needs within the City’s limits or just a
short ride away. The expansion of the South Miami-Dade County Busway was completed during 2008 and
provides the citizens of Homestead improved access to other areas in the county north of the City via a
connection to Metrorail. Conversely, it makes the City of Homestead more accessible to other residents of
Miami-Dade County.

The City-Wide Transportation and Transit Master Plan serves to create a vision for the development of the
roadway, pedestrian, bicycle and transit infrastructure in the City of Homestead to provide safe and efficient
mobility within the City . The plan establishes parameters that provide guidance for all privately funded
development within the City limits. The plan also sets priorities and timeframes for completion of several
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projects to build and improve roadways and right-of-ways. During 2018, projects completed by the streets
division included:
e 7,479 square yards of asphalt repair/replaced
1.3 miles of street repaved
812 pot holes and 130 trash holes filled/repair
11,290 square feet of sidewalk repair/installed
245 linear feet of curb and gutter were installed
I | handicap pedestrian ramps were repaired/installed

Existing plans include the construction of Homestead Station in the downtown area. The facility would serve
as a transportation hub where one can park and either take a trolley to nearby locations, or ride the busway to
other parts of South Florida. The City is also considering funding the relocation of two bus shelters bringing
them closer to the City’s new facility.

Homestead has been designated the Gateway to Everglades & Biscayne National Parks, and to many it is also
known as the gateway to the Florida Keys. The City provides a free guided trolley ride from Historic
Downtown Homestead to the Everglades and Biscayne National Parks, allowing residents, neighbors, and
visitors to explore the parks. This ground-breaking project is the first of its kind to offer public transportation
to two national parks. It is an expansion of the City’s already successful local trolley service that experienced
the following ridership in 2018:

e 61,609 riders on its downtown route

e 66,131 riders on its East/West route

e 5,116 riders on the National Park program

The City has continued its commitment to providing safe, attractive and enjoyable park facilities for its
citizens to engage in active and passive recreational pursuits by implementing the City’s Parks Master Plan.
During 2018, the Parks Department completed the enhanced lighting at the Harris Field baseball fields,
installed upgraded gym equipment at the Homestead Community Center and continued to move forward
certain elements of the Losner Park expansion project.

During 2018, one of the major projects underway in the CRA is the redevelopment of Historic Downtown
Homestead. Homestead Historic Downtown is listed on the National Register of Historic Places, and once
served as the city center of the Homestead community. The CRA is committed to bringing back the energy,
activity, development and prosperity of the downtown’s early life, and is working to bring catalytic projects to
the area. The three major projects in the Downtown that the CRA is heavily involved in are: the Homestead
Station, a multimodal transit center, the Homestead Cybrary, a 22nd century library that merges modern
technology with traditional library services, and the Losner Park Expansion that will transform a quaint
pocket park into a world-class destination. In the planning phase of these projects, the CRA has completed
cost studies, renderings and conceptual design for these projects. During 2018, the CRA Director along with
other City staff attended the RECON event in Las Vegas, NV. Attendance at this conference gives the CRA
the opportunity to build a network of potential investors and retailers interested in the area. The conference
has led to a marked increase in interest and development in the CRA as a direct result of recruitment efforts at
this conference. As part of Special Events sponsorship, once again the CRA joined the City of Homestead in
honoring our troops partnering for the seventh annual Homestead Military Appreciation Day. The event gave
citizens the opportunity to express appreciation to men and women from all military branches that put their
lives on the line for our country. Downtown Homestead hosted military displays, an obstacle course
competition, and an all day party with live music and food trucks. The CRA also sponsored the 34" Annual
Martin Luther King, Jr. celebrations which included a traditional parade, and it also continued with its annual
unique display of Christmas lights and decorations along SW 4™ Avenue.
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In addition to these projects, the CRA provided grant funding as follows:
¢ Six commercial enhancement grants were awarded to local businesses located in the CRA
district.
e $150,000 in total funding assistance to six Not-for-Profit organizations.
e The CRA supported Homestead’s local theater through its not-for-profit grant program.
Two performances were provided for free to not-for-profit organizations from the area as
part of their Summer Programs which were funded in part by the CRA.
e One grant was awarded to fix a roof and install hurricane shutters through the residential
home improvement grants, partially funded with Community Development Block Grant
(CDBG) monies.
Funding for the CRA is expected to continue from the Tax Increment Funds provided by the City and Miami-
Dade County.

In FY 2018, the Development Services Department welcomed and supported many new and expanding
businesses. The Business Services Division licensed over 2,000 businesses including over 300 businesses
that were new to the City of Homestead. The Division also provided consultation associated to process and
procedures for opening a business, to an approximate 1,703 walk-in customers. The Planning and Zoning
Division guided new businesses and developments through the review and approval process effectively and
efficiently. During 2018, it administered 90 public hearing applications and numerous administrative
applications, issued 40 zoning letters to customers and completed hundreds of zoning inquiries. The Building
Safety Division provided support to residential and commercial customers. In FY 2018, the Division
processed approximately 6,239 permits, reviewed 8,051 construction plans, conducted 24,999 inspections,
and issued 302 Certificates of Occupancy. The Division also processed 40/10 year structural and electrical
certifications for 70 existing commercial buildings. Assistance was provided to 13,526 walk-in customers at
the Permit Service Center. The Department continues to review and refine aspects of the City's Land
Development Code, and to assure that regulations are responsive to the current development climate of the
community.

The Police Department accomplished a number of projects and initiatives during 2018. Highlights of these
accomplishments included:
Administrative Division:

* Processed 17,069 incident/offense reports and crash reports

¢ Purchase and implementation of dual band radios

e Continued efforts on court overtime reduction program, and successfully reduced overtime

for pre-file affidavits and juvenile court trials.
e Promotions included | Captain, 1 Lieutenant, and 2 Sergeants
¢ Added new and updated several standard operating procedures
Community Services Division:
Processed 148 firearms impounded through ATF E-trace.
Received and processed 2,731 pieces of evidence.
Processed 14,442 reports
Police Athletic League (PAL) has continued with youth programming,.
PAL held basketball skills and drills training for youth ages 6-14 old.
Attended an educational leadership trip to Atlanta, GA with 8 Police Explorers.
Police Explorers participated in a college tour of four major Florida universities
Police Explorers; the Explorer Academy graduated 25 cadets
Community Policing Program
o Participated in 33 community events
o Attended 43 community meetings

Six -
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o Attended 81 presentations
o Participated in 41 saturation details
Special Patrol Division:
e 1,232 total crash investigations
e 7,506 citations and made 227 arrests
Investigative Services Division:

e SIU: the unit’s proactive and aggressive policing of the street level narcotics problem has
resulted in arrests that have forced street level dealers to move out of the City. During 2018,
detectives made 183 drug-related arrests.

e  GIU: received 14,442 reports/cases from Patrol, with 2,767 cases assigned to detectives and
425 cases cleared by arrest

Operations Division:

¢ Responded to approximately 112,198 calls for service
6 reserve officers were hired, bringing the total reserve officers to 25
Numerous officers successfully completed various forms of training
2,851 new cases were processed
59 code liens were recorded

Additionally, the Police Department continued to provide needed social services to the community through
the Start Off Smart (SOS) Program. Throughout the years, SOS has been successful in obtaining various
forms of funding for various programs that serve children and families. In 2018, some of the services
provided through SOS on an annual basis include the following:
e SOS provides food, clothing, bus passes, and furniture to struggling, low income families
in the community.
e SOS annually provides support to over 1,600 families.
e Continued assistance is provided to domestic violence victims in the form of restraining
orders for protection, re-location and financial assistance.
Other projects and events undertaken through the Police Department included the following:
e SOS, the EDGE Foundation, the City of Homestead, and the Community Policing Unit
along with several local partners provided a fun day and toys to over 1,500 children.

Reaching a population of 50,000 in 2007 was a milestone that affords the City automatic appointment to the
Board of the Metropolitan Planning Organization for the Miami Urbanized Area, (MPO). The MPO is
responsible for guiding the transportation planning process and approving transportation projects for Miami-
Dade County. The achievement also entitles the City to the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)
Entitlement Program. The CDBG Program is administered under the Finance Department. This funding
source has provided the City over $7.7 million between 2009 and 2018. Funding has provided assistance to
not-for-profit organizations, and funded several City facility improvements that have benefited low income
communities as well as stormwater, and wastewater infrastructure projects. The most significant CDBG
project undertaken by the City was the construction of Wittkop Park. The project consisted of the installation
of basketball courts, bathrooms, playground equipment, as well as trees and landscaping. The park opened in
FY 2012. In 2013, the City was able to expand its assistance to non-for-profit agencies by providing public
service grants. To date, 14 non-profit agencies have been funded which have introduced various programs in
the community that have benefited low-income families. The projects ranged from emergency preparedness
for senior citizens to swimming programs for children with disabilities. In 2014, the City once again
expanded its services to the community by providing Housing Rehabilitation grant to low-income families.
Grants of up to $15,000 were made available to eligible low-income homeowners for home improvements.
Over $400,000 has been allocated towards this effort from its inception. The City expects to rehabilitate a
total of 19 homes by the end of fiscal year 2019.
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The Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP) was established for the purpose of stabilizing communities
that have suffered from foreclosures and abandonment. Through the purchase and redevelopment of
foreclosed and abandoned homes, the goal of the program is being realized. The City used approximately
$2.6 million of the funds awarded through the program to purchase 15 foreclosed/abandoned homes and
established financing mechanisms for potential homebuyers. Ten of the fifteen homes were sold to low
income individuals and families. The five remaining homes that were previously deeded to a local not-for-
profit organization were returned to the City and will be rehabilitated and sold to very low-income families by
providing subsidies to eligible applicants. This program is also administered through the Finance
Department.

In addition to the aforementioned programs administered by the Finance Department, the department received
the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for its FY
2018 Budget, and the Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting for its FY 2017 Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR). Throughout the year, the department participates in several seminars and webinars
to insure staff is educated on the latest reporting requirements, and that anyone who is certified is able to
maintain their required continuing professional education credits. Cross-training of staff is an ongoing process
throughout the year, and serves to make the department more efficient. During 2017, the Finance Department
was instrumental in the City’s ability to issue the $31.4 million Taxable Transportation System Revenue
Bonds, Series 2017 to partially fund the construction of a parking garage/retail facility as part of the
Homestead Station project.

During the year, the Electric Utility installed 342 new residential services, and 11 new commercial
businesses. It installed or relocated over two miles of underground cable, it repaired 352 street lights, it
constructed a back-up electrical control center to handle electrical control of the City should a catastrophic
event take out the main control center, it purchased a new motor control center to upgrade the city’s largest
engine-generator sets (Unit #21), replaced and rehabilitated the remaining portions of the natural gas line,
upgraded transmission relay switches and panels at the Lucy and McMinn electrical substations, placed a
deposit on a parcel of land to be used as the site of a future electrical substation, and used drones to inspect
the 30’ — 50’ tall poles on the 13.2 kilovolt distribution lines. The Utility also installed a new large power
transformer on the growing east side of town providing further reliability gains through redundancy of the
electrical grid and by providing sufficiency capacity for future electrical growth. During the year, it monitored
the pilot program which installed “smart” meters and a meter collection system. After eight months of
successful operation, it was decided to fully implement the system to streamline the collection of data and
provide the functionality to afford customers the ability to remotely view their usage. The full deployment is
planned for 2019. The Utility continued its commitment to energy efficiency by conducting 332 free
residential energy surveys and 10 commercial surveys. It processed 15 rebates to customers who installed
energy efficient systems. It signed up 32 customers to its surge blocker program, and it entered into net
metering contracts with 26 residential customers who have installed solar power systems that feed back into
the electrical grid. Finally, the Ultility, in a continued effort to help keep prices low, manages day to day
purchases of power under several purchase power agreements The Utility also brought extremely cost
effective participation in a large scale utility solar project to the City. During the year, the Utility responded to
354 incidents where customers reported electrical concerns.

During 2018, the Electric Utility maintained their RP3 (Reliable Public Power Provider) Platinum designation
that they were awarded in FY 2016.
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HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA



The Water and Wastewater Utility completed many projects during 2018; the most notable included the
following:
Televised 90,713 linear feet of pipe
Cleaned 32,368 linear feet of sewer main lines
Changed out 1,494 meters for 10 year old meter programs
Installed 370 new meters for new water service accounts
Ongoing construction of Pump Station 1
Rehabilitation of Trenches #2 and #5
SCADA system installed at Wittkop, Harris Field and Tennessee Pump Stations
Completed several capital improvement projects including:
o Infiltration and Inflow projects
o Annual water main extension project

* & 2 & ¢ 0 @

During 2018, the Solid Waste Department’s most significant accomplishments included:
e Commercial Garbage — 21,569 tons collected

Residential Garbage — 20,981 tons collected

Bulk Trash - 12,738 tons collected

Industrial Trash/Garbage roll-off and compactor — 9,591 tons collected

* & @

During FY 2018, the General Services Department’s three divisions accomplished several projects. The
Procurement Division continues to pursue Certified Public Purchasing Officer (CPPQ) and Certified
Professional Public Buyer (CPPB) certifications for their staff members, they continue to plan for the
implementation of electronic bidding or e-procurement which will increase efficiency, improve quality and
reduce costs, and plans also include the acquisition of a contract management software to replace the existing
in-house program with enhanced features. The Fleet Management Division successfully managed the
refurbishing of three existing solid waste vehicles, and upgraded the vehicle repair ordering system and record
management is now fully electronic. Additionally, the fuel island capital improvement project was completed
and all the fuel pump and fuel tank upgrades completed. The Information Technology Services Division (ITS)
Department upgraded several software programs including Laserfische, for records and document
management, and the Exchange Server for email communication to provide security and reliability. The
upgrade completed of the City’s mainframe also provides a more stable network connection which is vital to
the day to day operation of every department. The ITS department also upgraded the check printing software
by implementing a quicker and more cost effective option. This transition has created a better work flow and
seamless processing of payroll and accounts payable check printing which has increased employee
productivity. As part of the [TS training initiative, we will continue to provide additional courses throughout
the year to include topics that will enhance staff skills to work with existing systems in an efficient and
effective manner.

The Customer Service Department has made several changes to provide improved customer service while
reducing costs of operations. During 2018, the department introduced a new online customer application
system allowing customers to enter requests for various services while reducing the wait time to process
applications. It also introduced remote tum on and turn offs as part of the automatic metering infrastructure
pilot program, also reducing the wait time for customers requesting the services.

The City Clerk’s office continues to pursue their goal for staff certifications as Municipal Clerks, During
2018 it successfully updated the 2019 election candidate qualifying handbook, it continues to collaborate with
Miami-Dade County Elections to improve the voting process, and during the year it also provided the
additional services:

e Processed 3,139 lien searches

e Provided responses to 631 public record requests
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e Prepared 173 resolutions, ordinances and final orders for execution and recording

In 2018, the Public Information Office (PIO) continued an impressive six-year winning streak at the 2018
City-County Communications & Marketing Association’s Savvy Awards competition. The annual
competition recognizes cities and counties across the country for excellence in government transparency,
information flow, and public outreach. The awards received were as follows:

o Special Events—Best Use of Facebook

»  Award of Excellence

®=  Hurricane Irma Crisis Communication
o Video — Education/Training

= Silver Circle Award

= Hitting the Road with Inside Homestead
o Video—Interview/Talk Show/News Programming

»  Silver Circle Award

= Inside Homestead Interviews
o Video — One-Time Special

*  Award of Excellence

s Hitting the Road with Inside Homestead
o Video—Promeotional Video

= Silver Circle Award

= Hitting the Road with Inside Homestead

Recent Events Impacting the City

On September 10, 2017, the City was impacted by Hurricane Irma, a powerful Category 4 hurricane. While
the center of the hurricane did not pass through the City, significant wind and rain were experienced. There
were downed trees, fences and signage throughout the City including tree debris blocking the roadways.
Many residents and businesses lost electricity throughout the City. As of the date of this transmittal letter, the
City has completed all power restoration efforts debris clearance and removal, and the minor damages to a
few facilities have been mostly repaired. The City is currently in the process of compiling and submitting the
financial information for reimbursements. Through FY 2018, hurricane-related costs were approximately
$10.4 million. Most of the costs are anticipated to be reimbursed from the Federal Emergency Management
Agency (FEMA), with any ultimate costs to the City being paid from the City’s hurricane fee reserves.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Homestead for its
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017. This was the
fifthteenth consecutive year that the government has received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a
Certificate of Achievement, the City must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR. This
report must satisfy both GAAP and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current CAFR

continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the
GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.
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The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and dedicated services of the
entire staff of the Finance Department. We would like to express our appreciation to all members of the
department who assisted and contributed to the preparation of this report. A special note of thanks and
appreciation is also extended to our auditors, Marcum LLP, for their professional approach and high standards
in the conduct of their independent audit of the City’s financial records and transactions. Acknowledgements
are also given to the Mayor and the City Council for their unfailing support for maintaining the highest
standards of professionalism in the management of the City of Homestead’s finances. Their guidance and
cooperation in planning and conducting the financial affairs of the City in a responsible and progressive
manner is greatly appreciated.

Respectfully su

S

/\MT"\:
Carlos M. Perez,

Finance Director

CPA
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MARCUM

ACCOUNTANTS 4 ADVISORS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor, City Council and City Manager
City of Homestead, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City
of Homestead, Florida, (the City), as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did
not audit the financial statements of the Pension Trust Funds, which represent 89%, 94% and 39%,
respectively, of the assets, net position/fund balance and revenues/additions of the aggregate
remaining fund information. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have
been furnished to us, and our opinions, insofar as they relate to the amounts included for the
Pension Trust Funds are based solely upon the reports of other auditors. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
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expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City as of September 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial
position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the fiscal year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, the schedule of changes in total OPEB liability and
related ratios, changes in net pension liability and related ratios, contributions and the budgetary
comparison schedules on pages 4-24 and 133-146 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We and the other auditors have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund
statements and schedules and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial
assistance, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance) and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General and the introductory and
statistical sections are presented for additional purposes and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements.



The combining and individual fund statements and schedules and the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards and state financial assistance are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America by us and other auditors. In our opinion, based on our
audit, the procedures performed as described above, and the reports of the other auditors, the
combining and individual fund statements and schedules and the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards and state financial assistance, are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to
the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 7,
2019 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Morewn LLP

Miami, FL
June 7, 2019
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the City of Homestead (the City), we offer the readers of the City’s financial statements
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2018. Since the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on
the current year’s activities, resulting changes, and currently known facts, we encourage readers to read it
in conjunction with the Letter of Transmittal, beginning on page i and the City’s financial statements,
beginning on page 25 of this report. In this MD&A, all amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed
in thousands of dollars.

Financial Highlights

e At September 30, 2018, the government-wide assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City
exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $220,273 (net position), a decrease of
$14,948 or 6% from prior year.

e InFY 2018, the City arranged New Market Tax Credit (“NMTC”) financing toward the construction of
the parking garage project (the “Project”) in downtown Homestead. The City formed Homestead
Station QALICB, Inc. (the “QALICB”), a Florida nonprofit corporation, in connection with the
purchase and development of the Project. QALICB is considered to be a special-purpose governmental
entity engaged only in business-type activities with a fiscal year end of June 30. For FY 2018, the
City’s financial statements include QALICB’s financial statements for the period from March 1, 2018
(inception) to June 30, 2018.

e During the current fiscal year, the City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions. Implementation of this statement has resulted in a restatement of the fiscal year 2017
government-wide and proprietary fund net position (see Note 15 on page 132).

e At September 30, 2018, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balance of
$73,626, an increase of $6,897 from the prior year. The increase is mainly from a note receivable of
$10,766 for a leveraged loan the City made to COCFR Investor, LLC involving the NMTC
transactions. Of the total fund balance, $9,660 or 13% represents the unassigned fund balance, which is
available for spending at the City’s discretion.

e At fiscal year end, the General Fund total fund balance increased by $7,882, from $19,437 in FY 2017
to $27,319 in FY 2018, which represents approximately 58% of total General Fund expenditures. Of
this total fund balance, $11,079 was nonspendable and represents prepaid costs and long-term notes
receivable, $100 has been restricted for fiber optic security, $306 restricted for HUD section 108 loan
security, $4,959 has been committed for a required reserve, $1,215 was assigned for subsequent year’s
budget and $9,660 was unassigned.

e The City’s total assets and deferred outflows of resources of $405,056 reflect a net increase of $9,848
from prior year. The City’s total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources of $184,783 reflect a net
increase of $24,796 during fiscal year 2018. Current liabilities decreased by $3,073 or 11% while
noncurrent liabilities increased by $24,310 or 19%. The increase in both assets and noncurrent
liabilities are mainly from the notes receivable and loan payable relating to the NMTC transactions for
the construction of the parking garage.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements.
The City’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components:

1) Government-wide financial statements,

2) Fund financial statements,

3) Notes to the financial statements.

This report also contains required and other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial
statements themselves.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The focus of the government-wide financial statements is on the overall financial position and activities of
the City. Two government-wide statements are presented: the statement of net position and the statement of
activities. These statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances
using the accrual basis of accounting in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The accrual basis of
accounting recognizes increases or decreases in economic resources as soon as the underlying transaction
takes place. Therefore, all of the current year’s revenues and expenses are reported regardless of the timing
of the related cash flows to acquire these assets or liquidate such liabilities.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City’s assets, liabilities and deferred
inflows/outflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases
in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or
deteriorating. Although the purpose of the City is not to accumulate net position, in general, as this amount
increases it indicates that the financial position of the City is improving over time.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise
to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g.,
uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activities). The governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety, public works
and services, and parks and recreation. The business-type activities of the City include electric, water and
sewer, solid waste, stormwater services and Homestead Station QALICB.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City of Homestead (known as the primary
government), but also legally separate entities (known as component units) for which the City is financially
accountable. These blended component units are the Homestead Community Redevelopment Agency and the
Homestead Station QALICB. In addition to the inclusion in the government-wide financial statements, more
detailed information for the Homestead Station QALICB may be obtained from its separately issued financial
statements.
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The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 25-27 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

Unlike government-wide financial statements, the focus of the fund financial statements is directed to
specific activities of the City rather than the City as a whole. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that
is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.
The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Government fund
financial statements consist of a balance sheet and statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in
fund balances. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting, which focuses on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the
end of the fiscal year. The statements provide a short-term view of the City’s ability to finance its programs
and near-term financing requirements, in contrast to the long-term view provided by the government-wide
statements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the City’s near term financing decisions. Both
the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds
and governmental activities.

The governmental fund financial statements are presented on pages 28-31 of this report.

The City maintains eighteen individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances for the General Fund, the Homestead Community Redevelopment Agency Fund,
the Impact Fees Fund, and the Multimodal Transit Center Fund, all of which are considered to be major
funds. Data for the other fourteen governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.
Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is presented in the form of combining
statements elsewhere in this report.

The City adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, the Homestead Community Redevelopment
Agency Fund, the Impact Fees Fund, the Multimodal Transit Center Fund and twelve of the non-major
governmental funds. Schedules of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance - budget and actual
have been provided for these funds to demonstrate budgetary compliance. These schedules for the major
governmental funds can be found on pages 133-136 and page 147 and the schedules of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balance - budget and actual for the twelve non-major governmental
funds can be found on pages 154-159 of this report.

-6-



City oFr HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Sundries Grant Fund and the Community Development Block Grant Fund do not have an annual
adopted budget.

Proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are those funds where the City charges fees to customers for the
use of specific goods or services. Proprietary fund financial statements consist of a statement of net
position, a statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position and a statement of cash flows.
Proprietary fund financial statements provide the same type of information as the government-wide
financial statements, only in more detail. The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds:

Enterprise funds are used to account for business-type activities that charge fees to customers for the use
of specific goods or services. These funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type
activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City has six individual enterprise funds. The
proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for each of the four major funds, the
Water and Sewer Utilities, the Electric Utility, the Solid Waste and Homestead Station QALICB. Data for
the other two enterprise funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for
each of these non-major enterprise funds is presented in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this
report.

Internal service funds are used to accumulate and allocate costs for goods and services provided
internally among the City’s various funds and functions. Any net increase or deficiency in net position in
the internal service funds are allocated back to the different participating funds and functions. The City has
five internal service funds, four of which are used to account for its fleet maintenance and self-insurance
services. Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions,
they have been included as part of the governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
The remaining internal service fund, the Customer Service Fund, predominantly serves enterprise funds;
therefore, it has been included as part of the business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining
statements elsewhere in this report.

The proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 32-34 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the government. The City uses Fiduciary funds to account for its five pension plans. Fiduciary funds are
not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not
available to support the City’s own activities. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that
used for proprietary funds.

The fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 35-36 of this report.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements.

The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 37-132 of this report.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and the accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
required supplementary information such as budgetary comparison schedules between the City adopted and
final budget and actual financial results for the General Fund, the Homestead Community Redevelopment
Agency fund and the Impact Fee fund. Schedule of changes in net pension liability and related ratios,
schedule of changes in total OPEB liability as well as schedule of City contribution for the City’s five pension
plans are also presented in this section.

Required supplementary information can be found on pages 133-146 of this report.
The combining and individual funds statements and schedules referred to earlier in connection with major
and non-major governmental, enterprise, internal service and fiduciary funds are presented immediately

following the required supplementary information.

Combining and individual funds statements and schedules can be found on pages 147-167 of this report.

Government-wide Overall Financial Analysis

Summary of Net Position

The difference between a government’s assets and deferred outflows of resources and its liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources is its net position. As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of
a government’s financial position. In the case of the City, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $220,273 at the close of fiscal year 2018 of which 86% was for
governmental activities and 14% was for business-type activities.

A summary of government-wide net position and comparative balances between the current and last
fiscal year is provided in the next page:
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City of Homestead
Summary of Net Position
September 30, 2018 and 2017

Business-type

Governmental Activities Activities Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Current and other assets $ 86,109 $ 83328 § 40,061 $32,074 $ 126,170 $ 115,402
Capital assets 223,019 232,780 38,772 30,806 261,791 263,586
Total assets 309,128 316,108 78,833 62,380 387,961 378,988
Total deferred outflows of resources 13,761 13,410 3,334 2,810 17,095 16,220
Current and other liabilities 8,722 11,446 15,778 16,127 24,500 27,573
Noncurrent liabilities 117,753 110,636 32,592 15,399 150,345 126,035
Total liabilities 126,475 122,082 48,370 31,526 174,845 153,608
Total deferred inflows of resources 7,364 4,179 2,574 2,200 9,938 6,379
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 177,339 191,174 34,074 29,169 211,413 220,343
Restricted 17,404 13,992 716 553 18,120 14,545
Unrestricted (5,693) (1,909) (3,567) 2,242 (9,260) 333
Total net position $ 189,050 $203257 $ 31,223 $31,964  § 220,273 $ 235,221

The total net position of the City decreased $14,948 or 6% from prior year. Net position of the
governmental activities decreased $14,207 or 7% from prior year. Business-type activities net position
decreased $741 or 2% from prior year.

By far, the largest portion of the City’s net position reflects its net investment in capital assets (e.g., land,
buildings, infrastructure, and utility plant and systems), net of accumulated depreciation, less any
outstanding related debt and deferred inflows/outflows used to acquire the assets. The City uses those
capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the City’s net investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be
noted that resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. The City’s net investment in capital assets for
fiscal year 2018 had a balance of $211,413 (96% of total net position.)

An additional portion of the City’s net position is the restricted net position which represents resources that
are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. These resources have been set aside for
capital projects, debt service payments and other contractual obligations. The City’s restricted net position
as of the end of fiscal year 2018 had a balance of $18,120 (8% of total net position).

Unrestricted net position represents assets that may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to
citizens and creditors. For FY 2018 the City reported a total negative unrestricted net position of $9,260.
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Unrestricted net position for governmental activities showed a ($5,693) deficit and business-type activities
showed a ($3,567) deficit at the end of the fiscal year. This deficit does not mean that the City does not
have the resources to pay its obligations next year. Rather, it is the result of having long-term commitments
that are greater than the currently available resources. Unfunded long-term commitments include long-term
debt (bonds and loans), equipment financing obligations, accrued liabilities for compensated absences, net
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pension liability, total OPEB liability and an estimated liability for claims and judgements.

The following chart displays the City’s total net position over the last ten fiscal years.

City of Homestead Total Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal years
(in millions)
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Summary of Activities

The following page provides a comparative summary of the government-wide statement of activities for the

current and prior fiscal year.
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City of Homestead
Summary of Changes in Net Position
Fiscal years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Revenues:

Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 17,084 § 15549 $89,639 § 88,517 § 106,723 $ 104,066
Operating grants and contributions 3,851 2,232 - - 3,851 2,232
Capital grants and contributions 4,675 4,600 3,936 217 8,611 4817

General revenues:
Property taxes 17,284 15,571 - - 17,284 15,571
Fuel taxes 1,309 1,223 1,309 1,223
Franchise fees on gross receipts 4,116 4,012 - - 4,116 4,012
Utility taxes 1,492 1,532 - - 1,492 1,532
Communication service taxes 1,518 1,525 - - 1,518 1,525
Half cent sales taxes 5,632 5,281 - - 5,632 5,281
Unrestricted intergovernmental 3,328 3,025 - - 3,328 3,025
Payment in lieu of taxes 1,705 1,512 - - 1,705 1,512
Other revenues 2,227 751 2,917 4,899 5,144 5,650
Unrestricted investment earnings 629 237 38 33 667 270
Total revenues 64,850 57,050 96,530 93,666 161,380 150,716

Expenses:

General government 21,003 16,344 - - 21,003 16,344
Public safety 31,399 31,278 - - 31,399 31,278
Public works and services 5,082 5,259 - - 5,082 5,259
Parks and recreation 8,832 8,627 - - 8,832 8,627
Diasater relief 4,775 5,784 - - 4,775 5,784
Interest on long-term debt 2,534 1,914 - - 2,534 1,914
Unallocated depreciation 2,605 2,615 - - 2,605 2,615
Water / Sewer utilities - - 18,328 19,569 18,328 19,569
Electric utility - - 63,632 63,979 63,632 63,979
Solid waste - - 12,619 12,151 12,619 12,151
Other enterprise - - 1,646 1,533 1,646 1,533
Homestead Station QALICB - - 950 - 950 -
Total expenses 76,230 71,821 97,175 97232 173,405 169,053
Decrease in net position before transfers (11,380)  (14,771) (645)  (3,566) (12,025)  (18,337)
Transfers (746) 8,005 746 (8,005) - -
Increase (Decrease) in net position (12,126) (6,766) 101 (11,571) (12,025)  (18,337)
Net position — beginning, as previously reported 203,257 210,023 31,964 43,535 235,221 253,558
Prior period adjustment (2,081) - (342) - (2,923) -
Net position — beginning as restated 201,176 210,023 31,122 43,535 232,298 253,558
Net position — ending $ 189,050 $ 203,257 $31,223 $31964 § 220273 § 235,221
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Governmental activities

Total net position of the City’s governmental activities decreased by $14,207 from $203,257 in FY 2017 to
$189,050 in FY 2018, or 7%. Net investment in capital assets decreased by $13,835 mostly from
depreciation of new facilities. Restricted net position increased $3,412 while unrestricted net position
decreased $3,784. Before transfers, governmental activities has a decrease in net position of $11,380 due to
disaster-related expenses as well as expenses from major capital projects.

Governmental Activities
Net Position (in million)
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Key elements of the City’s governmental activities are as follows:

Total charges for services increased by $1,535 primarily due to increase in permit fee and increase in
fines and forfeitures from unanticipated state seizures.

Gross property taxable value for the City increased for a fifth straight year, from $2.317 billion in
2017 to $2.609 billion in 2018. The City chose to maintain its property tax millage rate at 5.9215
mills which is 0.4366 mills higher than the 2018 rolled back rate of 5.4849 mills. Total property tax
revenues increased by $1,713 from the increase in assessed property taxable value.

Debt millage rate decreased slightly from 0.5934 mills in 2017 to 0.5575 mills in 2018 due to
increase in assessed property taxable value.

Other taxes (fuel taxes, franchise fees, utility taxes, communication service taxes and half cent sales
taxes) increased by the total of $494. Half cent sales taxes increased by $351, a sign of improved
economy.

Other revenues increased $1,476 mostly resulted from NMTC transactions.
Unrestricted investment earnings increased $392 due to the increase in interest rate.

Total governmental activities expenses increased by $4,409 from prior year. $3,936 was for capital
contributions from governmental activities to business-type activities and $805 was NMTC related
expenses.

Interest on long-term debt increased by $620 due to interest payments on the new Taxable
Transportation System Revenue Bonds of $31,440 issued at the end of September 2017.

Transfers decreased by $8,751 mostly from 1) The transfer in the amount of $4,000 for budget
stabilization support from the enterprise funds to the General Fund was eliminated since the General
fund no longer needed support from the enterprise funds; and 2) The transfer in from enterprise funds
to disaster relief fund decreased from $4,000 in FY 2017 to $300 in FY 2018. The General Fund
also had a transfer to Homestead Station QALICB in the amount of $1,150 in FY 2018.

Governmental activities has a prior year adjustment of $2,081 to beginning net position resulting

from the implementation of GASB 75 of $1,336 and utility service taxes adjustments from prior
years of $745.
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The following charts compare expenses and program revenues and revenue by sources for governmental
activities for fiscal year 2018:

Governmental Activities - Expenses and Program Revenues
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Governmental Activities — Revenues by Source
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Business-type activities

The City’s net position of the business-type activities, which includes the customer service internal service
fund and Homestead Station QALICB, decreased by $741 from $31,964 to $31,223, or 2% from the prior
year. Before transfer to governmental activities, business-type activities has a decrease in net position of
$645 mostly from Homestead Station QALICB.

Business-type Activities
Net Position (in million)
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Key elements of the City’s business-type activities for fiscal year 2018 are as follows:

Overall charges for services increased by $1,122 or 1.3% from the prior year. Electric Utility charge
for services increased by $1,575. Water and Sewer had an increase in charge for services of $428
while stormwater charge for services decreased by $765 resulting from an adjustment for a collection
issue with a county agency.

Capital grants and contributions totaled $3,936. $3,614 was for capital contributions from
governmental activities to water & sewer utilities and $322 to electric utility.

Other revenues decreased by $1,982. In FY2017 Solid waste recognized $2,700 in hurricane fees
from an escrow account, but only $300 in FY 2018.

Water & sewer expenses decreased by $1,241 due from the decrease of $1,392 in water purchases
and sewer treatment charges.

Total transfers decreased $8,751 since the General Fund no longer needed budget stabilization
support from the enterprise funds. The transfer to the Disaster Relief Fund also went down from
$4,000 in FY2017 to only $300 in FY 2018. Also, governmental activities contributed $1,150 to
QALICB for NMTC related transaction.

As of September 30, 2018 there have been no customer rate increases since fiscal year 2008.

Business-type Activities — Expenses and Revenues
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Business-type Activities — Revenues by Source
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Financial Analysis of the City of Homestead’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to help ensure as well as demonstrate compliance with
finance related legal requirements.

Governmental funds.

The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements.
In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources
available for spending.

As of the end of fiscal year 2018, the City’s governmental funds reported a total fund balance of $73,626, a
$6,897 increase from prior year mostly from the note receivable of $10,766 for leverage loan the City made
to COCFR Investor, LLC as described earlier. Out of this amount, $11,890 or 16% was in nonspendable
which represents prepaid costs and the long-term note receivable. $41,874 for 57% is restricted by third
parties such as grantors, creditors, state statue or other governmental entities for specific type of
expenditures. The City, through ordinances, has $6,739, or 9%, in committed fund balance which includes:
1) committed fund balance in the amount of 10% of the amount of originally budgeted revenues of the
general fund ($4,959), and 2) committed fund balance to be used for specific purposes such as public art
and transportation ($1,780).
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The City also has assigned $3,463 or 5% of the fund balance to be used for parks and recreation, capital
projects and expenditures for next fiscal year. Unassigned fund balance is the portion of fund balance that
is available for spending at the City’s discretion. $9,660 or 13% of the governmental fund balance
constitutes unassigned fund balance.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned
fund balance of the General Fund was $9,660 while total fund balance was $27,319. As a measure of the
General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare unassigned fund balance to total fund expenditures.
Unassigned fund balance represents 20% of total General Fund expenditures, while total fund balance
represents 58% of that same amount. Last fiscal year, the General Fund’s total fund balance was $19,437.

Besides the General Fund, major governmental funds include the Homestead Community Redevelopment
Agency, the Impact Fee Fund, and the Multimodal Transit Center Fund. The Homestead Community
Redevelopment Agency’s fund balance increased $392, from $1,232 in 2017 to $1,624 in 2018, primarily
due to the unspent monies earmarked for a major capital project. Impact Fees Fund balance increased by
$1,501 due to parks impact fees are being accumulated to fund a major park expansion.

As for other non-major governmental funds, Confiscated Property’s fund balance increased by $490 due to
an increase in unanticipated state seizures.

Blended component unit - Homestead Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA): During fiscal
year 2018 the CRA completed projects/activities included awarding of one residential grant and six
commercial grants, support for six not-for-profit organizations, and also held three community events
within the CRA area.

Activities/projects planned for fiscal year 2019 include support of the development of the Homestead

Cybrary and the Multimodal Transit Center, blight removal project, Losner Park community events, not-
for-profit grant programs and commercial and residential enhancement grant programs.

Proprietary funds.

The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in greater detail. Proprietary funds account for services that are generally supported by user
fees charged to customers. Proprietary fund statements, like government-wide statements, provide both
short and long term financial information.

e During FY 2018, the City implemented a multi-faceted action plan for the Water & Sewer Ultility
rate increase that will provide increased operating revenues starting in fiscal year 2019. For fiscal
year 2018, Water & Sewer Utility is reporting an operating loss of $3,340. Total net position
increased by $247 due to contribution of capital assets from governmental activities of $3,614.
Unrestricted net position decreased from a negative $2,311 in FY 2017 to a negative $6,297 in FY
2018 resulting from yearly operating losses and the completion of a major capital project. While the
ultimate goal of the rate increase is to eliminate the operating losses and negative unrestricted net
position, the results to the net position will not be met in one year, but will instead be expected to
take approximately 3 years to reach that goal.
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Electric Utility reported an operating income of $513 due to increase in revenues mostly as a result
of decrease in bad debt expense. Transfer out decreased by $6,264 since the budget stabilization of
$4,000 transfer to General fund was eliminated. There was also a $1,300 transfer to disaster relief
fund and a $1,000 transfer to utilities repair, replacement and improvements fund in FY 2017 that did
not occur in FY 2018. Total net position increased by $1,534 while unrestricted net position
increased by $1,231, from a negative balance of $922 in FY 2017 to a positive balance of $309.

Other enterprise funds were able to report a positive unrestricted net position of $3,920 while
reporting an operating loss of $745 primarily from stormwater adjustments in FY 2018 for a
collection issue with a county agency.

As a result of implementation of GASB 75, the beginning balance of net position for all business-
type activities had been restated, which lowered the beginning net position for proprietary funds by
$842.

In summary, total net position for all proprietary funds decreased by $741, from $31,964 in fiscal
year 2017 to $31,223 in fiscal year 2018. The City’s action plan implemented in FY 2018 is intended
to generate annual revenues sufficient to meet all annual operating expenses and allow for a build-up
of reserves for future capital assets.

Blended component unit - Homestead Station QALICB: As mentioned earlier, in FY 2018, the City

forme

d Homestead Station QALICB, Inc. a Florida nonprofit corporation, in connection with the purchase

and development of the parking garage project. QALICB is considered to be a special-purpose
governmental entity engaged only in business-type activities with a fiscal year ended of June 30.

In FY 2018, the City’s proprietary financial statements include QALICB’s financial statements for the
period from March 1, 2018 (inception) to June 30, 2018. QALICB reported a net position as of June 30,

2018

of $200. More detail information for the Homestead Station QALICB may be obtained from its

separately issued financial statements.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

During fiscal year 2018, the City Council approved the total of $18,500 in budget amendments to the
General Fund to increase its projected revenues and expenditures to fund the following items:

$71 was for 2 new dispatchers for the police department;

$500 was to recognize a mitigation payment held in deferred revenues as revenue to be used for
roadway improvements;

$5,100 was for the transfer out to disaster relief fund to fund the cost of Hurricane Irma expenses;
$12,829 was for NMTC transactions.

The General Fund budgetary comparison schedules can be found on pages 133-134 of this report.

Budgeted revenues compared to actual revenues. Actual General Fund revenues before transfers
were $2,114 higher than the final budgeted amount.

e Property taxes were $127 higher than the budgeted amount due to delinquent taxes collected in current
fiscal year.
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Half cent sales taxes and intergovernmental revenues were $410 and $205 higher than the budgeted
amount, indicating improvements in general economic conditions.

Licenses and permits actual revenues were $361 above the budgeted amount showing the increase in
development within the City.

Rental and other revenues had a $1,021 positive variance which included a $723 income from NMTC
transactions.

Budgeted expenditures compared to actual expenditures. The General Fund’s expenditures before
transfers were $3,742 lower than budgeted.

General government showed a positive variance of $1,970. All of the departments under general
government reported positive variances. General administration had a $977 positive variance mostly
from unused contingency & unused management & consulting fees.

Public safety had a positive variance of $558 mostly savings from administrative fees for red-light
cameras and other professional services.

Parks & recreation was $416 under budget primarily from a savings in landscaping contract services
and in wages and benefits due to vacancies.

In summary, the overall positive variances in general fund expenditures are primarily attributes to the
efficiencies of operations, tighter budget constraints and careful management of the City’s finances.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

The City’s capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of September 30, 2018
amounted to $261,791 (net of accumulated depreciation), or 1% decrease from previous year. Major
capital asset events that occurred during the fiscal year include the following:

Completed full interior renovations at the Phichol William building for $510, funded by parks impact
fees.

Purchased new gym equipment for the community center for $68, funded by parks impact fees.
Completed dispatch room and exterior lighting at the new police building for $118 and $149
respectively, funded by the proceeds from the 2014 GO bonds.

Installed new lawn sprinkler system and median improvements for $205, funded by the General Fund.
Street and sidewalk replacements and improvements totaling $162 were funded by the General Fund,
and People’s Transportation Plan Fund.

Completed baseball light upgrades at Harris Field Park for $272, funded by parks impact fees.

Installed new marquee sign for Seminole Theatre for $99, funded by a grant and the General Fund.
Purchased new UPS system and new CP voice communication equipment for the police for the total of
$185, funded by police impact fees.

Purchased a new audio/visual package and rigging equipment for Seminole Theatre for the total of
$400, funded by a grant.

Items funded through equipment financings during FY 2018 include: lighting upgrade package for 13
police vehicles for the total of $150, 2 vehicles for parks for $57 and the new IBM computer hardware
for IT for $103.
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o Governmental citywide construction-in-progress projects at fiscal year end 2018 totaled $5,062. These
included projects such as Losner Park expansion, the downtown Multimodal Transit Center project,
Sun Trail Biscayne Greenway project and Cybrary project. Most of the projects are funded by grants,
impact fees, CDBG, People’s Transportation Plan fund except for the Multimodal Transit Center
construction which is funded by the proceeds from the Taxable Transportation System Revenue Bonds,
series 2017.

e Electric Utility put a deposit on a new substation land for $60, bought a new bucket truck for $196, gas
line replacement and rehabilitation for $172, upgrade of several generators for $232 and completed
several new underground and overhead projects for $550. Major construction-in-progress at year end
included various underground constructions for $1,833, meter data collection system for $503 and new
relay line replacements for $112.

e Water and Sewer purchased a new truck for $63, a cargo van for $36, completed SCADA telemetry
and sampling station projects for $236 and $46, completed several annual capital projects such as
upgrades of various pump stations for $140 and annual trench rehabs for $185. Construction-in-
progress at fiscal year-end included the construction of Pump Station One in the amount of $2,636 and
telemetry $350.

e Construction-in-progress at fiscal year-end for Homestead Station QALICB amounted to $4,732.

Solid Waste bought a garbage trucks for $260.

e Depreciation expense totaled $12,012 and $5,184 for governmental activities and business-type
activities, respectively.

e During the year, governmental activities had the total of $4,446 transferred from construction in
progress: to building & improvements for $510 (Phichol William building renovation); and $3,936 was
contributed to business-type activities. For business-type activities, $1,578 was transferred from
construction in progress to utility, plant and systems.

The following chart provides a condensed schedule of government-wide capital assets with comparative
balances between the current and last fiscal year.

City of Homestead
Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated Depreciation)
September 30, 2018 and 2017

Business-type

Governmental Activities Activities Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Land $ 47212 § 47205 § 1267 $ 1267 $§ 48479 § 48,472
Land improvements 208 218 - - 208 218
Buildings and improvements 109,471 112,863 - - 109,471 112,863
Other improvements 13,066 14,998 - - 13,066 14,998
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 6,639 7,613 - - 6,639 7,613
Artworks 3 3 - - 3 3
Infrastructure 41,358 43,963 - - 41,358 43,963
Utility plant and systems - - 27,028 25,897 27,028 25,897
Construction in progress 5,062 5,917 10,477 3,642 15,539 9,559

$ 223,019 § 232,780 §38,772 § 30,806 § 261,791 § 263,586
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Additional information on capital assets can be found in Note 7 on pages 63-64 of this report.

Long-term Debt

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt and loans outstanding of $94,552. The
City’s bonded debt represents bonds secured by specific revenue sources. Of this amount, $24.1 million
was for General Obligation Bonds, Series 2014, and $30.6 million was for Taxable Transportation System
Revenue Bonds, Series 2017. Total governmental bonded debt and loan payable amounted to $77,835 and
business-type activities amounted to $16,717.

The City’s total debt increased $25,327 during the current fiscal year. Governmental’s debt increased by
$10,207 as a result of NMTC Bridge Loan of $12,829 as discussed earlier. Business-type activities’ debt
increased by $15,120 due to the QALICB notes payable of $15,615 (another NMTC related transaction).
The difference was due to principal payments made during FY 2018 on other debts.

Under Florida Statutes, no debt limit margin is placed on local governments. In December 2018, S&P
affirmed an A+ rating on the City’s general obligation bonds and increased the rating for the City’s taxable
transportation system revenue bonds from A to A+. The City also has an Aa3 rating on its general
obligation bonds and Al on its taxable transportation system revenue bonds from Moody’s from August
2017.

The following chart provides information on the City’s outstanding long-term debt with comparative
balances between the current and last fiscal year.

City of Homestead
Bonded Debt and Loan payable
September 30, 2018 and 2017

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2014 $ 22575 $ 23,040 $ - S - $ 22575 § 23,040

Plus: Unamortized Bonds Premium 1,508 1,566 - - 1,508 1,566

Total General Obligation Bonds 24,083 24,606 - - 24,083 24,606

Taxable Transportation System Revenue

Bonds, Series 2017 30,575 31,440 - - 30,575 31,440
Taxable Special Obligation Refunding

Bonds, Series 2003 600 1,150 - - 600 1,150
HERO Tax Increment Revenue

Refunding Bonds, 2003 568 853 - - 568 853
Derivative instrument - Interest rate swap 9 43 - - 9 43
New City Hall $10M Loan 9,180 9,579 - - 9,180 9,579
New Market Tax Credtt (NMTC) Bridge Loan 12,829 - - - 12,829 -
Electric Utility Bond 2004 - - 1,102 1,597 1,102 1,597
Homestead Station QALICB Notes payable - - 15,615 - 15,615 -

§ 77844 § 67,671 §16,717 $§ 1,597 § 94561 § 69,268
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Additional information on long-term debt and long-term liabilities can be found in Note 8 on pages 65-79
of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The City’s budget philosophy which was established by the City Council included: no operating millage
rate increase, no reduction in City services and no layoffs. This budget philosophy was used as a guide for
the City’s 2019 Budget.

The City’s 2019 original adopted budget reflects anticipated revenues and expenditures of $181,784.
The 2019 budget provides funding for all capital improvement projects estimated at $9,216.

For 2019, the General Fund required reserve is $4,792 or 10% of the 2019 adopted budgeted amount of
General Fund revenues of $47,918.

The City’s taxable property values increased for a sixth consecutive year after four prior years of
decline. From $2.609 billion for fiscal year 2018 to $2.858 billion for fiscal year 2019, an increase of
9.54%; an indication that the housing market is on the rebound.

For fiscal 2019, the City chose to maintain its operating millage rate at 5.9215 mills, which is 0.3715
higher than its 2019 rolled back rate of 5.500 mills. The millage rate has remained the same since fiscal
year 2014.

The City lowered its debt millage rate for the general obligation bonds for fiscal 2019 to 0.5300 mills
from 0.5575 mills in FY 2018.

For fiscal year 2019, the General Fund balanced the budget without the use of reserves for the first time
since FY 2009 when the City’s property value was at an all-time high at $3.96 billion. The City was
able to balance the General Fund budget without using fund balance or budget stabilization transfer
from the enterprise funds while maintaining the same operating millage rate.

Due to recurring annual operating losses for the Water & Sewer utilities, mostly from the increased
pass thru charges from the County, for FY 2019 budget the City increased the water & sewer rates for
the first time since FY 2008.

The City did not increase the electric, stormwater, or solid waste utility rates for the 2019 fiscal year.
According to U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, the City’s total population
increased from 73,627 in 2017 to 73,863 in 2018. The unemployment rate for the City decreased from
6.1% in 2017 to 4.1% in 2018, a positive sign that the economy has begun to grow.

General economic conditions both globally and in our state have required the City to closely monitor
revenue and expenditure trends during the current year. Economic conditions can reflect a declining,
stable or growing environment and has a substantial impact on property assessments, sales, gas, or
other tax revenues as well as consumer spending habits for building permits, user fees and
consumption. Like many local governments across the country, the City is working to strike the
delicate balance of maintaining service levels to its citizens while keeping taxes and service charges as
low as possible.

Overall, an adopted budget is an economical and prudent financial plan that will ensure quality public
services and needed capital improvements for all residents, both today and in the future. As preparation
begins on the 2020 budget, the City’s focus will be on revenue enhancements and expenditure
containment as well as carefully monitoring the Florida legislature’s initiatives and their future impact
on the City’s ability to function at its present level.
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Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with
a general overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the City’s accountability. Additional
information is also available on the City’s website at www.cityofhomestead.com. Questions concerning
any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be
addressed to:

Carlos M. Perez, CPA
Finance Director
City of Homestead
100 Civic Court
Homestead, Florida 33030
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CITY OF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Receivables, net

Internal balances

Prepaid costs

Note receivable

Inventories

Deferred power cost adjustment

Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Total current assets
Non-current Assets:
Net pension asset
Asset available for sale
Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated, net

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Fair value of derivative instruments
Deferred outflows for pensions
Deferred outflows for OPEB

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Unearned revenue

Other liabilities

Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Customer deposits
Current accrued interest payable

Total current liabilities

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
$ 3,230,081 $ 11,900,302 15,130,383
26,132,677 2,457,148 28,589,825
7,032,611 19,465,076 26,497,687
11,229,367 (6,515,000) 4,714,367
1,049,079 158,637 1,207,716
10,841,000 - 10,841,000
151,442 3,418,674 3,570,116
- 883,291 883,291
2,235,627 8,271,942 10,507,569
23,212,436 20,476 23,232912
85,114,320 40,060,546 125,174,866
187,005 - 187,005
807,346 - 807,346
52,277,105 11,743,835 64,020,940
170,742,422 27,027,951 197,770,373
224,013,878 38,771,786 262,785,664
309,128,198 78,832,332 387,960,530
8,641 - 8,641
13,718,628 3,312,079 17,030,707
34,478 21,740 56,218
13,761,747 3,333,819 17,095,566
5,891,179 10,655,684 16,546,863
1,569,793 23,310 1,593,103
678,372 - 678,372
- 5,096,739 5,096,739
582,345 2,233 584,578
$ 8,721,689 $ 15,777,966 24,499,655
(Continued)

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

(Continued)
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
LIABILITIES (continued):
Non-current liabilities:
Due within one year :
Compensated absences $ 764,719  $ 461,804 $ 1,226,523
Equipment financing 846,835 262,993 1,109,828
Other long-term liabilities - 490,000 490,000
Bonds and loans 2,481,820 687,424 3,169,244
Claims and judgements 893,730 - 893,730
Due in more than one year:
Compensated absences 1,784,345 1,077,543 2,861,888
Equipment financing 2,345,960 1,391,609 3,737,569
Other long-term liabilities - 490,000 490,000
Bonds and loans 75,361,918 16,030,063 91,391,981
Net pension liability 21,913,159 6,248,616 28,161,775
Total OPEB liability 8,646,252 5,451,656 14,097,908
Claims and judgements 2,714,617 - 2,714,617
Total non-current liabilities 117,753,355 32,591,708 150,345,063
TOTAL LIABILITIES 126,475,044 48,369,674 174,844,718
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows for pensions 6,842,949 2,245,036 9,087,985
Deferred inflows for OPEB 521,410 328,760 850,170
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 7,364,359 2,573,796 9,938,155
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 177,339,023 34,074,210 211,413,233
Restricted :
Community redevelopment 1,617,889 - 1,617,889
Fiber optic security 100,000 - 100,000
HUD section 108 loan security 306,000 - 306,000
Grants 560,524 - 560,524
Community development 738,545 - 738,545
Diasater relief 13,803 - 13,803
Parks and recreation 7,334,454 - 7,334,454
Law enforcement 1,816,323 - 1,816,323
Road improvements 636,262 - 636,262
Debt service 2,326,352 715,800 3,042,152
Transit & Transportation 1,953,909 - 1,953,909
Unrestricted (5,692,542) (3,567,329) (9,259,871)
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 189,050,542 $ 31,222,681 $ 220,273,223

See notes to basic financial statements.
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City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Special Revenue Capital Project
Homestead
Community Other Total
Redevelopment Multimodal Governmental Governmental
General Agency Impact Fees Transit Center Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 170,848 $ 105484 $ 609,584 § - $ 2303171 $ 3,189,087
Investments 14,109,169 962,966 10,377,064 - 683,478 26,132,677
Interest receivable on investments 52,804 3,579 34,475 - 4,839 95,697
Account receivables, net 2,661,617 462 - - 4,260,259 6,922,338
Due from other funds 7,163,168 600,000 - 4,714,367 1,760,000 14,237,535
Prepaid costs 237,950 6,699 795,030 - 9,400 1,049,079
Notes receivable 10,841,000 - - - - 10,841,000
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 122,740 - - 313,256 1,799,631 2,235,627
Investments 100,000 - - 21,173,850 1,938,586 23,212,436
Asset available for sale - - - - 807,346 807,346
Total Assets $ 35,459,296 $ 1,679,190 $ 11,816,153 § 26,201,473 $ 13,566,710 $ 88,722,822
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 2,470,690 $ 54,602 $ 224603 $ 1,577,814 $ 1,172,476 $ 5,500,185
Due to other funds 4,714,367 - - 668,801 1,965,000 7,348,168
Unearned revenue 432,712 - - - 1,137,081 1,569,793
Other liabilities 522,122 - - - 156,250 678,372
Total liabilities 8,139,891 54,602 224,603 2,246,615 4,430,807 15,096,518
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable :
Prepaid costs 237,950 6,699 795,030 - 9,400 1,049,079
Long-term notes receivable 10,841,000 - - - - 10,841,000
Restricted :
Community redevelopment - 1,617,889 - - - 1,617,889
Fiber optic security 100,000 - - - - 100,000
HUD section 108 loan security 306,000 - - - - 306,000
Grants - - - - 560,524 560,524
Community development - - - - 738,545 738,545
Disaster relief - - - - 13,803 13,803
Parks and recreation - - 7,334,454 - - 7,334,454
Law enforcement - - 1,045,590 - 770,733 1,816,323
Road improvements - - 636,262 - - 636,262
General obligation bonds debt service - - - - 142,717 142,717
HERO tax increment revenue refunding bonds debt service - - - - 737,622 737,622
Taxable transportation system revenue bonds debt service - - - - 449,841 449,841
Special obligation refunding bonds debt service - - - - 996,172 996,172
Multimodal transit center construction - - - 23,954,858 - 23,954,858
New police building construction - - - 137,290 137,290
Cybrary construction from HUD section 108 loan - - - - 378,242 378,242
Transit and transportation - - - - 1,953,909 1,953,909
Committed :
Required reserve 4,958,948 - - - - 4,958,948
Public Art - - 1,489,868 - - 1,489,868
Transportation - - 290,346 - - 290,346
Assigned :
Parks and recreation - - - - 686,075 686,075
Capital projects - - - - 1,561,030 1,561,030
Appropriation of subsequent year's budget 1,215,667 - - - - 1,215,667
Unassigned :
General fund 9,659,840 - - - - 9,659,840
Total fund balances 27,319,405 1,624,588 11,591,550 23,954,858 9,135,903 73,626,304
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 35,459,296 $ 1,679,190 $ 11,816,153 § 26,201,473 $ 13,566,710 $ 88,722,822

See notes to basic financial statements.
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City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Fund balance - total governmental funds (Page 28)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets (excluding internal service funds) used in governmental activities are not financial

SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Net pension assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and, therefore, are not

reported in the funds.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds (excluding internal service funds).

Derivative instruments Interest rate swaps
Accrued interest payable on long-term debt
Bonds and loan payable

Compensated absences

Equipment financing payable

Net pension liability

Total OPEB liability

Total long-term liabilities

Deferred outflows / inflows of resources related to pensions (excluding internal service funds):

Deferred outflows for OPEB
Deferred outflows for pensions
Deferred inflows for OPEB
Deferred inflows for pensions

Total deferred outflows/inflows of resources

The internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet management
and other self-insurance funds to other funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service

funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of net position.

Net position of governmental activities (Page 26)

See notes to basic financial statements.
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8,641
(582,345)
(77,843,738)
(2,475,403)
(3,191,306)
(21,586,587)

(8,368,461)

33,371
13,545,889
(504,657)

(6,725,617)

$ 73,626,304

222,905,862

187,005

(114,039,199)

6,348,986

21,584

5189050542



City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Special Revenue Capital Project
Homestead
Community Other Total
Redevelopment Multimodal Governmental Governmental
General Agency Impact Fees Transit center Funds Funds
Revenues:
Property taxes $ 13,411,689 $ - S - $ - $ 1,393,318 $ 14,805,007
Fuel taxes 1,309,021 - - - - 1,309,021
Franchise fees 4,115,956 - - - - 4,115,956
Utility taxes 1,491,902 - - - - 1,491,902
Communication service taxes 1,518,228 - - - - 1,518,228
Half cent sales taxes 5,631,661 - - - - 5,631,661
Licenses and permits 2,975,987 - - - - 2,975,987
Intergovernmental 3,988,233 2,479,310 2,775,973 - 7,865,446 17,108,962
Charges for services 1,281,639 - - - - 1,281,639
Fines and forfeitures 705,810 - - - 1,456,943 2,162,753
Interest income 159,833 11,568 91,683 347,613 18,107 628,804
Payments in lieu of taxes 1,704,671 - - - - 1,704,671
Rentals and other revenues 8,985,170 13,720 - - 1,086,241 10,085,131
Total revenues 47,279,800 2,504,598 2,867,656 347,613 11,820,055 64,819,722
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 13,003,529 1,417,400 - - 919,196 15,340,125
Public safety 27,113,831 267,246 228,253 - 2,098,636 29,707,966
Public works and services 1,294,494 147,942 1,339 669,286 1,104,648 3,217,709
Parks and recreation 4,352,643 - 99,565 - 756,421 5,208,629
Diaster relief - - - - 4,774,725 4,774,725
Capital outlay 772,270 45,797 1,369,497 436,401 3,712,133 6,336,098
Debt service:
Principal 399,200 - - - 2,358,203 2,757,403
Interest and fiscal charges 322,169 - - 1,100 2,015,996 2,339,265
Total expenditures 47,258,136 1,878,385 1,698,654 1,106,787 17,739,958 69,681,920
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 21,664 626,213 1,169,002 (759,174) (5,919,903) (4,862,198)
Other financing sources (uses):
Issuance of debt (HUD section 108 loan) - - - - 194,000 194,000
Issuance of debt (equipment financing) 226,008 - - - - 226,008
Issuance of other long-term debt 12,829,100 - - - - 12,829,100
Transfers in 2,970,332 93,500 332,181 287,834 9,323,048 13,006,895
Transfers out (6,270,482) (327,500) - (3,921,616) (2,082,797) (12,602,395)
Transfer to Homestead Station QALICB (NMTC) (1,150,000) - - - - (1,150,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) 8,604,958 (234,000) 332,181 (3,633,782) 7,434,251 12,503,608
Net change in fund balances 8,626,622 392,213 1,501,183 (4,392,956) 1,514,348 7,641,410
Fund balances, beginning as originally stated 19,437,354 1,232,375 10,090,367 28,347,814 7,621,555 66,729,465
Prior period adjustment (note 15) (744,571) - - - - (744,571)
Fund balances, beginning as restated 18,692,783 1,232,375 10,090,367 28,347,814 7,621,555 65,984,894
Fund balances, ending $ 27,319,405 $ 1,624,588 $ 11,591,550 $ 23,954,858 $ 9,135,903 $ 73,626,304

See notes to basic financial statements.
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City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Page 30) $ 7,641,410

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlay exceeded depreciation in the
current period.

The details of the difference are as follows:

Capital outlay 6,086,927
Depreciation expense (excluding depreciation on internal service funds) (11,900,408)
Net adjustment (5,813,481)
The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving asset available for sale (sales
trade-ins, and donations) decreased net position. (3,936,372)
The net effect of OPEB deferred outflows/ inflows (471,286)
The net effect of pension deferred outflows/ inflows and retirement contribution expenses (2,786,523)

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds) provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net
position.

The details of the difference are as follows:

New Market Tax Credit (NMTC) bridge loan (12,829,100)
Equipment financing obligation (226,008)
Principal payments:
General obligation bonds 465,000
Taxable tansportation system revenue bonds, series 2017 865,000
Special refinancing bonds 550,000
HERO Increment revenue bonds 284,203
$10M New City Hall loan 399,200
Equipment financing 1,188,686
Amortization of bond premium 58,120
Total Adjustment (9,244,899)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds:

The details of the difference are as follows:

Compensated absences 12,078
Change in net pension assets 187,005
Changes in net pension liability 2,858,930
Change in total OPEB liability (349,921)
Effect of accrued interest on long-term debt (difference between amount that would
have been accrued in prior year and current year accrual) (252,769)
Total Adjustment 2,455,323

The internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet management
and other self-insurance funds to other funds. The net revenue of certain internal service
funds is reported with governmental activities. 29,505

Change in net position of governmental activities (Page 27) §  (12,126,323)

See notes to basic financial statements.
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ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Interest receivable
Account receivables, net
Due from other funds
Prepaid costs
Inventories
Deferred power cost adjustment
Restricted Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated, net
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows for pension
Deferred outflows for OPEB
Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Compensated absences
Unearned revenue
Current portion of equipment financing
Current portion of other long-term liabilities
Claims and judgements
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Customer deposits
Accrued interest payable
Current portion of bonds payable
Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities:
Compensated absences
Equipment financing
Other long-term liabilities
Notes payable
Bonds payable
Net pension liability
Total OPEB liability
Claims and judgements

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows for pensions
Deferred inflows for OPEB
Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted :
Debt service
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Business-type Activities

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds.

Net position of business-type activities

Enterprise Funds
Water Other Homestead Total Internal
and Electric Solid Enterprise Station Enterprise Service
Sewer Utility Waste Funds QALICB Funds Funds
a
$ 10,251 $ 82,552 $ 519,965 $ 119,337 $ 11,166,094 $ 11,898,199 S 43,097
29,917 - 243,226 2,184,005 - 2,457,148 -
1,226 3,049 904 8,116 - 13,295 -
2,996,882 13,739,035 2,092,427 623,437 - 19,451,781 14,576
- - - 1,600,000 - 1,600,000 5,950,000
- 158,637 - - - 158,637 -
- 3,418,674 - - - 3,418,674 151,442
- 883,291 - - - 883,291 -
1,898,590 4,965,807 569,045 - 838,500 8,271,942 -
- 20,476 - - - 20,476 -
4,936,866 23,271,521 3,425,567 4,534,895 12,004,594 48,173,443 6,159,115
3,179,411 3,832,558 - - 4,731,866 11,743,835 -
8,161,050 16,960,590 1,348,381 446,205 - 26,916,226 225,390
11,340,461 20,793,148 1,348,381 446,205 4,731,866 38,660,061 225,390
16,277,327 44,064,669 4,773,948 4,981,100 16,736,460 86,833,504 6,384,505
608,881 1,477,087 832,311 94,764 - 3,013,043 471,775
4,847 6,923 4,708 1,523 - 18,001 4,846
613,728 1,484,010 837,019 96,287 - 3,031,044 476,621
2,497,308 6,664,229 399,997 29,808 919,064 10,510,406 536,272
3,300,000 6,425,000 - - - 9,725,000 -
95,398 225,570 113,693 9,870 - 444,531 39,371
- - 23,310 - - 23,310 -
132,189 52,936 71,433 364 - 256,922 7,560
490,000 - - - - 490,000 -
- - - - - - 893,730
1,059,084 4,013,830 23,825 - - 5,096,739 -
- - - - 2,233 2,233 -
- 687,424 - - - 687,424 -
7,573,979 18,068,989 632,258 40,042 921,297 27,236,565 1,476,933
222,593 526,329 265,284 23,030 - 1,037,236 91,870
708,623 208,438 474,548 - - 1,391,609 -
490,000 - - - - 490,000 -
- - - - 15,615,000 15,615,000 -
- 415,063 - - - 415,063 -
1,151,119 2,779,478 1,573,522 179,156 - 5,683,275 891,913
1,215,336 1,736,197 1,180,614 381,963 - 4,514,110 1,215,337
- - - - - - 2,714,617
3,787,671 5,665,505 3,493,968 584,149 15,615,000 29,146,293 4,913,737
11,361,650 23,734,494 4,126,226 624,191 16,536,297 56,382,858 6,390,670
413,580 998,627 565,342 64,368 - 2,041,917 320,451
73,290 104,701 71,197 23,034 - 272,222 73,291
486,870 1,103,328 636,539 87,402 - 2,314,139 393,742
11,339,155 19,685,940 1,347,620 445,841 1,150,000 33,968,556 217,830
- 715,800 - - - 715,800 -
(6,296,620) 309,117 (499,418) 3,919,953 (949,837) (3,516,805) (141,116)
$ 5,042,535 $§ 20,710,857 $§ 848,202 $ 4,365,794 § 200,163 31,167,551 S 76,714
55,130
$ 31,222,681

(1) Homestead Station QALICB fiscal year end is June 30, 2018.

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Other revenues

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Personnel services
Administration
Purchased power
Insurance and claims
Other operating expenses
Depreciation

Total expenses

Operating income (loss)

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Debt issuance costs
Interest income
Interest expense

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers

Contribution of capital assets
Transfers in

Transfer from City of Homestead
Transfers out

Total contribution and transfers
Change in net position
Net position, beginning as originally stated
Prior period adjustment (note 15)

Net position, beginning as restated

Net position, ending

City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds.

Change in net position of business-type activities

Water Other Homestead Total Internal

and Electric Solid Enterprise Station Enterprise Service

Sewer Utility Waste Funds QALICB Funds Funds

@
$ 14,001,983 $ 62,494,000 § 12,082,839 $ 901,505 $ - $ 89,480,327 $ 19,753,259
965,622 1,577,684 373,339 - - 2,916,645 67,920
14,967,605 64,071,684 12,456,178 901,505 - 92,396,972 19,821,179
3,502,459 7,645,912 4,206,198 902,849 - 16,257,418 2,893,220
- - - - - - 1,070,291
- 40,123,935 - - - 40,123,935 -
- - - - - - 11,086,145
13,126,629 12,838,025 8,003,936 645,456 140,920 34,754,966 4,422,385
1,678,578 2,951,035 408,355 98,215 - 5,136,183 160,101
18,307,666 63,558,907 12,618,489 1,646,520 140,920 96,272,502 19,632,642
(3,340,061) 512,777 (162,311) (745,015) (140,920) (3,875,530) 188,537
- - - - (808,917) (808,917) -
- 7,414 8,948 21,566 - 37,928 -
(20,207) (72,846) (120) (14) - (93,187) (298)
(20,207) (65,432) 8,828 21,552 (808,917) (864,176) (298)
(3,360,268) 447,345 (153,483) (723,463) (949,837) (4,739,706) 188,239
3,613,714 322,658 - - - 3,936,372 -
6,929 800,000 182,000 - - 988,929 -
- - - - 1,150,000 1,150,000 -
(12,874) (35,621) (323,821) (995,366) - (1,367,682) (25,747)
3,607,769 1,087,037 (141,821) (995,366) 1,150,000 4,707,619 (25,747)
247,501 1,534,382 (295,304) (1,718,829) 200,163 (32,087) 162,492
4,982,815 19,444,733 1,325,925 6,143,640 - 102,005
(187,781) (268,258) (182,419) (59,017) - (187,783)
4,795,034 19,176,475 1,143,506 6,084,623 - (85,778)
$ 5,042,535 '$ 20,710,857 $ 848,202 $§ 4,365,794 $ 200,163 $ 76,714
132,987
s 100900

(1) Homestead Station QALICB fiscal year end is June 30, 2018.

See notes to basic financial statements.

-33-



Ci1ty oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash received from/(to) other funds
Cash payments to suppliers.
Cash payments to employees
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds
Net cash provided by (used in)
noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Cash paid for debt issuance costs
Proceeds from notes payable
Principal paid on long term debt
Interest paid on long term debt
Net cash provided by (used in)
and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of investments
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments
Interest received

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning

Cash and cash equivalents, ending

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation
Change in power cost adjustment
Net changes in assets, liabilities and deferred inflows/outflows:
(Increase) decrease in:
Interest receivable
Accounts receivables
Due from other funds
Prepaid / Other assets
Inventories
Deferred outflows for pensions
Deferred outflows for OPEB
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Compensated absences
Unearned revenue
Customer deposits
Long term liabilities
Net pension liability
Total OPEB liability
Claims and judgements
Deferred inflows for pensions
Deferred inflows for OPEB
Total adjustments

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities

Non-cash investing, capital and financing activities:
Borrowing under equipment financing
Contribution of capital assets from governmental fund

Change in fair value of investments

(1) Homestead Station QALICB fiscal year end is June 30, 2018.

Water Other Homestead Total Internal

and Electric Solid Enterprise Station Enterprise Service

Sewer Utility Waste Funds QALICB Funds Funds

[6))
$ 15,602,588 $ 64,680,030 $ 13,034,316 $ 722,097 $ - $ 94,039,031 $ -
280,846 (1,651,749) (4,008,768) 1,250,000 - (4,129,671) 20,271,179
(12,627,065) (53,305,322) (8,053,072) (631,381) (140,920) (74,757,760) (17,378,416)
(3,565,668) (7,556,164) (4,277,515) (872,301) - (16,271,648) (2,918,543)
(309,299) 2,166,795 (3,305,039) 468,415 (140,920) (1,120,048) (25,780)
6,929 800,000 182,000 - - 988,929 -
(12,874) (35,621) (323,821) (995,366) - (1,367,682) (25,747)
(5,945) 764,379 (141,821) (995,366) - (378,753) (25,747)
(1,267,888) (1,739,449) 277,764 (31,201) (2,660,569) (5,421,343) (180,908)
- - - - (808,917) (808,917) -
- - - - 15,615,000 15,615,000 -
(492,579) (504,326) (1,501) (718) (999,124) (14,920)
(20,207) (72,846) (120) (14) - (93,187) (298)
(1,780,674) (2,316,621) 276,143 (31,933) 12,145,514 8,292,429 (196,126)
(68,634) (19,493) (70,695) (61,385) - (220,207) -
2,751,339 811,914 4,045,615 537,292 - 8,146,160 -
- 7,414 8,948 21,566 - 37,928 -
2,682,705 799,835 3,983,868 497,473 - 7,963,881 -
586,787 1,414,388 813,151 (61,411) 12,004,594 14,757,509 (247,653)
1,322,054 3,633,971 275,859 180,748 - 5,412,632 290,750
$ 1,908,841 § 5,048,359 § 1,089,010 § 119,337 § 12,004,594 $ 20,170,141 $ 43,097
$ (3,340,061) $ 512,777 $ (162,311) $ (745,015) $ (140,920) $  (3,875,530) $ 188,537
1,678,578 2,951,035 408,355 98,215 - 5,136,183 160,101
- (600,986) - - - (600,986) -
34,242 260 16,267 2,712 - 53,481 -
590,183 1,066,115 562,924 (182,120) - 2,037,102 (2,050)
- - - 1,250,000 - 1,250,000 450,000
- 1,842 - - - 1,842 10,801
- (190,230) - - - (190,230) 27,108
(61,727) (276,383) (131,486) (21,592) - (491,188) (46,529)
(4,847) (6,923) (4,708) (1,523) - (18,001) (4,846)
(19,590) (1,331,723) (57,904) 14,075 - (1,395,142) 85,227
800,000 (475,000) (4,000,000) - - (3,675,000) -
(6,119) 65,148 (47,393) (2,064) - 9,572 (2,513)
- - 4,667 - 4,667

10,558 142,957 (5,720) - - 147,795 -
(87,505) 61,381 (12,973) 13,512 - (25,585) (70,741)
38,507 83,272 37,405 12,102 - 171,286 38,505
- - - - - - (920,181)
(14,808) 58,552 16,641 7,079 - 67,464 (12,490)
73,290 104,701 71,197 23,034 - 272,222 73,291
3,030,762 1,654,018 (3,142,728) 1,213,430 - 2,755,482 (214,317)
$ (309,299) $ 2,166,795 $  (3,305,039) § 468,415 $ (140,920) $  (1,120,048) $ (25,780)
$ 839,506 $ 256,653 § 545,220 § - 8 - 8 1,641,379 $ -
$ 3,613,714 8 322,658 § - 8 - 8 - 8 3,936,372 $ -
$ (8,305) $ (35,562) § (34,149) § (25,938) § - 8 (103,954)  § -

See notes to basic financial statements.
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City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalent
Receivables:
Other receivables
Contributions
Accrued investment income

Total receivables
Other Asset

Investments:
U.S. Government Securities
Corporate bonds
Mortage backed securities
Hedge funds
Mutual funds - fixed income
Mutual funds - equity
Common stocks
Other

Total investments

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
DROP Payable
Accounts payable

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Prepaid City contribution

Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION RESTRICTED FOR PENSION BENEFITS

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Pension
Trust
Funds

4,979,732
393,057

676,043
630,054

1,699,154

288,001

18,364,340
46,050,060
2,923,759
2,968,198
2,552,374
10,413,748
107,288,696
1,009,200

191,570,375

198,537,262

1,034,183
362,780

1,396,963

233,217

233,217

196,907,082




City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Pension
Trust
Funds
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
City $ 6,623,070
Employees 1,060,727
State 867,453
Total contributions 8,551,250
Investment income:
Investment earnings 5,557,064
Net appreciation in fair value of investments 7,874,789
Less investment expenses (1,080,349)
Net investment income 12,351,504
Other revenues 11,220
Total additions 20,913,974
DEDUCTIONS
Pension benefits 11,602,381
Refunds 51,162
Administrative expenses 404,341
Total deductions 12,057,884
Change in net position 8,856,090
NET POSITION RESTRICTED FOR PENSION BENEFITS
Beginning of year 187,703,627
Prior period adjustment 347,365
Beginning - as restated 188,050,992
End of year $ 196,907,082

See notes to basic financial statements.
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City oFr HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Homestead, Florida (the City) located in Miami-Dade County is a municipal entity
established under the Home Rule Charter in 1913 and provides a full range of services to its citizens.
The City operates under a council-manager form of government in which the Council acts as the
policy making arm of the City and the City Manager acts as the chief executive. The powers of the
City Council include the ability to enact legislation, adopt budgets, determine policies and appoint
the City Manager, City Attorney, Council Auditor (Internal Auditor) and City Clerk.

The basic financial statements of the City have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
governmental accounting and financial reporting. The more significant of the City’s accounting
policies are described below.

A. FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, which establishes standards for defining and reporting on the financial reporting entity. The
financial reporting entity consists of the primary government, organizations for which the primary
government is financially accountable and other organizations for which the nature and significance
of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting
entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The accompanying financial
statements present the City and its component units which are entities for which the City is
considered to be financially accountable. The City (the primary government) is considered
financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing body and
(1) it is able to impose its will on that organization or (2) there is a potential for the organization to
provide specific financial benefit to or impose specific financial burden on the City.

Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the
government’s operations. Other than the operations of the primary government, the accompanying
statements include:

1) Homestead Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) as a blended component unit. The
CRA was created under Chapter 163 Florida Statutes, The Community Redevelopment
Act. This entity is included as a blended component unit in the financial statements of the
City because (1) the CRA’s governing body is the same as the governing body of the City
and (2) management of the City has operational responsibility for the CRA.
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City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A. FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY (Continued)

2) Homestaed Station QALICB, Inc., as a blended component unit. Homestead Station QALICB,
a Florida nonprofit corporation, was incorporated on March 1, 2018, and was classified by the
Internal Revenue Service as tax-exempt under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code. The purpose of the Homestead Station QALICB is to carry out the charitable public
purposes of the City of Homestead (the “City”), including more specifically, to support the
establishment of a mixed-use facility as a vital piece of economic development in the City.
Homestead Station QALICB’S fiscal year end is June 30.

Homestaed Station QALICB is considered to be a special-purpose governmental entity
engaged only in business-type activities for the purpose of applying accounting and financial
reporting standards; that is, the Governemntal Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) has
jurisdiction over the organization’s accounting standards.

This organization is included as a blended component unit in the financial statements of the
City because 1) the majority of its officials are appointed by the City and 2) the organization
is fiscally dependent on the City and there is a potential for the organization either to provide
specific financial benefits, or impose specific financial burdens on the City.

For FY2018, the City’s financial statements include Homestead Station QALICB’s financial
statements for the period from March 1, 2018 (inception) to June 30, 2018.

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements consist of the government-wide financial statements and fund
financial statements. Both sets of statements distinguish between the governmental and business-
type activities of the City.

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and
its component units. The statement of net position reports all financial and capital resources of the
City’s governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities are those supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues. Business-type activities rely to a significant extent on fees
and charges for services provided.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a

-38-



City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements. All remaining nonmajor funds are aggregated and
reported as other governmental or enterprise funds, as appropriate.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges
between the City’s business-type activities and various other functions of the City. Elimination of
these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions
concerned.

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION

Government-Wide Financial Statements - The government-wide financial statements are
reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as
are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants
and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met.

Fund Financial Statements - Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the
current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to
be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures
are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments,
are recorded only when payment is due.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION (Continued)

Property taxes, franchise fees, business taxes, and interest income associated with the current fiscal
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of
the current fiscal period since they are measurable and available. Revenues and receivables for
expenditure driven grants are recognized when the qualifying expenditures are incurred. All other
revenue items (licenses and permits, charges for services and miscellaneous revenues) are recorded
as revenue when cash is received by the City because they are generally not measurable until
actually received.

Proprietary fund financial statements distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-
operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenues of the City’s proprietary funds are charges to
customers for services. Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of services,
administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting
this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate
accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for using a separate set of self-
balancing accounts, which comprise its assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources, fund equities, revenues and expenditures or expenses. Fund
accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by
segregating transactions related to certain government functions or activities.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America set forth minimum
criteria (percentage of the assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources, revenues or expenditures/expenses of either fund category or the governmental and
enterprise combined), for the determination of major funds. The non-major funds are presented in
one column in the fund financial statements.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund

The general fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all of the financial resources
of the general government, except for those required to be accounted for in another fund. Revenue
is derived primary from property taxes, utility taxes, state and federal distributions and other
intergovernmental revenue. The general operating expenditures, fixed charges and capital outlay
costs that are not paid through other funds are paid from the General Fund.
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C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION (Continued)

Homestead Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA), formerly known as the Homestead
Economic and Rebuilding Organization (HERO)

This special revenue fund is used to account for monies received from Tax Increment Financing
(TIF) from the City of Homestead and Miami-Dade County for use in the area designated as the
CRA.

Impact Fees Fund
This fund was established to account for the receipt and expenditure of impact fees assessed on
residential and non-residential new developments.

Multimodal Transit Center Fund
This capital project fund is used to account for the costs associated with constructing of a parking
garage/retail facility (Multimodal Transit Center) .

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

Water & Sewer Fund
This fund accounts for the operating activities related to the water and sewer utility.

Electric Utility Fund
This fund accounts for the operating activities related to the electric utility.

Solid Waste Fund
This fund accounts for the operating activities related to solid waste operations.

Homestead Station QALICB
This fund accounts for the operating activities related to Homestead station QALICB operations.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds

The internal service funds account for operations that provide services to other departments or
agencies of the City, or to other governments, on a cost reimbursement basis. The City maintains
three internal service funds classified as governmental activities; Fleet, Health Insurance and Other
Self-Insurance which includes Property, Liability and Worker’s Compensation insurance funds.
The City maintains one internal service fund, Customer Service, which is classified as a business-
type activity.
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C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION (Continued)

Fiduciary Funds

The fiduciary funds are accounted for in the same manner as the proprietary funds, using the same
measurement focus and basis of accounting. The fiduciary funds account for the assets and
operations of the City’s five pension plans. Plan member contributions are recognized in the period
in which the contributions are paid. Employer contributions are recognized when due and the
employer has made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the Plan.

D. GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD (GASB) PROUNCEMENTS

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, the City implemented GASB Statement No.75
“Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions .”” The
primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and
local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions (other postemployment
benefits or OPEB). It also improves information provided by state and local governmental
employers about financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities. This Statement
results from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and
financial reporting for all postemployment benefits (pensions and OPEB) with regard to providing
decision-useful information, supporting assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and
creating additional transparency. This Statement replaces the requirements of Statements No. 45,
Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions, as amended, and No. 57, OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-
Employer Plans, for OPEB. Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit
Plans Other Than Pension Plans, establishes new accounting and financial reporting requirements
for OPEB plans.

E. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND NET
POSITION OR FUND BALANCE

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, and all highly liquid
investments with maturities of three months or less when purchased. Resources of all funds,
except for Multimodal Transit Center, New Police Building, Cybrary and Homestead Station
QALICB, have been combined into a pooled cash and investment system for the purpose of
maximizing earnings. Pooled cash and cash equivalents are classified as “Cash and Cash
Equivalents” in the Statement of Net Position. Interest earned on pooled cash and investments is
allocated monthly based upon the month end equity or fund balances of the respective funds.
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E. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND NET
POSITION OR FUND BALANCE (Continued)

2.

Investments

State statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, its agencies and
instrumentalities, commercial paper, corporate bonds, repurchase agreements, State Treasurer’s
Investment Pool and the Florida Municipal Investment Trust. City investments are recorded in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, which
establishes a hierarchy based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset.

The City’s government securities and corporate bonds have fair value measurements using level
1 and 2 valuation inputs using pricing models maximizing the use of observable inputs for
similar securities. There are no assets valued using non-recurring fair value measurements.
Money market mutual funds are reported at amortized cost.

. Receivables and Payables

All trade and other receivables are shown net of an allowance for estimated uncollectible
amounts. Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to other funds” or “due
from other funds”. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal
balances”. As of September 30, 2018, the City reports internal balances of $4,714,467.

Transactions to transfer revenue or contributions between funds are recorded as transfers in or
transfers out.

Prepaid Costs

Prepaid costs are payments for expenditures/expenses that are applicable to future accounting
periods and are reported as prepaid costs in both government-wide and fund financial statements.
The cost of prepaid costs is recorded using the consumption method whereby expenditures/expenses
are recorded when consumed rather than when purchased.

Inventories

The supplies and merchandise inventories as well as diesel fuel and gasoline are recorded at cost
using the weighted average method. Perpetual inventory records are maintained and adjusted
annually to physical inventory amounts as of September 30™ of each year. Inventory is reported
using the consumption method whereby inventories are recorded as expenditures/expenses when
used.
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E. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND NET
POSITION OR FUND BALANCE (Continued)

6. Deferred Power Cost Adjustment

The City’s Electric Utility Fund capitalized its power cost adjustment in accordance with
accounting standards which in part state that a rate-regulated utility should capitalize a cost if it
is probable that, through the ratemaking process, there will be a corresponding increase or
decrease in future revenues.

7. Restricted Assets

Certain of the City’s assets are required to be segregated as to use and are therefore identified
as restricted assets. Restricted assets include resources subject to externally imposed restrictions
such as creditors, grantors, laws and regulations. Restricted assets are also set aside to make debt
service payments and for customer deposits. All applicable assets in the governmental funds and in
the enterprise funds have been restricted in amounts sufficient to meet restrictive purposes.

8. Capital Assets

Assets, whether tangible or intangible, with an initial, individual cost of $1,000 or more and an
estimated useful life of more than one year are classified as capital assets. Property, plant and
equipment, and certain infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks), are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements.

Capital assets are recorded at actual cost or estimated cost where no historical records exist.
Donated capital assets are valued at their acquisition value on the date received. Major outlays
for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. The costs of
normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset
lives are expensed as incurred.

Capital assets of the City are depreciated using the straight line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Estimated Useful Lives
(Years)
Buildings and building improvements 10-50
Utility plant and systems 20-50
Furniture, fixtures and equipment and other improvements 3-10
Infrastructure 40-50
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9.

10.

11.

12.

Deferred Outflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will
not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure) until then. Currently, the
government has three items that qualify for reporting in this category: the fair value of the
interest rate swap agreements for derivative instruments, which is reported only in the
government-wide statement of net position, OPEB ouflows which is a GASB-75 term for
actuarial losses, and pensions outflows which is pension contributions made subsequent to the
measurement date, which will be recognized in the following year.

Deferred Inflows of Resources

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows
of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so
will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. Currently, the City
has two items that qualify for reporting in this category: OPEB inflows which is a GASB-75
term for actuarial gains, and pension inflows which is the difference between the expected and
actual pension expenses which is amortized over the investment terms of the pension assets.
These amounts are deferred and will be recognized as revenue in the period that the amounts
meet the recognition criteria.

Unearned Revenues

Inflows that do not meet the criteria for revenue recognition, such as business tax receipts,
miscellaneous receivables, grants, hurricane fees and lease payments received in advance are
classified as liabilities and recorded as unearned revenue in the government-wide and the fund
financial statements.

Compensated Absences

Employees earn vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on length of service. Upon
separation from service, employees are paid the value of their accumulated vacation and unused
sick leave within certain limits. All vacation and sick leave pay is accrued when incurred in the
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. In the governmental funds, a
liability is recorded only for leave that has matured. The fund in which the employee’s payroll
expense is recorded, is used to liquidate such amounts, or primarily the General Fund when
related to governmental activities.
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13. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement
of net position. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. In
the governmental fund financial statements, bond proceeds, premiums, and discounts are
recognized during the period in which the bonds are issued.

Issue costs, even if withheld from the net proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures/expenses in the year incurred.

14. Net Position/Fund Balances

Net position is the result of assets and deferred outflows of resources less liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources. The net position of the government-wide and proprietary funds
are categorized as net investment in capital assets (capital assets reduced by the accumulated
depreciation and any outstanding debt incurred to acquire, construct or improve those assets
excluding unexpended debt proceeds), restricted or unrestricted. The first category represents
net investments related to property, plant, equipment and infrastructure. The restricted
category represents the balance of assets restricted by requirements of revenue bonds and
other externally imposed constraints or by legislation in excess of the related liabilities
payable from restricted assets. Unrestricted net position consists of all net position that does
not meet the definition of either of the other two components.

The City classifies fund balance in accordance with GASB Statement No. 54 ““Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions.” This statement enhances the usefulness
of fund balance information by providing clearer fund balance classifications that can be more
consistently applied and by clarifying the existing governmental fund type definitions. In the
fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund balance classifications that
comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor
constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent.

The City reports the following fund balance classifications:
Nonspendable fund balance. Nonspendable fund balances are amounts that cannot be spent
because they are either (a) not in spendable form-such as inventories or prepaid costs or (b)

legally or contractually required to be maintained intact - such as a trust that must be retained
in perpetuity.
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15.

Restricted fund balance. This classification reflects the constraints on resources either (a)
imposed externally by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed fund balance. These amounts can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to
constraints imposed by formal action of the City’s highest level of decision-making authority.
The City Council is the highest level of decision-making authority that can, by adoption of a
resolution or an ordinance (equally binding), commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation
remains in place until the City Council removes or revises the limitation by taking the same type
of action (the adoption of another resolution or ordinance). This classification also includes
contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources in the fund have been specifically
committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements.

Assigned fund balance. This classification reflects the amounts constrained by the City’s
“intent” to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The City’s policy
is that the Council and City Manager have the authority to assign amounts to be used for specific
purposes. The Council may also assign fund balance as it does when appropriating fund balance
to cover the gap between estimated revenue and appropriations in the subsequent year’s
appropriated budget. The City Council authorizes assignments to the City Manager by the
adoption of an ordinance. Unlike commitments, assignments generally only exist temporarily. In
other words, an additional action does not normally have to be taken for the removal of an
assignment. Assigned fund balances include all remaining amounts (except negative balances)
that are reported in governmental funds, other than the General Fund, that are not classified as
nonspendable and are neither restricted nor committed.

Unassigned fund balance. This fund balance is the residual classification for the General
Fund. It is also used to report negative fund balances in other governmental funds.

Net Position Flow Assumption

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and
unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted - net position and
unrestricted - net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a
flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be
applied. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the
government’s policy to consider restricted - net position to have been depleted before
unrestricted - net position is applied.
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16. Fund Balance Flow Assumptions

17.

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and
unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In order
to calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund
balance in the governmental fund financial statements a flow assumption must be made about
the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the government’s policy to
consider restricted fund balance to have been depleted before using any of the components of
unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the components of unrestricted fund balance can be
used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first, followed by assigned fund
balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last, unless the City Council has provided otherwise
in its commitment or assignment actions by either ordinance or resolution.

Fund Balance Policy

Commencing with the fiscal year beginning on October 1, 2004 and thereafter, the City
Council adopted an ordinance which required the General Fund to maintain a minimum fund
balance in an amount which is at least equal to ten percent (10%) of the general fund budgeted
revenues for the fiscal year and report this amount as “required reserve” under committed fund
balance. Monies from the committed fund balance may be utilized under circumstances in which
unforeseen events prohibit other budgeted funds from being timely available to meet the
expenditures of the City and it is determined by the affirmative vote of five (5) members of the
City Council to be necessary to temporarily allocate and expend such monies. However, any
committed fund balance monies which are so utilized shall be replenished pursuant to the budget
for the next ensuing fiscal year so that the committed fund balance is maintained at the percent
level described above. Any action to establish, modify or rescind classifications would be taken
through the adoption of either an ordinance or resolution by the City Council.

F. OTHER SIGNIFICANT POLICIES

1. Utility Billings

Utility customers are billed monthly on a cycle basis. Unbilled revenue is recognized in the
accompanying financial statements based upon estimates of revenue for services rendered
between billing cycle dates and fiscal year end.
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2. Rebatable Arbitrage

The City has elected the option of treating rebatable arbitrage as a reduction of investment
income. However, for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, there was no rebatable

arbitrage required to be recorded.

3. Property Taxes

Property taxes (ad valorem taxes) are assessed on January 1 (the lien date) and are billed and
payable November 1. They are due March 31 and become delinquent April 1. On June 1,
delinquent taxes are offered for sale in the form of tax certificates. Assessed values are
established by the Miami-Dade County Property Appraiser for all properties in the County at
approximate fair market value. The County bills and collects all property taxes for the City.
The assessed value of property at January 1, 2017, upon which the 2017-2018 levy was based

was approximately $2.61 billion.

Under Florida law, the assessment of all properties and the collection of all county, municipal,
school district and special district property taxes are consolidated in the offices of the County
Property Appraiser and County Tax Collector. The City is permitted by Article 7, Section 8§ of
the Florida Constitution to levy taxes up to 10 mills ($10 per $1,000 of assessed valuation) for
general governmental services other than general obligation debt service. To the extent required
by voter approved general obligation debt, unlimited amounts may be levied to pay debt service.
The millage rate levied to finance general governmental services for the 2017-2018 fiscal year
was 5.9215 mills ($5.9215 per $1,000 of assessed valuation) and 0.5575 mills for the debt

service.

4. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets, liabilities, deferred inflows/outflows
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual

results could differ from those estimates.
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5. Procurement Authorization Limits

Prior to the execution of any purchase order where the total amount to be expended is greater
than $25,000 but not greater than $35,000, City Council approval and a minimum of three
vendors’ quotations must be obtained. Where the sums to be paid for the purchase of such
supplies, materials, equipment or improvements or services is in excess of $35,000, no contract
shall be entered into until public invitation to bid shall have been published one (1) time in a
newspaper published in Miami-Dade County and of general circulation in the City. The notice
shall be published as required by law. In all cases, such bids shall be awarded to the lowest and
most responsible bidder, subject to the right of the City to reject any and all bids which shall be
specifically reserved in such advertisements, and subject also to the right of the City to award
bids and contracts to such bidders as the City Council may desire, notwithstanding that the award

is to a bidder other than the low bidder. Notice may also be posted electronically.

6. Encumbrances

Budgets in governmental funds are encumbered upon issuance of purchase orders, contracts or
other forms of legal commitments. While appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year, the
succeeding year's budget amendment ordinance specifically provides for the reappropriation of

year-end encumbrances.

NOTE 2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

A. DEPOSITS

In addition to insurance provided by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation, deposits are
held in banking institutions approved by the State Treasurer of the State of Florida to hold public
funds. Under Florida Statutes Chapter 280, Florida Security for Public Deposits Act, the State
Treasurer requires all Florida qualified public depositories to deposit with the Treasurer or another
banking institution eligible collateral. In the event of a failure of a qualified public depository, the
remaining public depositories would be responsible for covering any resulting losses. Accordingly,
all amounts reported as deposits are deemed as insured or collateralized with securities held by the

City or its agent in the City’s name.

-50-



City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

B. INVESTMENTS - CITY

The City is authorized to invest in those instruments authorized by the Florida Statutes, and the
City’s investment policy, including obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. Government Agencies
and instrumentalities, corporate notes and bonds, commercial papers and certain money market
mutual funds.

At fiscal year end, the City had the following deposits and investments:

Pooled Investments Maturity Fair Value or ~ Rating
Amortized Cost  (Moody's)
Money Market Mutual Funds Daily $ 1,634,169
U.S. Government Agencies:
Federal Home Loan Bks Step Up JR-9020 10/27/2020 1,965,560 AAA
Federal Home Loan MTG Corp Medium Term Notes 2020 4,452,015 AAA
Federal Home Loan MTG Corp Medium Term Notes 2021 5,902,190 AAA
Federal Nat'1 Mtg Assn Medium Term Notes 2/26/2021 1,491,165 AAA
Government National Mortgage Association I Guaranteed Mortgage Pass Thru Certificates ~ 5/20/2039 78,465 AAA
Government National Mortgage Association Il Guaranteed Mortgage Pass Thru Certificates ~ 9/20/2040 178,122 AAA
Government National Mortgage Association I Guaranteed Mortgage Pass Thru Certificates 2041 1,158,177 AAA
Small Business Administration Guaranteed Loan Pool Certificates 10/22/2022 268,463 AAA
Small Business Administration Guaranteed Loan Pool Certificates 2023 279,472 AAA
Small Business Administration Guaranteed Loan Pool Certificates 2/25/2024 148,224 AAA
Small Business Administration Guaranteed Loan Pool Certificates 2026 284,077 AAA
Small Business Administration Guaranteed Loan Pool Certificates 2027 436,967 AAA
Small Business Administration Guaranteed Development Participation Debt 11/1/2027 162,245 AAA
Small Business Administration Guaranteed Development Participation Certificate 9/1/2028 247,725 AAA
Small Business Administration Guaranteed Development Participation Debt 6/1/2031 365,076 AAA
Small Business Administration Guaranteed Development Participation Certificate 7/112031 406,650 AAA
Small Business Administration Guaranteed Development Participation Debt 4/1/2033 516,734 AAA
Municipal Bonds:
Delaware ST Taxable Ser C Build 7/1/2019 502,630 AAA
New York St Environmental Facs 7/15/2022 954,800 AAA
Corporate Bonds:
Royal Bk CDA GTD BD 9/23/2019 993,400 Aaa
Toronto Dominion BK ONT 144A 4/2/2020 983,020 Aaa
International FIN Corp Medium Term Notes 2021 2,932,120 AAA
Certificates of Deposit 3,492,147
Total Investments 29,834,213
Deposits 7,808,963
Pooled Investments $ 37,643,176
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B.

C.

INVESTMENTS - CITY (Continued)

Proceeds from a bonds issuance on September 11, 2014 for the construction of the New Police
Building, proceeds from a bonds issuance on September 14, 2017 for the construction of the
Multimodal Transit Center, proceeds from a HUD Section 108 loan for the Cybrary project,
escrow accounts for unspent proceeds from equipment financing, as well as Homestead Station
QALICB’s cash & cash equivalent and restricted cash are not part of the City’s pooled cash &
investments and their balances as of September 30, 2018 are as follow:

Maturity Fair Value or
Amortized Cost
Money Market Mutual Funds Daily  § 21,988,524
Deposits 16,064,870
Sub-total not pooled cash & investments : 38,033,394
Equipment financing escrow 1,764,119
Total Cash and Investments for the City: $ 77460,689

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES - CITY

The City invests in various investment securities. Investments are exposed to various risks, such
as interest rate, custodial and credit risk. Due to the level of risk associated with investments and
the level of uncertainty related to changes in the value of investments, it is at least reasonably
possible that changes in risks in the near term would materially affect balances and the amounts
reported in the financial statements. The City, through its investment advisor, monitors the
investments and the risks associated therewith on a regular basis, which the City believes minimizes
these risks.

1. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk exists when there is a possibility that changes in interest rates could adversely
affect an investment’s fair value. The City limits its exposure to fair value losses from rising
interest rates by limiting the duration of the securities in which the City invests. The City’s
investment policy limits the duration of investments to be 10 years or less. There were no
investments in the City’s portfolio that exceed the maximum durations at September 30, 2018.
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NOTE 2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

C. RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES - CITY (Continued)

2. Custodial Credit Risk

Custodian credit risk is the risk that in the event of a failure of counterparty, the City will not be
able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are held by the
counterparty. The City does not have any investments in the possession of counterparties; all
are held by the master custodian under the City’s name.

3. Credit Risk

Credit risk exists when there is a possibility the issuer or other counter-party to an investment
may be unable to fulfill its obligations. The City’s investment policy requires all fixed income
investment vehicles to be rated in one of the two highest rating categories by Moody’s Investors
Service, Inc., Standard and Poor’s Corporation or Fitch Investor Services at the time of purchase.
All City’s investments are rated within the policy guidelines.

4. Concentration of Credit Risk

In addition to describing the credit risk of investments in the portfolio, governmental entities
need to disclose the concentration of any single investment type or holding per single issuer.
The City’s investment policy allows investment concentrations in various percentages for
different types of investments. The investments held at year end are all within the allowable
percentages.

The following summarizes the City’s policy on the allowable and the actual concentration in each
investment type on September 30, 2018:

Policy Actual

Investment Type Maximum Investment

Money Market Mutual Funds 100% 30.5%
U.S. Government Agency Securities (Bonds & ABS) 75% 23.7%
Obligations Issued by any State of the U.S. (Municipal Bonds) 50% 1.9%
Collateralized Variable Bonds (Corporate Bonds) 20% 6.3%
Certificates of Deposit 100% 4.5%
Deposits (includes equipment financing escrow) 100% 33.1%
100.0%
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NOTE 2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

C. RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES - CITY (Continued)
4. Concentration of Credit Risk (Continued)

GASB Statement 40 requires disclosure when 5% or more of the portfolio is invested in any one
issuer. At September 30, 2018, the City held the following concentrations:

Percentage
Issuer of Portfolio
Federal Home Loan MTG Corp Medium Term Notes 13.4%

The concentrations listed are within the City’s investment policy limits and the City does not
view the concentrations in excess of 5% to be an additional risk.

D. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT- CITY

GASB Statement No. 72 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established
by generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy categorizes the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three levels based on the extent to which
inputs used in measuring fair value are observable in the market.

e Level | inputs are quoted prices in active markets;

e Level 2 inputs are based on other significant observable inputs such as indices for fixed
income bonds and quoted prices for similar assets in markets that are not active;

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs.
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NOTE 2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

D. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT- CITY (Continued)
The following is a description of fair value techniques for the City’s investments:

Short-term investments, which consist of money market mutual funds, are reported at amortized
cost.

Debt securities consist primarily of negotiable obligations of the U.S.government and U.S.
government-sponsored agencies, preferred securities, and bond funds. These securities can
typically be valued using the close or last traded price on a specific date (quoted prices in active
markets). When quoted prices are not available, fair value is determined based on valuation models
that use inputs that include market observable inputs. These inputs included recent trades, yields,
price quotes, cash flows, maturity, credit ratings, and other assumptions based upon the specifics
of the investment's type.

The City has a central deposit custodian, Bank of New York Pershing. The custodian contracts
SIX Financial Company to obtain pricing on most securities.

The following summarizes the fair value hierarchy of the fair value investments for the City as of
September 30, 2018:

- U.S Government bonds of $13.81million are valued using observable market prices in active
markets (Level 2);

- Asset backed securities of $4.53million are valued using multi-demensional, collateral specific
spread/price/prepayment spread tables (Level 2);

- Municipal bonds of $1.46 million are valued using quoted market pricing model (Level 2);
- Corporate bonds of $1.98 million are valued using quoted market prices in active market (Level
1) and $2.93 million using quote market prices of similar assets (Level 2), totaling $4.9 million

in corporate bonds;

As of September 30, 2018, the City did not have any Level 3 investments.
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NOTE 2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

D. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT- CITY (Continued)

Fair Value Measurements Using

ted Prices i
Quoted Pries i Significant Other ~ Significant

Active Ma‘rkets Observable Unobservable
for Identical Tout Tiout
Assets puis pus
Investments by Fair value level 9/30/2018 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Debt Securities:
U.S. Government Bonds § 13810930 § - § 13810930 §
Asset Backed Securities 4,530,397 - 4,530,397
Municipal bonds 1457430 - 1457430
Corporate bonds 4,908,540 1,976,420 2,932,120
Total mvestments measured at fair value level § 24707297 § 1976420  § 22730877 $
Money markets (exempt) 23,622,693
Certificates of deposit (exempt) 3492747
Total investments § 51,822,737
Recociliation of Cash and Investments for the City:
Unrestricted Restricted Total
Total demand deposits $ 15130383 $ 8743450 § 23873333
Total equipment financing escrow - 1,764,119 1,764,119
Total cash and cash equivalents 15,130,383 10,507,569 25,637,952
Total investments measured at fair value level 23,955,656 751,641 24,707,297
Total money market mutual funds 1,634,169 21,988,524 23,622,693
Total certificates of deposits 3,000,000 492,747 3,492,747
Total investments 28,589,825 23,232912 51,822,737
Total cash and investments for the City @ 09/30/18 $ 43720208 $§ 33740481 S 77460689
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NOTE 3. RESTRICTED CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

Restricted and limited use assets of the City represent monies required or designated for debt
service, customer deposits and restricted under the terms of bond covenants, City ordinances or
grants.

The City had the following restricted assets at September 30, 2018:

Governmental activities:

Forfeiture $ 1,026,537
HERO debt service 305,976
Motorsports debt service and loan security 996,172
Fiber optic ring security 100,000
Equipment financing escrow 122,740
General obligation bonds debt service 142,717
General obligation bonds proceed 438,732
Taxable transportation system revenue bonds debt service 449,841
Taxable transportation system revenue bonds proceed 21,487,106
HUD Section 108 loan proceed 378,242

Subtotal governmental activities 25,448,063

Business-type activities:

Customer deposits 5,096,739
Electric utility bonds debt service 715,800
QALICB debt service reserve 838,500
Equipment financing escrow 1,641,379
Subtotal business-type activities 8,292418
Total restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 33,740,481
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(Continued)

Receivables as of September 30, 2018 for the City’s major and nonmajor funds in the aggregate,
including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts are as follows:

Homestead ~ Impact Other Internal

Governmental activities receivables: General CRA Fees  Governmental  Service Total
Utility Billed $ 301,792 § $ - - 301,792
Utility Unbilled 93,741 93,741
Franchise fees and taxes 2249454 - 2249454
Grant receivables - 3,082,338 3,082,338
Intergovernmental receivables - - 992,935 - 992,935
Miscellaneous 485,248 462 184,986 14,576 085,272
Gross receivables 3,130,235 462 4260,259 14,576 7405,532
Less allowance for uncollectibles 468,018 - - 468,018
Sub-Total: 2,001,017 462 460,259 14,576 6,936,914
Interest on investments 52,804 3579 34475 4839 95,097
Governmental activities receivables, net § 271441 § 4041 § 34475 §4265098 § 14576 § 7032611

Water & Sewer Electric Solid Other

Business-type activities receivables: Utilities Utility Waste  Proprietary Total
Utility Billed $ 3,502,059 § 15,644,819 § 3,364,887 $ 1,771,692 § 24,283,457
Utility Unbilled 1,004,249 4,115,008 384,208 56,449 5,559,914
Miscellaneous 40,328 78,172 527 - 119,027
Gross receivables 4,546,636 19,837,999 3,749,622 1,828,141 29,962,398
Less allowance for uncollectibles 1,549,754 6,098,964 1,657,195 1,204,704 10,510,617
Sub-Total: 2,996,882 13,739,035 2,092427 623437 19,451,781
Interest on investments 1,226 3,049 904 8,116 13,295
Business-type activities receivables, net $ 2,998,108 § 13,742,084 § 2,093,331 § 631,553 § 19,465,076
Total government-wide net receivables § 26,497,687
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NOTE 5. ENCUMBRANCES

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts and purchase orders issued
for good and services. Significant encumbrances as of September 30, 2018 are as follows:

Significant encumbrances
Major funds:
General Fund $ 1,216,000
Impact Fees Fund 1,497,000
Multimodal Transit Center 24,941,000
Homestead Community Redevelopment Agency 217,000
Total major funds 27,871,000
Other governmental funds:
Grant Fund 1,645,000
People Transportation Plan Fund 2,045,800
Cybrary Fund 4,685,000
Others governmental funds 999,600
Total other governmental funds 9,375,400
Total encumbrances $ 37246400
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NOTE 6. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund Transfers

Transfers Out
Other ~ Water Other  Customer
General Homestead Governmental & ~ Electric  Solid ~ Enterprise ~ Service
Transfers In Fund ~ Multimodal ~ CRA Funds ~ Sewer Uty — Waste Fund Fund Total
General Fund $ - § -$ -8 248 -5 -3 -5 S T A/ ()
General Fund 2,967,608 - 2967608 (2)
Impact Fees Fund - 32181 381 (3)
Multimodal Transit Center 287834 W1834 4
CRA 93,500 - 93,500 (5)
Other Governmental Funds 5,100,000 - 300,000 5400000  (6)
Other Governmental Funds 498,756 - 147892 2246648 (7)
Other Governmental Funds 327500 327500 (8)
Other Governmental Funds 954,008 - - - - 954008 (9)
Other Governmental Funds 290,392 12874 35621 23821 6437 25747 394892 (10)
Water & Sewer Fund 6,929 6929 (11)
Electric Fund 800,000 800,000 (12)
Solid Waste Fund - 182,000 182,000 (13)
Homestead Station QALICB 1,150,000 1,150,000 (14)
Total $ 7420482 § 3921616 $327500 § 2,082,797 $12874 $ 35621 $323821 § 995366 § 25,747 § 15145824
(1) Transfers of $2,724 from Seminole Theatre to General Fund was to cover the cost of a capital

2)

)
4)
)
(6)

(7

)
)

asset.

Transfer of $2,967,608 from Multimodal to General Fund was to cover costs of capital assets
transferred to Homestead Station QALICB.

Transfer of $332,181 from Grant to Impact Fees was to fund Losner Park capital project.
Transfer of $287,834 from General Fund to Multimodal was to fund portion of land purchased.
Transfer of $93,500 from General Fund to CRA was to fund portion of land purchased.
Transfer totalling $5,400,000 from General Fund and Solid Waste into other governmental
fund was to fund the Hurricane Irmadisaster expenditures.

Transfer of $2,246,648 from General Fund and People Transportation Plan into other
governmental fund was for debt service payments.

Transfer of $327,500 from CRA into other governmental funds was for debt service payments.
Transfer of $954,008 from Multimodal to other governmental funds was to return unused funds
from a prior year transfer.
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NOTE 6. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Interfund Transfers (Continued)

(10) Transfers of $394,892 from General Fund, Water & Sewer, Electric, Solid Waste and other
enterprise funds into other governmental funds was to fund the cost of different capital
projects.

(11) Transfer of $6,929 from Ultilities Repair, Replacement and Improvement Fund into Water &
Sewer Fund was to fund capital projects.

(12) Transfer of $800,000 from Utilities Repair, Replacement and Improvement Fund into Electric
Utility Fund was to fund capital projects.

(13) Transfer of $182,000 from Utilities Repair, Replacement and Improvement Fund into Solid
Waste Fund was to fund capital projects.

(14) Transfer of $1,150,000 from General Fund to Homestead Station QALICB as part of the
NMTC transactions.

Interfund Payables and Receivables

Interfund payables and receivables are used exclusively to eliminate negative pooled cash balances
of individual funds for purposes of financial statement reporting. For government-wide financial
statement presentation, the interfund payables and receivables are eliminated as part of interfund
activity.
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NOTE 6. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Interfund Payables and Receivables (Continued)

Individual interfund receivable and payable balances at September 30, 2018 are as follows:

Due from Due to
Other Funds Other Funds
General Fund $ 7,163,168 3 4,714,367
Major Governmental Funds:
Multimodal Transit Center (1) 4,714,367 668,801
Homestead Community Redevelopment Agency 600,000 -
Total Major Governmental Funds 5,314,367 668,801
Other Governmental Funds:
Sundries Grants - 1,780,000
Peoples' Transportation Plan 800,000 -
New Police Building Fund - 185,000
Capital Improvement Fund 300,000 -
Cybrary Fund 185,000 -
Homestead Miami Speedway 475,000 -
Total Other Governmental Funds 1,760,000 1,965,000
Total Governmental Funds 14,237,535 7,348,168
Major Proprietary Funds:
Water and Sewer - 3,300,000
Electric Utility - 6,425,000
Total Major Proprietary Funds - 9,725,000
Other Proprietary Funds:
Stormwater -
Utilities Repair, Replacement and Improvement 1,600,000 -
Total Other Proprietary Funds 1,600,000 -
Total Proprietary Funds 1,600,000 9,725,000
Internal Service Funds:
Other Self Insurance 3,880,000 -
Customer Services 1,610,000 -
Fleet Management 460,000 -
Total Internal Service Funds 5,950,000 -
Sub-total $ 21,787,535  $ 17,073,168
Total Interfund Balances as of September 30, 2018 $ 4,714,367

(1) Homestead Station QALICB fiscal year end is June 30, 2018. QALICB has a due
to other fund of $4,714,367 that happened after June 30, 2018.
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NOTE 7. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets activity for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Governmental activities: Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 47204711 $ 7,794 $ - § 47212505
Artworks 2,780 - 2,780
Construction in Progress 5917401 3,590,619 (a) 4,446,200 5,061,820
Total capital assets not being depreciated 53,124,892 3,598,413 4.446,200 52,277,105
Capital assets being depreciated:
Land improvements 232,492 - 232,492
Buildings and improvements 160,053,422 (a) 641,568 - 160,694,990
Other improvements 54,169,067 936,812 - 55,105,879
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 40,448,819 1,521,262 - 41,970,081
Infrastructure 118,580,871 - - 118,580,871
Total capital assets being depreciated 373,484,671 3,099,642 - 376,584,313
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements 14,996 9,583 - 24.579
Buildings and improvements 47,190,214 4,033,441 - 51,223,655
Other improvements 39,170,834 2,868,807 - 42,039,641
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 32,835,968 2495132 - 35,331,100
Infrastructure 74,617,583 2,605,333 - 77222916
Total accumulated depreciation 193,829,595 12,012,296 - 205,841,891
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 179,655,076 (8.912,654) - 170,742,422
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 232,779,968 $ (5314.241) $ 4446200 § 223,019,527

(@) Of $4,446,200 Construction in Progress, $509,828 was transferred to Buildings and Improvement and $3,936,372
was contributed to business-type activities.
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NOTE 7. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Beginning Ending
Business-type activities: Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 1,266,972 $ - $ - 8§ 1,266,972
Construction in Progress 3,642485 (a) 8424013 (c) 1,589,635 10,476,863
Total capital assets not being depreciated 4909457 8424013 1,589,635 11,743,835
Capital assets being depreciated:
Utility plant and systems 109,871,820  (b) 6,315,622 - 116,187,442
Total capital assets being depreciated 109,871,820 6,315,622 - 116,187,442
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Utility plant and systems 83,975,095 5,184,396 - 89,159,491
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 25,896,725 1,131,226 - 27,027,951
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 30,806,182 $ 9,555,239 $ 1,580,635 $§  38771,786

(a) Addition to construction in progress includes assets contributed from governmental activities of $1,561,519,

and C-I-P for Homestead Station QALICB of $4,731,866.

(b) Addition to utility, plant and systems includes assets contributed from governmental activities of $2,374,953.

(c) Contruction in Progress of $1,577,835 was transferred to Utility, plant and systems.

Depreciation expense for the fiscal year ended September 30,2018 has been recored as follows:

Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Parks and recreation
Capital assets held by the City's internal service funds are
charged to the various functions based on their usage of assets
Unallocated

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Water/Sewer
Electric
Solid waste
Other enterprise funds

Capital assets held by the City's internal service funds are
charged to the various functions based on their usage of assets

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities

-64-

Depreciation
Expense

$ 2,030,164
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NOTE 8. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Governmental Activities

The following is a summary of changes in governmental long-term liabilities at September 30, 2018:

Beginning  Prior Period
Balance Adpustment  Beginning
as to OPEB Balance Due
originally due to as Ending within
stated GASB 75 restated Additions ~ Reductions ~ Balance ~ One Year

Bonds payable:
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2014 $ 23040000 § - $ 23040000 § - § 465000 § 22575000 § 485,000
Plus: Unamortized Bond Premium 1,566,055 - 1,566,055 - 58,120 1,507,935 58,120

Total General Obligation Bonds, Series 2014 24,606,055 - 24606,055 - 53,020 24082935 543,120
Taxable Transportation System Revenue Bonds,

Sereis 2017 31,440,000 - 31,440,000 - 865000 30,575,000 645,000
Special Obligation Refunding Bonds 1,150,000 - 1,150,000 - 550,000 600,000 600,000
HERO Increment Revenue Refunding Bonds 852,609 - 852,009 - 284,203 568,406 284203

Total bonds payable 58,048,004 - 58,048,664 - 233 55826341 201303
Derivative instrument - Interest rate swap 43,190 - 43,190 - 34,549 8,041 -
Compensated absences 2,571,234 - 2571234 620,979 643,149 2,549,064 764,719
Equipment fiancing obligation 4158410 - 4158410 226,008 1,191,623 3,192,795 846,835
HUD section 108 loan - - - 194,000 194,000 - -
New Market Tax Credit (NMTC) bridge loan ** - - 12,829,100 - 12,829,100 -
New City Hall $10M loan 9,578,856 - 9,578,856 - 399,200 9,179,656 409497
Net pension liability 24755285 - 24755085 386,348 3228974 21913159
Total OPEB liability 6951598 1335932 887,530 358,722 - 8,046,252 -
Claims and judgements 4,528,528 - 4528528 964,044 1884225 3,608,347 893,730
Governmental activities long-term liabilities $ 110635765 § 1335932 § 111971,697 § 15579701 § 9798043 § 117,753,355 § 4,987,104

** See note on New Market Tax Credit (NMTC) Note 8 (1).

Note: Pension liabiltties, compensated absences and OPEB liabilities are generally liquidated by the General Fund.
Pension contributions are paid by the General Fund as actuarially determined by the actuaries of the pension plans.
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NOTE 8. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

Governmental Activities (Continued)

A. General Obligation Bonds, Series 2014

On May 13, 2014, the City’s voters approved a bond referendum for the issuance of $26 million in
General Obligation Bonds (“GO Bonds”). The GO Bonds were approved to be issued in an amount
not to exceed $21 million for the construction of the new police building and related improvements
for a temporary police facility, and not to exceed $5 million for the renovations to the Seminole
Theatre to provide a cultural arts center for the City.

The GO Bonds were issued on September 11, 2014. General obligation bonds are direct obligations
and pledge the full faith and credit of the City as a whole and not its individual funds. In each year
the debt is outstanding, an ad valorem tax will be levied equal to principal and interest due. These
bonds are issued as 30-year serial bonds, due in annual installments of $340,000 to $1,420,000 from
July 1, 2015 to July 1, 2044; interest rates at 3% to 5%.

Debt Service Requirements to Maturity:

Principal Interest Total
Fiscal year ending September 30:

2019 $ 485000 § 997488 § 1482488
2020 510,000 973,238 1,483,238
2021 535,000 947,738 1,482,738
2022 565,000 920,988 1,485,988
2023 590,000 892,738 1,482,738
2024-2028 3,390,000 4,031,688 7,421,688
2029-2033 4,015,000 3,407,200 7,422,200
2034-2038 4,875,000 2,543,350 7,418,350
2039-2043 6,190,000 1,231,650 7,421,650
2044 1,420,000 66,500 1,486,500
Sub-Total 22,575,000 16,012,578 38,587,578
Plus: Unamortized Bonds Premium 1,507,935 - 1,507,935

Total $ 24082935 § 16,012,578 § 40,095513
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NOTE 8. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

Governmental Activities (Continued)
B. Taxable Transportation System Revenue Bonds, Series 2017

On September 24, 2017, the City issued $31,440,000 Taxable Transportation System Revenue Bonds
to partially finance the cost of land acquisitions and construction for a parking garage/retail facility
(Multimodal Transit Center) in the City’s downtown.

The bonds are payable annually through July 1, 2047 in principal amounts ranging from
approximately $645,000 to $1,725,000. Interest rates on the bonds range from 1.671% to 4.194%.
The revenue bond indentures contain significant limitations and restrictions on annual debt service
requirements. The City continually monitors compliance with all significant limitations and
restrictions. The bonds will be repaid primarily from transportation surtax revenues and other non-
advalorem revenues.

Debt Service Requirements to Maturity

Principal Interest Total
Fiscal year ending September 30:
2019 $ 645000 $ 1,154363 § 1,799,363
2020 655,000 1,142,566 1,797,566
2021 670,000 1,128,562 1,798,562
2022 685,000 1,112,984 1,797,984
2023 700,000 1,095,346 1,795,346
2024-2028 3,835,000 5,149,596 8,984,596
2029-2033 4,580,000 4,413,011 8,993,011
2034-2038 5,545,000 3,442,562 8,987,562
2039-2043 6,765,000 2,222,516 8,987,516
2044-2047 6,495,000 694,946 7,189,946

$ 30575000 $ 21556452 § 52,131452
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NOTE 8. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

Governmental Activities (Continued)
C. Taxable Special Obligation Refunding Bonds

On August 3, 2003, the City issued $14,075,000 Taxable Special Obligation Refunding Bonds
(Homestead Motor Speedway Project (the Project)) to refinance a series of loans to the City from
the City of Gulf Breeze’s Florida Local Government Loan Program. The loans were made to finance
the acquisition, construction and equipping of the Project. The bonds are secured by a Trust Estate
as described in the indenture and are payable using lease payments from the motorsports lease
contract. Interest accrues at the floating interest rate of LIBOR, (pursuant to the terms of an Interest
Rate Swap agreement the City pays a fixed interest rate of 3.62%). Principal and interest are payable
through November 1, 2018.

D. Homestead Economic and Rebuilding Organization (HERO) Tax Increment Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2003

On June 18, 2003, the City refunded the balance of the Homestead Economic and Rebuilding
Organization (HERO) Increment Revenue Bonds, Taxable Series 1995 which had an outstanding
balance of $4,175,000 at the date of refunding, with the issuance of the Homestead Economic and
Rebuilding Organization (HERO) Tax Increment Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003. The
resources provided to the City were used to defease the Series 1995 bonds, fund a debt service
reserve account, pay costs of issuance and enter into an Interest Rate Swap agreement with respect
to the Series 2003 bonds. Homestead Economic and Rebuilding Organization (HERO) Tax
Increment Revenue Refinancing Bonds, Taxable Series 2003 at the floating interest rate of LIBOR
plus 1%, (pursuant to the terms of the Interest Rate Swap agreement the City pays a fixed interest
rate of 4.79%) maturing serially through April 30, 2020 in annual amounts of $284,203, are secured
by HERO net trust fund revenues and payable from the HERO/Tax Increment Debt Service Fund.

E. Interest Rate Swaps

Objective: Asa means to lower its borrowing costs, when compared against fixed-rate bonds at the
time of issuance, in 2003 the City entered into interest rate swaps in connection with its Series 2003
Taxable Special Obligation Refunding Bonds and its Series 2003 HERO Tax Increment Revenue
Refunding Bonds (the Bonds). The intention of the swaps was to effectively change the City’s
variable interest rate on the bonds to a fixed rate of 3.62% and 4.79%, respectively.

Terms: Based on the swap agreements, the City pays a fixed rate of 3.62% and 4.79% to the
counterparty to the swaps (SunTrust) and receives variable rate payments based on the interest rate.
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Governmental Activities (Continued)

E. Interest Rate Swaps (Continued)

Fair value: As of September 30, 2018, the Taxable Special Obligation Bonds swap had a negative
fair value of ($682). As of September 30, 2018, the HERO Increment Revenue Bonds swap had a
negative fair value of ($7,959). The negative fair values were determined using Mark-to-Market
Value and represents mid-market values. Pursuant to GASB Statement 53, the fair value of the swaps
has been included in the government-wide statement of net position as long term debt and a
corresponding deferred outflow of resources following hedge accounting.

Credit risk: As of September 30, 2018, the City was not exposed to credit risk because the swaps
had a negative fair value. However, should interest rates change and the fair value of the swap
become positive, the City would be exposed to credit risk in the amount of the derivative’s fair value.
The swap counterparty (SunTrust) was rated A2 by Moody’s Investors Service, BBB+ by Standard
and Poor’s and A- by Fitch Ratings.

Basis risk: Basis risk arises when different indices are used in connection with a derivative.
Municipal interest rate swaps are normally based on a fixed payment and an indexed variable receipt
instead of the actual variable debt payment. Any difference between the indexed variable receipt
and the actual market-determined variable rate paid on the bonds is called “basis risk.” The
execution of the swaps in 2003 with SunTrust (counterparty to the swap) exposed the City to Basis
and Termination Risk. Effective March 1, 2008, pursuant to a “market disruption™ as set forth in
the International Swap Dealers Association (ISDA) Master Agreement, the Floating Rate Index on
this transaction was converted from the Taxable Low Floater Rate to the Alternative Floating Index
(USD-LIBOR BBA).

Termination risk: The derivative contracts use the International Swap Dealers Association (ISDA)
Master Agreement, which includes standard termination events, such as failure to pay and
bankruptcy. The Schedule to the Master Agreements includes an “additional termination event”.
That is, the swap agreements may be terminated by the counterparty if (i) the Covered Indenture
terminates or ceases to be of full force and effect; or (ii) if the City fails to budget and appropriate
from non-ad valorem funds amounts sufficient to satisfy any amounts due the counterparty under
the agreement in any fiscal year. If the swaps are terminated, the variable-rate bonds would no longer
carry a synthetic interest rate. Also, if at the time of termination the swap has a negative fair value,
the City would be liable to the counterparty for a payment equal to the swap’s fair value.
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Governmental Activities (Continued)

E. Interest Rate Swaps (Continued)

The Taxable Special Obligation Bonds and the related swap agreement mature on November 1,
2018. The swap’s notional amount was $600,000 at September 30, 2018 and the rates were as

follows:

Taxable Special Obligation Bonds Terms
Interest rate swap:
Fixed payment to counterparty Fixed
Variable payment from counterparty USD-LIBOR BBA

Net interest rate swap payments
Variable-rate bond coupon payments
Synthetic interest rate on bonds

The HERO Increment Revenue Bonds and the related swap agreement mature on April 30, 2020.
The swap’s notional amount was $568,406 at September 30, 2018 and the rates were as follows:

HERO Increment Revenue Bonds Terms

Interest rate swap:
Fixed payment to counterparty Fixed
Variable payment from counterparty USD-LIBOR BBA plus 1%

Net interest rate swap payments
Variable-rate bond coupon payments
Synthetic interest rate on bonds
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Rates

3.62000
(2.15254)
1.46746
2.07000
3.53746

Percentage
Rates

4.79000
3.24219
1.54781
3.17100
4.71831
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Governmental Activities (Continued)

E. Interest Rate Swaps (Continued)

Swap payments and associated debt: As rates vary, variable-rate bond interest payments and net
swap payments will vary. Using rates as of September 30, 2018, debt service requirements of the
variable-rate debt and net swap payments, assuming current interest rates remain the same for their
term, are as follows:

Taxable Special Obligation Refunding Bonds

Variable Rate Bonds (1)
Interest Rate
Principal Interest Swap, Net Total
Year ending September 30:
2019 $ 600,000 $ 1,035 § 1,309 § 602,344

$§ 600,000 $ 1,035 $ 1,309 § 602,344

(1) Computed: Fixed rate (3.62%) less variable payment from counter party (2.15254%) times

amount outstanding.

Homestead Economic and Rebuilding Organization (HERQO) Tax Increment Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2003

Variable Rate Bonds (1)
Interest Rate
Principal Interest Swap, Net Total
Fiscal year ending September 30:
2019 $ 284203 § 14444 § 7,050 § 305,697
2020 284,203 5,332 2,603 292,138

$ 568406 § 19,776 $ 9,653 § 597,835

(1) Computed: Fixed rate (4.79%) less variable payment from counter party (3.24219%) times
amount outstanding.
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Governmental Activities (Continued)

E. Interest Rate Swaps (Continued)

Consistent Critical Terms

The City has evaluated the swap agreements using the consistent critical terms method and found

that both swap instruments meet the definition of effective cash flow hedges as follows:

Taxable Special Obligation Bonds

Interest Rate Swaps

Bond principal $600,000 Notional $600,000

Maturity of bonds 11/1/2018 Termination 11/1/2018

Benchmark interest rate LIBOR IM Variable payment LIBOR IM
(2.07000% @ 9/30/18) (2.15254% @9/30/18)

Floor or cap No Floor of cap No

Time mterval of reference rate Monthly Time mterval of reference rate 7 days

Frequency of rate resets Weekly Frequency of rate resets Weekly

Rate reset dates Wednesday Rate reset dates Wednesday

Coupon payment date 1st Wednesday of each Swap payment date First day of each month
month

HERO Increment Revenue Bonds Interest Rate Swaps

Bond principal $568,406 Notional $568,406

Maturity of bonds 4/30/2020 Termination 4/30/2020

Benchmark interest rate LIBOR plus 1% Variable payment LIBOR plus 1%
(3.17100%@ 9/30/18) (3.24219% @9/30/18)

Floor or cap No Floor of cap No

Time interval of reference rate Monthly Time mterval of reference rate  Monthly

Frequency of rate resets Monthly Frequency of rate resets Monthly

Rate reset dates Ist day of each month Rate reset dates Ist day of each month

Coupon payment date Last day of each January, Swap payment date Last day of each January,
April, July and October April, July and October
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Governmental Activities (Continued)
F. Compensated Absences

Compensated absences represent the portion of the applicable funds’ total estimated liability for
employees’ compensation for future absences. The estimated liability includes an accrual for salary
related costs (employer’s share of the social security and medicare taxes).

The estimated liability is measured using rates in effect at the balance sheet date; benefits are
computed at the current salary rates at the time of payment. Upon separation from the City service,
vacation leave is paid at 100% up to 360 hours for regular employees and 380 hours for police. Sick
leave is paid at 50% to 100% depending on years of service, up to 800 hours for regular employees
and 880 hours for police. The General Fund has primarily been used in prior years to liquidate the
liability for compensated absences for governmental activities.

G. Equipment Financing

The City enters into financing agreements periodically to finance the purchase of City vehicles and
other equipment such as computers. The value of capital assets acquired under new equipment
financing during fiscal year 2018 for governmental activities totaled $311,087 and none for
business-type activities. The capital assets acquired under the equipment financing remain as
collateral for repayment of the outstanding principal obligations. Future minimum payments and
the present value of net minimum payments at September 30, 2018 are as follows:

Governmental equipment financing:

Fiscal year ending September 30:

2019 $ 928,304
2020 781,595
2021 652,309
2022 452,321
2023 323,098
2024 285,455
Total minimum payments 3,423,082
Less amount representing interest 230,288
Present value of net minimum payments § 3,192,794
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Governmental Activities (Continued)

G. Equipment Financing (Continued)

Capital assets acquired through governmental equipment financings above are as follows:

Furniture, fixtures and equipment $ 5,190,708
Accumulated depreciation (2,187,471)
Total $ 3,003,237

Business-type equipment financing::

Fiscal year ending September 30:

2019 $ 311,942
2020 298,631
2021 298,631
2022 298,631
2023 298,631
2024-2026 323,926
Total minimum payments 1,830,392
Less amount representing interest 175,790
Present value of net minimum payments $ 1,654,602

Capital assets acquired through business-type equipment financing above are as follows:

Furniture, fixtures and equipment $ 127,109
Accumulated depreciation (114,393)
Total $ 12,716
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Governmental Activities (Continued)
H. HUD Section 108 Loan

In 2017, the City entered into an agreement with U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) for a Section 108 loan to provide funding for the new Library/Cybrary Project.
The total amount of the loan is $3,865,000, which is the maximum allowable amount based on the
City’s Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) allocation. The loan is repaid over 20 years
and the payments consist of principal (approximately $194,000 annually) and interest
(approximately $67,000 annually).

The City began drawing on the loan prior to the commencement of construction, $194,000 in
FY2017 and $194,000 in FY2018, in order to be in compliance with the loan requirements and to
keep the loan active. The drawdown period for the loan expires in September 2019, at which time it
will convert to a fixed term loan.

I.  New Market Tax Credit (NMTC) Bridge Loan

In June 2018, the City arranged New Market Tax Credit ("NMTC") financing toward the
construction of the parking garage project (the “Project”) in downtown Homestead. NMTC is a
program of the Community Development Financial Institutions Fund ("CDFI Fund"), a division of
the U.S. Department of the Treasury. Under the NMTC program, an investor can receive a federal
income tax credit for making a qualified equity investments ("QEI") in a Community Development
Entity ("CDEs") that has been certified and granted allocations by the CDFI Fund. The funds
provided by these investors are used to provide favorable debt or equity financing to qualified
borrowers in connection with qualifying projects located in low-income communities. The NMTC
compliance period is for seven years ("Compliance Period") during which time substantially all of
the QEI must be invested in qualified low income community investments (“QLICIs”), the majority
of which take the form of investments in borrowers that must maintain their status as a qualified
active low-income community business as specified in the Treasury Regulations.

The City formed Homestead Station QALICB, Inc. (the “QALICB”), a Florida nonprofit
corporation, in connection with the purchase and development of the Project. On June 27, 2018, the
City obtained a loan from Capital One, National Association, a national banking association, in the
principal amount of $12,829,100 (the “Bridge Loan”). Interest on the Bridge Loan accrues at a rate
of 1.00% plus LIBOR Rate per annum. Commencing on June 10, 2018 and continuing on the tenth
(10™) day of each March, June, September and December (the “Payment Dates”) thereafter through
and including June 27, 2020 (the “Maturity Date”), payments of interest only shall be due and
payable, partially in arrears and partially in advance for the calendar quarter in which each Payment
Date occurs. On the maturity date, the entire outstanding principal balance is due and payable. The
Bridge Loan is secured by the Collateral as defined in the Pledge and Security Agreement dated
June 27, 2018.
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Governmental Activities (Continued)

I.  New Market Tax Credit (NMTC) Bridge Loan (Continued)

The purpose of the Bridge Loan was to make a “Leverage Loan” of $10,766,000 to COCRF Investor
129, LLC with the remaining funds used for other purposes for the Project. The planned source of
funds to pay off the Bridge Loan is coming from the QALICB as it reimburses the City for

construction costs.

Future principal and interest payments are expected to be as follow:

Debt Service Requirements to Maturity:

Principal Interest Total
Fiscal year ending September 30:
2019 $ - § 335785 $ 335,785
2020 12,829,100 212,358 13,041,458

§ 12,829,100 § 548143 § 13,377,243

J.  $10 million Loan for New City Hall

On June 18, 2014, the City Council adopted a Resolution accepting the proposal from Capital
Bank, N.A. to provide a portion of the financing for the New City Hall in the form of a line of
credit in an amount not to exceed ten million dollars at a fixed rate of 1.6%.

The line of credit was fully drawn down upon the completion of the New City Hall. On August
7, 2016, the City converted the line of credit to a five-year bank loan at a fixed rate of 2.55%. The
bank loan has the option to be prepaid without penalty.

Debt Service Requirements to Maturity:

Principal Interest Total
Fiscal year ending September 30:
2019 $ 409497 § 229313 § 638,810
2020 420,058 218,752 638,810
2021 8,350,101 191,009 8,541,110

$ 9179656 § 639074 § 9.818,730
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Business-type Activities
The following is a summary of changes in business-type long-term liabilities at September 30, 2018:

Beginning ~ Prior Period
Balance Adjustment ~ Beginning
as to OPEB Balance Due
originally due to as Ending within
stated GASB 75 restated Additions  Reductions Balance One Year

Bonds payable:
Electric Utility Bond 2004 § 1597495 § -5 1597495 § - 495008 § 1102487 § 687424
Total bonds payable 1,597,495 - 1,597,495 - 495,08 1,102,487 087424
Compensated absences 1,522,196 - 1,522,196 823,787 806,636 1,539,347 461,804
Equipment financing obligation 39322 - 39322 1,641,379 26,099 1,654,602 262,993
Other long-term liabilities 1470,000 - 1470,000 - 490,000 980,000 490,000
Notes Payable - - 15,615,000 - 15,615,000
Net pension liability 6,361,747 - 6,361,747 74392 188,023 6,248,616
Total OPEB obligation 4408329 842,337 5,250,666 200,990 - 5451656

Buiness-type activities long-term liabilites  §  15399,080 § 842337 § 16241426 § 18356048 § 2005766 § 32,591,708 § 1902221

A. Electric Utility Bonds, Series 2004
On December 23, 2004, $8,000,000 of Electric Utility Bonds, Series 2004 were issued for use in the
construction of an electric substation. Interest is at 3.85% and the bonds are payable annually

through January 1, 2020 in principal amounts ranging from approximately $415,000 to $690,000.

Debt Service Requirements to Maturity

Principal Interest Total
Fiscal year ending September 30:
2019 $ 687424 $ 28,139 § 715,563
2020 415,063 2,347 417410
Total $ 1,102487 $ 30486 § 1,132,973
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Business-type Activities (Continued)
B. Other Long-Term Liabilities
Settlement Agreement

On July 26, 2011, the City Council approved a settlement agreement between the City and Michael
Latterner, as trustee of the Keys Gate Trust, to terminate the 1993 and 1989 Village of Homestead
(VOH) Agreements which imposed certain development obligations on the City and Latterner.
Under the settlement agreement, the City agreed to pay Latterner the sum of $4,900,000 in ten
installments of $490,000 each over a period of ten years with the first installment of $490,000 due
within 60 days after the Council approved the agreement. The payments are due annually beginning
on January 1, 2012 and on January 1 of each succeeding year until the balance is paid in full. The
City’s Water and Sewer Fund is used to fund these payments. Below is the schedule of the remaining
installment payments.

Fiscal year ending September 30:

2019 $ 490,000
2020 490,000
Total $ 980,000
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Pledged Revenues

The City issues debt that is secured by a pledge of specific revenues. Total pledged revenue that
collateralizes the repayment of principal and interest on the debt as of September 30, 2018 are as

follows:

Governmental Activities:

Source of Revenue Pledged
Description of debt
Purpose of debt

Current revenue pledged

Total debt service to maturity (1)

Term of commitment

Current year debt service

Percentage of debt service to
pledged revenues (current year)

Business-type Activities:

Source of Revenue Pledged

Description of debt

Purpose of debt

Current revenue pledged

Total debt service to maturity (1)

Term of commitment

Current year debt service

Percentage of debt service to
pledged revenues (current year)

Management Agreement Revenues

Taxable Special Obligation Refunding Bonds
Advance Refunding Gulf Breeze, Florida
Local Government Loan Program
$1,000,000

$602,344

2003-2019

$574,696

57%

Net Electric Utility Revenues
Electric Utility Bonds
Substation Construction
$3,471,226

$1,132,973

2004-2020

$554,775

16%

(1) Total future principal and interest payments. For variable rate debt, based on interest rate
mn effect at September 30, 2018. It is expected that debt service to maturity will approximate

the same percentage of debt service to pledged revenues on an annual basis through maturity.
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NOTE 9. OTHER LIABILITIES

Amounts recorded as other liabilities in the New City Hall Fund of $156,250 represent amounts
from the proceeds from the original sale of land held for estimated obligations related to the New
City Hall project.

NOTE 10. SELF-INSURANCE PROGRAMS

The City is exposed to various risks of loss including public liability, workers’ compensation and
property and casualty. The City administers its self-insurance program through two internal service
funds, the Workers” Compensation Fund and the Self-Insurance Fund, which are combined for
financial statement presentation. All operating departments of the City participate in the program
and make payments to the self-insurance funds. The self-insurance funds allocate the cost of
providing claims servicing and claims payment by charging these departments a pro rata share of
these costs, based on a percentage of each operating departments estimated current year payroll and
also by the actual property insurance paid by the Self-Insurance Fund.

The self-insurance fund liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have
been incurred but have not been reported. Because actual claims liabilities depend on a number of
factors, the process used in computing claims liability does not result in an exact amount. Claims
liabilities are re-evaluated annually to incorporate claims settlements, court decisions and
additional information as determined by a self-insurance actuarial review performed by outside
consultants.

A claims liability of approximately $3,608,000 was actuarially determined by an outside actuary at
September 30, 2018. Changes in liabilities during the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017
are presented in the following table:

Liability at Current Liability
Beginning Year Claim at End
Year Claims Payments of Year
2018
Worker’s compensation $ 1244563 $ 351474 $ 427,053 $ 1,168,984
General and auto Labilities 3,283,965 612,570 1,457,172 2,439,363
2017 Total $ 4528528 $ 964,044 $ 1,884225 $ 3,608,347
2017
Worker’s compensation $ 1,636294 $ 431427 $ 823,158 $ 1,244,563
General and auto liabilities 2,594,920 1,532,501 843,456 3,283,965
2017 Total $ 4231214 § 1963928 $ 1,666,614 $§ 4528528
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SELF-INSURANCE PROGRAMS (Continued)

The Self-Insurance Fund accounts for the following lines of coverage:

Workers’ Compensation — Since 1985, the City has provided workers’ compensation coverage
through self-insurance and purchased excess insurance commercially. The City’s self-insured
retention has been $250,000 per occurrence since October 2014.

General and Automobile Liabilities — The City’s primary policy for its liability risks has a
$6,000,000 general aggregate with a $100,000 self-insured retention deductible per occurrence.
There have been no judgements or settlement of claims during the past three years that have
exceeded the City’s commercial insurance limits. This self-insurance program was created in
1977 and is subject to the limitations of sovereign immunity.

MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS

The City is the sponsor of five single-employer Public Employee Retirement Systems (PERS) that
are administered by the City to provide pension benefits to its employees. The City contributes to
the General Employees’ Retirement Plan (GERP), the Police Officers’ Retirement Plan (PORP),
the Firefighters’ Retirement System (HFRS), the Elected Officials’ Retirement Plan (EORP), and
the New Elected Officials’ and Senior Management Retirement System (NEOSMRS), which are
all defined benefit pension plans.

The information reported below is a brief summary of information reported in more detail in the
independently published financial statements for each pension plan. Separate financial statements
for each of these Plans may be obtained by contacting the Board of Trustees c/o City of
Homestead, 100 Civic Court, Homestead, FL 33030.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of each Plan are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.
Employee and employer contributions to the Plans are recognized when due rather than when
incurred and the employer has made a formal commitment to provide the contributions.
Expenditures incurred, benefits and refunds owed are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the terms of the Plans rather than when paid.
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

Plan Membership Information

As of the various dates of the latest actuarial evaluation for each of the Plans, the membership
consisted of:

New Elected
Officials'
General Police Elected  and Senior
Employees'  Officers'  Officials'  Management  Firefighters'

Retrement Retrement Retirement Retrement  Retirement

Plan* Plan Plan* System System*
Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently 206 93 3 4 11
receiving benefits
Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet 42 5 4 1
receiving benefits
Active plan members 133 87 1 6
Total 381 185 8 11 11

Note:  * Plans are closed to new members.

A. GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT PLAN (GERP)
Plan Description

The City maintains a single employer defined benefit pension system established by City
Ordinance No. 85-11-107 dated December 3, 1985, as amended, which covers substantially all of
the City employees except for elected officials, senior management, and police officers.
Membership begins on the date of hire. GERP provides retirement, disability and death benefits
to members and beneficiaries. A more detailed description of the Plan and its provisions appear
in ordinances constituting the Plan and in the summary Plan description. The Plan year end is
September 30, 2018. The Plan issues a publicly available financial statement that includes
fiduciary financial statements and required supplementary information. The financial statements
may be obtained by writing to: Board of Trustees — General Employees’ Retirement Plan, c/o City
of Homestead, Finance Department, 100 Civic Court, Homestead, FL 33030.
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

A. GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT PLAN (GERP) (Continued)
Eligibility

All regular full-time employees of the City who agree to make employee contributions plus
hospital employees who elected to stay in the Plan in 1990 are eligible. Part-time employees are
not covered. Participation was mandatory for all employees hired on and after July 1, 2000. The
City Council adopted Ordinance no. 2009-04-13 to close membership to new employees hired on
or after April 1, 2009.

Service Retirement Benefits

Upon normal retirement, a participant will receive a monthly pension of 3% of the final average
earnings (FAE), which is the base salary and longevity during the last sixty (60) months of
continuous employment times the number of years and completed months of continuous service
as a participant. There is no cap on maximum benefits.

Early Retirement

A member may retire early after attaining age 55 and completing 10 years of service. Benefits are
reduced by 1/6% for each month prior to normal retirement date.

Disability Benefits

A participant is eligible for disability benefits after ten (10) or more years of credited service and
if totally and permanently disabled. Disability benefits include the accrued benefit or 35% of
FAE, whichever is greater, subject to a cap of 100% of FAE on benefits from this Plan including
social security, worker’s compensation, or other similar benefits.

Funding Policy

The City is required to contribute an actuarially determined amount that, when combined with
participants’ contributions, will fully provide for all benefits as they become payable. The funding
policy can only be amended by authorization of the City Council. Participants are required to
contribute 4% of annual earnings. The City’s required contribution is based on the actuarial report
using the percentage of covered payroll.
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A. GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT PLAN (GERP) (Continued)
Investments
The Board of Trustees has developed certain investment guidelines and has retained investment
managers to implement the investment objectives. The investment managers are expected to
maximize the return on the investment portfolio and may make transactions consistent with that

expectation pursuant to the Board's guidelines.

The investment balances held by the Plan as of September 30, 2018 are as follows:

Fair Less than 1-5 6-10 More than
Investment Type Value One Year Years Years 10 Years

Cash and short-term investments $ 2446356 $ 2446356 $ - S - S -

Fixed income 28,671,634 542,824 14365919 13,762,891 -

Sub-total 31,117,990 $ 2989,180 $ 14,365,919 $13,762.891 $ -
Hedge funds 2,968,198
Mutual funds-equity 7,156,158
Common Stocks 42,272,959
Limited partnerships 544,077

Total cash and investments ~ § 84,059,382

Interest Rate Risk — Interest rate risk refers to the portfolio’s exposure to fair value losses arising
from increasing interest rates. Interest rate risk disclosures are required for all debt investments
as well as investments in mutual funds, external investment pools, and other pooled investments
that do not meet the definition of a 2a7-like pool. The Plan’s investment policy established
benchmarks based on credit quality and duration. The benchmarks are monitored and changed
when warranted by the investment market environment. Fixed income portfolios are structured
and managed to produce returns based on risk inherent in the selected benchmarks.

The Plan’s investment policy currently does not allow for investments in fixed income securities
with a maturity in excess of 30 years. As of September 30, 2018, the weighted average maturity
of the fixed income portfolio was 5.35 years.

Credit Risk — Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its
obligation to the holder of the investment. The Plan limits its credit risk by limiting its purchases
of investments in fixed income securities to U.S. Government and agency securities or corporate
bonds which meet or exceed a credit rating of BBB for Standard & Poor’s or a BAA for Moody’s.
However, the investment policy does not force an investment sale in the event that there is a credit
rating cut by either of the rating agencies. The investments in the portfolio that are currently rated
below BBB or BAA had a rating in compliance with the policy at the time of purchase.
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

A. GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT PLAN (GERP) (Continued)
Investments (Continued)

The following table provides a summary of the fixed income investment balances by credit rating.

Percentage
S&P of Fixed
Rating Income Fair Value
BB+ 11.18% $ 3,206,020
BBB+ 41.68% 11,949,609
BBB 39.41% 11,298,404
BBB- 7.73% 2,217,601

100.0% $ 28,671,634

Custodial Credit Risk — The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of
the failure of the counterparty, the Plan will not be able to recover the value of investment or
collateral securities that are held by the counterparty. The Plan has third party custodian
arrangements with financial institutions to accept securities on a delivery vs payment basis for
direct purchase agreements. All securities purchased by the Plan are designated as an asset of the
Plan in the Plan’s name and are held in safekeeping by the Plan’s custodian bank or a third party
custodian institution.

Concentration of Credit Risk — GASB standards require disclosure of investments in any one
issuer that represents five percent (5%) or more of the total of the Plan’s net position. The Plan’s
investment policy places investment limitations and provides target allocations to its investment
managers to limit credit risk due to concentration. The Plan’s investment policy limits investments
in any one issuer of common stock or corporate bond to no more than 5% and 10% of the Plan’s
total assets; respectively. However there are no limitations in government securities. As of
September 30, 2018, none of the Plan’s investments were held with any single issuer that
represents 5% or more of the Plan’s net position.
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

A. GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT PLAN (GERP) (Continued)
Investments (Continued)

Fair Value measurements — Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The Plan categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation
inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are
significant unobservable inputs.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for the Plan’s investments
measured at fair value:

e Equity securities traded on national or international exchanges are valued at the last
reported sales price or current exchange rates. This includes common stock and equity
mutual funds.

e Fixed income securities are valued using pricing inputs that reflect the assumptions
market participants would use to price an asset or liability and are developed based on
market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity. This includes
government securities, corporate bonds, and mortgage backed securities.

e Hedge funds are valued based on the net asset value per share, without further
adjustment. Net asset value is based upon the fair value of the underlying investment.

e Money market funds are valued at fair value using amortized cost which approximated
fair value.
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

A. GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT PLAN (GERP) (Continued)
Investments (Continued)

The Plan has the following recurring fair value measurements as of September 30, 2018:

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets  Significant Other ~ Significant

for Identical Observable Unobservable
Fair Value Assets Inputs Inputs
Investments Type as of 9/30/22018 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Fixed income $ 286071634  $ - § 28071634 §
Equity mutual funds $ 7,156,158 7,156,158
Common stocks 42272959 42,272,959
Total fair value $ 78,100,751 $ 49429117 § 28671634 §

Investment measured at net asset value (NAV) (a)

Hedge funds $ 2,968,198
Limited partnerships 544,077
Total investments @NAV $ 3,512,275
Total investments $ 81,613,026

(a) As required by GAAP, certain investments that are measured at net asset value have not been classified in
the fair value hierarchy. The fair value amounts presented in this table are intended to permit reconciliation
of the fair value heirarchy to the total investment line item in the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position.

The following table summarizes investments that uses NAV per share to value investments,
including unfunded commitments and restrictions:

Net Asset Value Measurement at Reporting Date

Fair Value Unfunded Redemption Redemption
Investments Type 9/30/2018 Commitments Frequency Notice period
Hedge Funds 1 S 2,968,198 N/A Quarterly 75 days
Limited Partnerships ~ (2)  $ 544,077 1.813,161 N/A N/A
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

A. GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT PLAN (GERP) (Continued)

Investments (Continued)

(1) Investments in private investment companies (the “investee funds”), are valued, as a practical
expedient, utilizing the net asset valuations provided by the underlying investee fund without
adjustment, when the net asset valuations of the investments are calculated (or adjusted by the
fund if necessary) in a manner consistent with GAAP for investment companies. The fund applies
the practical expedient to its investments in investee funds on an investment-by-investment basis,
and consistently with the fund’s entire position in a particular investment, unless it is probable that
the fund will sell a portion of an investment at an amount different from the net asset valuation. If
it is probable that the fund will sell an investment at an amount different from the net asset
valuation or in other situations where the practical expedient is not available, the fund considers
other factors in addition to the net asset valuation, such as features of the investment, including
subscription and redemption rights, expected discounted cash flows, transactions in secondary
markets, bids received from potential buyers, and overall market conditions in its determination
of fair value.

The underlying investee funds value securities and other financial instruments on a mark-to-market
or other estimated fair value basis. The estimated fair values of substantially all of the investments
of the underlying investee funds, which may include securities for which prices are not readily
available, are determined by the general partner or management of the respective underlying
investee funds and may not reflect amounts that could be realized upon immediate sale, nor amounts
that ultimately may be realized. Accordingly, the estimated fair value may differ from the values
that would have been used had a ready market existed for these investments.

(2) Portfolio Advisors Private Equity Fund IX, L.P. (the “Domestic Fund”’) and Portfolio Advisors
Private Equity Fund IX (Offshore), L.P. (the “Offshore Fund”) seek to offer their investors
participation in high quality private equity funds and co-investments managed by leading private
equity fund managers. The terms of the Domestic Fund and the Offshore Fund are generally the
same, except where noted, and references to the “Fund” in this Confidential Private Placement
Memorandum (ths “Memorandum”) should be understood as referring to the terms of, or other
disclosures that relate to, each of the Domestic Fund, the Offshore Fund and Portfolio Advisors
Private Equity Fund IX Intermediate, L.P. (the “Intermediate Partnership”), as the context requires.
The Fund is sponsored by Portfolio Advisors, LLC (“Porfolio Advisors” or, together with its
affiliates, the “Investment Manager””), which may also sponsor and manage certain alternative
parallel and/or special purpose feeder vehicles that invest in or alongside the Fund, including, but
not limited to a special purpose vehicle organized in Ireland.
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

A. GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT PLAN (GERP) (Continued)
Net Pension Liability
The City’s net pension liability was measured by the actuarial valuation as of October 1, 2016 and
rolled forward to the September 30, 2017 (measurement date). The total pension liability used to

calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Methods and assumption used to determine net pension liability:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Salary increase 5.0%

Investment rate of return 6.75%

Retirement Age Experience-base table of rates that are specific to the type of
eligibility condition.

Mortality RP-2000 Mortality Table with collar adjustments and

generational projections using scale BB as used by the Florida
Retirement System for the Regular Class members in the July
1, 2016 actuarial valuation.

Long-term expected rate of return: The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was determined using estimates of forward-looking average annual returns across
all asset classes. These projections were developed using a 10 year forward-looking time horizon,
interest rates, inflation, the equity risk premium, and the relative out performance of certain asset
classes. Based on the Monte Carlo simulations, the best estimates of real return for each asset
class included in the pension plan’s target allocation as of September 30, 2018 are summarized
in the following table:

Asset Group Long-Term Expected Real rate of return
Fixed Income 3.91%
U.S. Large Cap Equity-Growth 5.50%
U.S. Large Cap Equity-Value 5.90%
U.S. Small Cap Equity 6.22%
International Equity 7.55%
Private Real Estate 6.76%
Private Equity 8.66%

Discount rate: A single discount rate of 6.75% was used to measure the total pension liability.
This single discount rate was based on the expected rate on pension plan investments of 6.75%.
The projection of cash flows used to determine this single discount rate assumed that plan member
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer contributions will be
made at rates equal to the difference between the total actuarially determined contribution rates
and the member rate. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefits payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments (6.75%) was applied
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

A. GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT PLAN (GERP) (Continued)
Net Pension Liability (Continued)

Changes in Net Pension Liability:

General Employees' Retirement Plan
Increase (Decrease)
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary ~ Net Pension

Liability Net Position Liability
(2) (b) (a) - (b)
Total pension liability - be ginning 9/30/2016 $ 8399765 § 74271912 § 9,725,744
Changes for the year:
Service Cost 1,667,916 - 1,667,916
Interest on the total pension liability 5,674,844 - 5,674,844
Difference between expected and actual experience
of the total pension liability 557,519 - 557,519
Changes of assumptions 1,956,133 1,956,133
Contributions - employer - 2,505,891 (2,505,891)
Contributions - employee - 360,501 (360,501)
Net investment income - 6,830,581 (6,830,581)
Benefit payments (3,157,304) (3,157,304) -
Refunds (30,307) (30,307) -
Pension plan administrative expense - (114,280) 114,280
Net change in total pension liability 6,668,801 6,395,082 273,719
Total pension liability - ending 9/30/2017 $  90,666457 $§ 80666994 § 9999463

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate: The following presents
the net pension liability of the City calculated using the current discount rates (6.75%) and the
liability using discount rates that are one percentage point lower (5.75%) and one percentage
point higher (7.75%) than the current rates:

General Employees' Retirement Plan

Current
1% Decrease discount rate 1% Increase
5.75% 6.75% 7.75%
Net pension lability $ 20,759,248 $ 9,999,463 $ 1,078,365
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

A. GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT PLAN (GERP) (Continued)
Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pension

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018 but based on a measurement date of September 30,
2017, the City recognized a reduction to GERP pension expense of $497,135. This amount is
included as a reduction to personal services expenses within the functional program activities.

At September 30, 2018, the City reports deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to the
GERP as follows:
General Employees' Retirement Plan

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience $ 292,034 $ 134,588
Changes in assumptions 1,024,641

Contributions subsequent to measurement date 2,794,643 -

Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 1,184,756 3,458,066
Total $ 5,296,074 $ 3,592,654

Deferred outflows of resources related to the GERP, totaling $2,794,643, resulting from the City
contributions subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and as deferred inflows of resources
related to GERP will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Net Deferred

Year Ending Outflows of
September 30, Resources
2019 $ 388,244
2020 (200,503)
2021 (912,579)
2022 (366,385)

$  (1,091223)

The schedule of changes in the City’s net pension liability and related ratios and the schedule of
contributions, are presented as Required Supplementary Information (RSI) following the notes
to the financial statements, provide additional information about the net pension liability, plan
assets and contribution.

91-



City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

B. POLICE OFFICERS’ RETIREMENT PLAN (PORP)
Plan Description

The City maintains a single employer defined benefit pension Plan established by City Ordinance
No. 87-06-38 as amended for the police officers of the City. Membership begins on the date of
hire. PORP provides retirement, disability and death benefits to police officers of the City. A
more detailed description of the Plan and its provisions appear in ordinances constituting the Plan
and in the summary Plan description. The Plan year end is September 30, 2018. The Plan issues a
publicly available financial statement that includes fiduciary financial statements and required
supplementary information. The financial statements may be obtained by writing to: Board of
Trustees — Police Officers’ Retirement Plan, c/o City of Homestead, Finance Department., 100
Civic Court, Homestead, FL 33030.

Eligibility
All regular permanent City of Homestead employees classified as police personnel.
Service Retirement Benefits

Upon normal retirement, a participant will receive 3.5% of the average of compensation during
the highest 5 years out of the last 10 years of credited service prior to termination or retirement,
multiplied by years of credited service to a maximum of 80% of average final compensation.
Compensation used for the calculation of benefits under the Plan includes (1) base pay, (2)
workers’ compensation benefits and supplements, (3) longevity pay, (4) accumulated leave pay
not to exceed 5% of an employee’s base pay during the highest 5 years of employment prior to
retirement, and (5) up to 254 hours for overtime compensation received during the highest 5 years
of employment prior to retirement.

Early Retirement

A member may retire early after attaining age 50 and completing 10 years of service. Benefits are
reduced by 2 1/3% for each year by which the early retirement date precedes the normal retirement
date.

Disability Benefits

A participant with more than 5 years of credited service who becomes totally and permanently
disabled in the line of duty and unable to render useful and efficient service as a police officer is

eligible for a disability benefit equal to the participant’s normal retirement benefits calculated in
accordance with section 22.5-68.
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

B. POLICE OFFICERS’ RETIREMENT PLAN (PORP) (Continued)
Funding Policy

The City is required to contribute an actuarially determined amount that, when combined with
participants’ contributions and contributions from the State of Florida, will fully provide for all
benefits as they become payable. The State of Florida contributions are recorded as revenues and
expenditures in the City of Homestead’s General Fund. Members of the Plan are required to
contribute 7.65% of their base salary and overtime of up to two hundred fifty-four (254) hours.

Investments

The Board of Trustees has developed certain investment guidelines and has retained investment
managers to implement the investment objectives. The investment managers are expected to
maximize the return on the investment portfolio and may make transactions consistent with that
expectation pursuant to the Board's guidelines. The investment balances held by the Plan as of
September 30, 2018 are as follows:

Fair Less than 1-5 6-10 More than
Investment Type Value One Year Years Years 10 Years
Cash equivalents $ 1467212 § 1467212 $ - 8 - § -
Fixed ncome 36,201,233 853,353 16,637,638 10,432,841 8,277,401
Sub-total 37668445 § 2320565 $ 16,637,638 $ 10432,841 $ 8277401
Common Stocks 59,394,154

Total cash and investments ~ $ 97,062,599

Interest Rate Risk — Interest rate risk refers to the portfolio’s exposure to fair value losses arising
from increasing interest rates. Interest rate risk disclosures are required for all debt investments
as well as investments in mutual funds, external investment pools, and other pooled investments
that do not meet the definition of a 2a7-like pool. The Plan’s investment policy established
benchmarks based on credit quality and duration. The benchmarks are monitored and changed
when warranted by the investment market environment. Fixed income portfolios are structured
and managed to produce returns based on risk inherent in the selected benchmarks.

The Plan’s investment policy currently does not allow for investments in fixed income securities

with a maturity in excess of 30 years. As of September 30, 2018 the weighted average maturity of
the fixed income portfolio was 7.73 years.
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

B. POLICE OFFICERS’ RETIREMENT PLAN (PORP) (Continued)
Investments (Continued)

Credit Risk — Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its
obligation to the holder of the investment. The Plan limits its credit risk by limiting its investments
in fixed income investments to those rated BBB- or higher. The following table provides a summary
of the fixed income investment balances by credit rating.

Percentage
S&P of Fixed
Rating Income Fair Value
A 1.38% $ 500,940
A- 7.13% 2,582,140
AA+ 53.84% 19,489,520
AA- 1.38% 499,495
AAA 2.79% 1,010,059
B+ 0.85% 306,750
B 0.72% 259,688
BB+ 1.95% 705,000
BB- 0.65% 236,678
BB 0.50% 182,263
BBB+ 8.46% 3,060,993
BBB 8.82% 3,192,258
BBB- 11.53% 4,175,449

100.0% $ 36,201,233

Custodial Credit Risk — The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event failure
of counterparty, the Plan will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral
securities that are held by the counterparty The Plan has third party custodian arrangements with
financial institutions to accept securities on a delivery vs payment basis for direct purchase
agreements. All securities purchased by the Plan are deposited as an asset of the Plan in the Plan’s
name and held in safekeeping by the Plan’s custodian bank or a third party custodian institution.

Concentration of Credit Risk — GASB Standardst requires disclosure of investments in any one
issuer that represents 5% or more of the total of the Plan’s net position. The Plan’s investment
policy places investment limitations and provides target allocations to its investment managers to
limit credit risks due to concentration. The Plan’s investment policy limits investments in any one
issuer of common stock or corporate bond to no more than 5% of the Plan’s total assets. However,
there are no limitations in government securities. As of September 30, 2018, none of the Plan’s
investments were held with any single issuer that represents 5% or more of the Plan’s investments.
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

B. POLICE OFFICERS’ RETIREMENT PLAN (PORP) (Continued)
Investments (Continued)

Fair Value measurements — Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The Plan categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value
hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the
valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level
3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for the Plan’s investments
measured at fair value.

e (Cash equivalents which consist of investments with original maturities of three (3)
months or less are reported at cost which approximates fair value.

e Equity securities traded on national or international exchanges are valued at the last
reported sales price or current exchange rates. This includes common stock and equity
mutual funds.

e Fixed income securities are valued using pricing inputs that reflect the assumptions
market participants would use to price an asset or liability and are developed based on
market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity. This includes
government securities, corporate bonds, and mortgage backed securities.

The Plan has the following recurring fair value measurements as of September 30, 2018:

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices in
Active Markets Significant Other Significant

for Identical Observable Unobservable
Fair Value Assets Inputs Inputs
Investments Type as of 9/30/2018 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Fixed income $ 36,201,233 $ 15801955 $ 20399278 $ -
Common stocks 59,394,154 59,394,154 - -
Total fair value $ 95595387 $ 75,196,109 $ 203997278 § -
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

B. POLICE OFFICERS’ RETIREMENT PLAN (PORP) (Continued)
Net Pension Liability
The City’s net pension liability was measured by the actuarial valuation as of October 1, 2016
and rolled forward to the September 30, 2017 (measurement date). The total pension liability

used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Methods and assumption used to determine net pension liability:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Salary increase 5.80% to 9.80% depending on service

Investment rate of return 7.60%

Retirement Age Upon eligibility

Mortality RP-2000 Mortality Table with collar adjustments and

generational projections using scale BB as used by the Florida
Retirement System for the Special Risk Class members in the
July 1, 2016 actuarial valuation.

Long-term expected rate of return: The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was determined using the long-term nominal building block data less the long-term
inflation assumption of 2.5%. The building block long-term real return projections were
developed considering the long-term historic capital market returns, 10-15 year expected capital
market return assumptions, as well as, historical, current, and expected inflation data. Best
estimates of arithmetic real return for each asset class included in the pension plan’s target
allocation as of September 30, 2018 are summarized in the following table:

Asset Group Long-Term Expected Real rate of return
Domestic Equity 7.5%
International Equity 8.5%
Domestic Bonds 2.5%

Discount rate: A single discount rate of 7.60% was used to measure the total pension liability.
This single discount rate was based on the expected rate on pension plan investments of 7.60%.
The projection of cash flows used to determine this single discount rate assumed that plan
member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer
contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between the total actuarially determined
contribution rates and the member rate. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current
plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments
(7.60%) was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

B. POLICE OFFICERS’ RETIREMENT PLAN (PORP) (Continued)
Net Pension Liability (Continued)

Changes in Net Pension Liability:

Police Officers' Retirement Plan
Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension ~ Plan Fiduciary ~ Net Pension

Liability Net Position Liability
(a) (b) (a) - (b)
Total pension liability - beginning 9/30/2016 $ 101687839 § 81,781384 $ 19906455
Changes for the year:
Service Cost 2457445 - 2,457,445
Interest on the total pension liability 7,179,407 - 7,779,407
Difference between expected and actual experience
of the total pension liability (1,061,534) - (1,061,534)
Changes of assumptions 3,284,117 3,284,117
Contributions - employer - 3,996,869 (3,996,869)
Contributions - employer (from state) - 5713817 (577,817)
Contributions - employee - 663,039 (663,039)
Net investment income - 9,517,349 (9,517,349)
Benefit payments (3,546,301) (3,546,301) -
Refunds (23,031) (23,031) -
Pension plan administrative expense - (103,626) 103,626
Net change in total pension liability 8,890,103 11,082,116 (2,192,013)
Total pension liability - ending 9/30/2017 $ 110577942 § 92,863,500 S 17,714442

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate: The following presents
the net pension liability of the City calculated using the current discount rate (7.60%) and the
liability using discount rates that are one percentage point lower (6.60%) and one percentage
point higher (8.60%) than the current rates:

Police Officers' Retirement Plan

Current
1% Decrease discount rate 1% Increase
6.60% 7.60% 8.60%
Net pension liability $ 30,965,395 $ 17,714,442 $ 6928261
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

B. POLICE OFFICERS’ RETIREMENT PLAN (PORP) (Continued)
Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pension

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018 but based on a measurement date of September
30, 2017, the City recognized a reduction to the Plan’s pension expense of $193,836. This
amount is included as a reduction to personal services expenses within the functional program
activities.

At September 30, 2018, the City reports deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to
the PORP as follows:
Police Officers' Retirement Plan

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience $ 801,827 $ 719,104

Change in assumptions 2,626,834 -

Contributions subsequent to measurement date 4,648,788 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments 2,183,468 3,953,059

Total $ 10,260,917 $ 4672,163

Deferred outflows of resources related to the PORP, totaling $4,648,788, resulting from the City
and State contributions subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction
of the net pension liability for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and as deferred inflows of resources
related to PORP will be recognized as pension expenses as follows:
Net Deferred

Year Ending Outflows of
September 30, Resources
2019 $ 1,010,608
2020 1,255,288
2021 (677,431)
2021 (648,499)
$ 939,966

The schedule of changes in the City’s net pension liability and related ratios and the schedule of
contributions, are presented as Required Supplementary Information (RSI) following the notes
to the financial statements, provides additional information about the net pension liability, plan
assets and contributions.
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

C. ELECTED OFFICIALS’ RETIREMENT PLAN (EORP)
Plan Description

The City maintains a single-employer defined benefit pension Plan established by City Ordinance
98-05-18 dated June 1, 1998 as amended, which was established to provide retirement benefits
to elected officials. A more detailed description of the Plan and its provisions appears in the
Ordinances constituting the Plan and in the summary Plan description. The Plan year end is
December 31, 2017. The Plan issues a publicly available financial statement that includes
fiduciary financial statements and required supplementary information. The financial statements
may be obtained by writing to: Board of Trustees - Elected Officials’ Retirement Plan, c/o City
of Homestead, Finance Department, 100 Civic Court, Homestead, FL 33030.

In February 18, 2002, the City established The City of Homestead Elected Officials and Senior
Management Retirement Plan (NEW Plan), which included senior management employees
effective March 21, 2005 and closed the EORP to new members.

Eligibility

Elected Officials of the City of Homestead elected prior to February 18, 2002. No new
participants entered the Plan after February 18, 2002.

Service Retirement Benefits

Upon normal retirement, a participant will receive an annual pension benefit equal to 20% of the
annual average compensation paid during the highest three years of service. For any service
beyond the four years required to vest in the retirement system, the pension shall be increased by
5% of annual average compensation for each and every year of service to a maximum of twenty
years and an annual pension equal to 100% of annual average compensation. Said benefit shall
increase by 3% as of January 1 of each year after the elected official has been retired for one year.
Retirement age is 55 and 4 years of service.

Disability Benefits

Under the Plan, a participant with more than 10 years of credited service who is determined to
be totally and permanently disabled and who no longer serves in office shall receive a disability
retirement benefit equal to regular retirement benefits or 35% of final average compensation,
whichever is greater. In addition there is a death benefit under the Plan that entitles participants’
beneficiaries to a lump sum pay-out if the participant was not vested and a monthly benefit if the
participant was vested.
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

C. ELECTED OFFICIALS’ RETIREMENT PLAN (EORP) (Continued)
Funding Policy

The City is required to contribute an actuarially determined amount that will fully provide for all
benefits as they become payable. The funding policy can only be amended by authorization of
the City Council. Participants are not required to contribute to the Plan.

Effective May 30, 2012, the Division of Retirement mandated that local governments confer with
the Plan’s actuary to select and maintain a method (percentage of payroll or fixed dollar
contributions) that best fits the funding requirements of the Plan. The Plan determined to use the
“percentage of payroll contribution” method for the year ended December 31, 2017. The actual
contribution from the City for active members was actuarially determined using the latest actuarial
valuation dated January 1, 2016.

Investments

The Board of Trustees has developed certain investment guidelines and has retained investment
managers. The investment managers are expected to maximize the return on the investment
portfolio and may make transactions consistent with that expectation within the Board’s

guidelines.

The investment balances held by the Plan as of December 31, 2017 are as follows:

Fair 0-12 1-5 6-10 More than
Investment Type Value Months Years Years 10 years
Fixed income-municipal bonds $ 47,687 - 47,687

Fixed income-corporate bonds 831,960 49,990 781,970 - -

Sub-total Fixed Income 879,647 § 49990 § 829,657 $ - § -
Common stocks 1,451,678
Foreign stocks 230,443
Mutual fund - ETF 42,183
ETF fixed income 1,689
Unit investment trusts 236,734
Sub-total Equities 1,962,727
Total Investments $ 2842374
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

C. ELECTED OFFICIALS’ RETIREMENT PLAN (EORP) (Continued)
Investments (Continued)

Interest Rate Risk — Interest rate risk refers to the portfolio’s exposure to fair value losses arising
from increasing interest rates. Interest rate risk disclosures are required for all debt investments as
well as investments in mutual funds, external investment pools, and other pooled investments that
do not meet the definition of a 2a7-like pool. The Plan’s investment policy currently does not set
a parameter of its fixed income securities. As of December 31, 2017 the weighted average maturity
of the fixed income portfolio was 3.14 years.

Credit Risk — Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its
obligation to the holder of the investment. The Plan limits its credit risk by limiting its investments
in fixed income securities to U.S. Government and agency securities or corporate bonds which
meet or exceed a credit rating of BBB for Standard & Poor’s or a Baa for Moody’s. The following
table provides a summary of the fixed income investment balances by credit rating.

Percentage

S&P of Fixed

Fair Value Rating Income

$ 32,565 A 3.70%
150,207 A- 17.08%

49,280 AA- 5.60%

25,250 B- 2.87%

23,813 BB 2.71%

49,789 BB- 5.66%

81,767 BBB 9.30%

127,220 BBB- 14.46%
339,756 BBB+ 38.62%

$ 879,647 100.0%

The credit ratings for investment purchases must be at least BBB by Standard & Poor’s or Baa by
Moody’s. However, the investment policy does not force an investment sale in the event that there
is a credit rating cut by either of the rating agencies. The investments in the portfolio that are
currently rated below BBB or Baa, had a credit rating in compliance with the policy at the time of
purchase.

Custodial Credit Risk — The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of
the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, the Plan will not be able to recover the value of
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Plan has a
third party custodian agreement with a financial institution to accept securities on a delivery vs
payment basis for direct purchase agreement. All securities purchased by the Plan are designated
as an asset of the Plan in the Plan’s name and are held in safekeeping by the Plan’s custodian bank
or a third party custodian institution.
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

C. ELECTED OFFICIALS’ RETIREMENT PLAN (EORP) (Continued)
Investments (Continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk — GASB Statement 40 requires disclosure of investments in any one
issuer that represents 5% or more of the total of the Plan’s net position. The Plan’s investment
policy places investment limitations and provides target allocations to its investment managers to
limit credit risk due to concentration. The Plan’s investment policy limits investments in any issuer
of common stock or corporate bonds to no more than 5% and 10% of the Plan’s total assets,
respectively. However there are no limitations in government securities. As of December 31, 2017
no investment by any one issuer was above the 5% threshold required for disclosure.

Fair Value measurements — Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The Plan categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation
inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are
significant unobservable inputs. The Plan does not have any investments that are categorized as
Level 3.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for the Plan’s investments
measured at fair value. Level 1,and Level 2, prices are obtained from various pricing sources by
the Plan’s custodian.

e Equity securities traded on national or international exchanges are valued at the last
reported sales price or current exchange rates (Level 1). This includes common stock,
foreign stock, exchange traded funds (ETF’s) and REIT’s

e Debt securities are valued using pricing inputs that reflect the assumptions market
participants would use to price an asset or liability and are developed based on market
data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity (Level 2). This includes
corporate bonds and foreign bonds.
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

C. ELECTED OFFICIALS’ RETIREMENT PLAN (EORP) (Continued)

Investments (Continued)

The Plan has the following recurring fair value measurements as of Dcember 31, 2017.

Investments Type

Fixed income:
Municipal bonds
Corporate bonds

Total fixed income

Equities:

Common stock

Mutual funds

Unit investment trusts
Total equities

Total fair value

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets  Significant Other Significant

for Identical Observable Unobservable
Fair Value Assets Inputs Inputs

as of 12/31/2017 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
$ 47,687 § - 8§ 47687 $ -
831,960 - 831,960 -
879,647 - 879,647 -
1,682,121 1,588,624 93,497 -
43,872 43,872 - -
236,734 236,734 - -

1,962,727

$ 2842374  § 1,869,230  § 973,144  $ -
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

C. ELECTED OFFICIALS’ RETIREMENT PLAN (EORP) (Continued)
Net Pension Liability
The City’s net pension liability was measured by the actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2016
and rolled forward to the December 31, 2017 (measurement date). The total pension liability

used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that
date.

Methods and assumption used to determine net pension liability:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Salary increase 7.0%

Investment rate of return 6.75% per year, net investment expenses

Retirement Age 100% upon eligibility

Mortality RP-2000 Mortality Table with collar adjustments and

generational projections using scale BB as used by the
Florida Retirement System for the Regular Class members
in the July 1, 2015 actuarial valuation.

Long-term expected rate of return: The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investment was determined for equities using estimates of a current risk-free component that is
the same for all asset classes and an asset-class premium component that varies by each asset
class due to the differences in expected risk for each class. The current risk-free rate is estimated
using a 20-year forward looking time horizon of the yield of 20-year U.S. Treasury bonds. The
asset-class premium component was estimated considering historical return on large-cap stocks,
interest rates and inflation data, adjusted for the historical income return provided by the risk
free asset. The long term return for the fixed income securities was determined using the yield-
to-maturity on the Barclays U.S. Aggregate Bond Index adjusted for the 15 year horizon
premium. The best estimates of arithmetic real return for each asset class included in the pension
plan’s target allocation as of December 31, 2017 are summarized in the following table:

Asset Group Long-Term Expected Real rate of return
Equities 6.38%
Fixed Income 3.07%
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

C. ELECTED OFFICIALS’ RETIREMENT PLAN (EORP) (Continued)
Net Pension Liability (Continued)

Discount rate: A single discount rate of 6.75% was used to measure the total pension liability.
This single discount rate was based on the expected rate on pension plan investments of 6.75%.
The projection of cash flows used to determine this single discount rate assumed that plan
member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer
contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between the total actuarially determined
contribution rates and the member rate. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current
plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments
(6.75%) was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.

Changes in Net Pension Liability:

Elected Officials Retirement Plan
Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension ~ Plan Fiduciary ~ Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability

(a) (b) (a)-(b)

Total pension liability - beginning 12/31/2016 $ 3314035 § 2643515 § 670,520
Changes for the year:

Service Cost 33,062 - 33,062

Interest on the total pension liability 221,813 - 221,813

Difference between expected and actual experience

of the total pension liability -

Changes of assumptions - -

Contributions - employer - 297,864 (297,864)

Net nvestment income - 203,238 (203,238)

Benefit payments (121,962) (121,962)

Refunds - - -

Pension plan administrative expense - (23,577) 23,577
Net change in total pension liability 132,913 355,563 (222,650)
Total pension liability - ending 12/31/2017 $ 3446948 $ 2999078 § 447870
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

C. ELECTED OFFICIALS’ RETIREMENT PLAN (EORP) (Continued)
Net Pension Liability (Continued)

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate: The following presents the
net pension liability of the City calculated using the current discount rates (6.75%) and the
liability using discount rates that are one percentage point lower (5.75%) and one percentage
point higher (7.75%) than the current rates:

Elected Officials Retirement Plan

Current
1% Decrease discount rate 1% Increase
5.75% 6.75% 7.75%
Net pension liability $ 885,366 $ 447,870 $ 89,936

Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pension
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018 but based on a measurement date of December 31,
2017, the City recognized a reduction to the Plan’s pension expense of $49,971 This amount is

included as a reduction to personal services expenses within the functional program activities.

At September 30, 2018, the City reports deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to the

EORP as follows:
Elected Officials Retirement Plan
Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $ - $ -
Contributions subsequent to measurement date 259,658 -
Difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 204,469 15,728
Total $ 464,127 $ 15,728
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

C.

D.

ELECTED OFFICIALS’ RETIREMENT PLAN (EORP) (Continued)

Deferred outflows of resources related to the EORP, totaling $259,658, resulting from the City
contributions subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to EORP will be recognized as
a reduction of pension expense as follows:

Net Deferred

Year Ending Outflows of
September 30, Resources
2019 $ 114,812
2020 81,717
2021 (3,856)
2022 (3,932)

s 188741

The schedule of changes in the City’s net pension liability and related ratios and the schedule of
contributions, are presented as Required Supplementary Information (RSI) following the notes
to the financial statements, provides additional information about the net pension liability, plan
assets and contributions.

NEW ELECTED OFFICIALS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT RETIREMENT SYSTEM
(NEOSMRS)

Plan Description

The City maintains a single-employer defined benefit pension plan established by City Ordinance
2002-02-06 dated February 18, 2002 as amended. The Plan was created to provide retirement
benefits to all elected officials of the City of Homestead elected on or after February 18, 2002 and
senior management. The Plan is administered by a pension board. The Board has the ability to
make recommendations on establishing and amending pension plan provisions which can only be
authorized by the City Council. During 2009, a unanimous decision was made to change the Plan
year to a calendar year. Therefore, the presentation in these financial statements is as of year
ending December 31. A more detailed description of the Plan and its provisions appears in the
Ordinances constituting the Plan and in the summary Plan description. The Plan year end is
December 31, 2017. The Plan issues a publicly available financial statement that includes
fiduciary financial statements and required supplementary information. The financial statements
may be obtained by writing to: Board of Trustees — New Elected Officials’ and Senior
Management Retirement Plan, c/o City of Homestead, Finance Department, 100 Civic Court,
Homestead, FL 33030.
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

D. NEW ELECTED OFFICIALS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT RETIREMENT SYSTEM
(NEOSMRS) (Continued)

Eligibility

Elected Officials elected on or after February 18, 2002, and the following senior managers if hired
prior to April 20, 2009: City Manager, Assistant City Manager or Deputy City Manager.

Pension Benefits

Upon normal retirement, a participant will receive a minimum of 20% of the average
compensation paid during the highest three years of service subject to a maximum of 80%.
Retirement age is 55 and 5 years of service. The benefits are increased by 2% each year on January
Ist beginning after the elected official has been retired for at least five years. Under the Plan, a
participant with more than 10 years of credited service who is determined to be totally and
permanently disabled and who no longer serves in office shall receive a disability retirement
benefit equal to regular retirement benefits or 35% of the participant’s final average compensation,
whichever is greater. In addition, there is a death benefit under the Plan that entitles participants’
beneficiaries to a lump sum pay-out if the participant was not vested and a monthly benefit if the
participant was vested.

Funding Policy

The City is required to contribute an actuarially determined amount that will fully provide for all
benefits as they become payable. The funding policy can only be amended by authorization of
the City Council. Participants are not required to contribute to the Plan, while the City is required
to contribute an actuarially determined amount necessary to pay the annual normal cost of the Plan
plus the additional amount needed to amortize any unfunded accrued liability.

Effective May 30, 2012, the Division of Retirement mandated that local governments confer with
the Plan’s actuary to select and maintain a method (percentage of payroll or fixed dollar
contributions) that best fits the funding requirements of the Plan. The Plan determined to use the
“percentage of payroll contribution” method for the year ended December 31, 2017. The actual
contribution from the City for active members was actuarially determined using the latest actuarial
valuation dated January 1, 2016.

Investments
The Board of Trustees has developed certain investment guidelines and has retained investment
managers to implement the investment objectives. The investment managers are expected to

maximize the return on the investment portfolio and may make transactions consistent with that
expectation pursuant to the Board's guidelines.
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

D. NEW ELECTED OFFICIALS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT RETIREMENT SYSTEM
(NEOSMRS) (Continued)

Investments (Continued)

The Plan had investment balances as of December 31, 2017:

Fair 0-12 1-5 6-15 More than
Investment Type Value Months Years Years 10 years

Money market $ 310,660 $ 310,660 $ - S -9 -

Fixed income-Government Bonds 1,077 - - 1,077 -

Sub-total ; fixed income 1077 § - S - % 1077 $ -
Mutual funds - fixed income 1,021,989
Mutual funds - equity 3,215,407
Real Estate Fund 182,606
Total Investments $ 4,731,739

Interest Rate Risk — Interest rate risk refers to the portfolio’s exposure to fair value losses arising
from increasing interest rates. Interest rate risk disclosures are required for all debt investments
as well as investments in mutual funds, external investment pools, and other pooled investments
that do not meet the definition of a 2a7-like pool. The Plan’s investment policy currently does not
set a parameter of its fixed income securities. As of December 31, 2017 the weighted average
maturity of the fixed income portfolio was 4.0 years.

Credit Risk — Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its
obligation to the holder of the investment. The Plan limits its credit risk by limiting its investments
in fixed income securities to U.S. Government and agency securities or corporate bonds which
meet or exceed a credit rating of BBB for Standard & Poor’s or a Baa for Moody’s.
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

D. NEW ELECTED OFFICIALS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT RETIREMENT SYSTEM
(NEOSMRS) (Continued)

The following table provides a summary of the fixed income investment balances by credit rating.

Percentage

S&P of Fixed

Fair Value Rating Income

$ 1,077 NR 100.00%
$ 1,077 100.0%

Custodial Credit Risk — The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of
the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, the Plan will not be able to recover the value of
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Plan has
third party custodian arrangements with financial institutions to accept securities on a delivery vs
payment basis for direct purchase agreements. All securities purchased by the Plan are deposited
as an asset of the Plan in the Plan’s name and are held in safekeeping by the Plan’s custodian
bank or a third party custodian institution.

Concentration of Credit Risk — GASB Statement 40 requires disclosure of investments in any
one issuer that represents 5% or more of the total of the Plan’s net position. The Plan’s investment
policy places investment limitations and provides target allocations to its investment managers
to limit credit risk due to concentration. The Plan’s investment policy limits investments in any
issuer of common stock or corporate bonds to no more than 5% and 10% of the Plan’s total assets,
respectively. However there are no limitations in government securities. As of December 31,
2017, no investment by any one issuer was above the 5% threshold required for disclosure.

Fair Value measurements —Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The Plan categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value
hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the
valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level
3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. The Plan does not have any investments that are
categorized as Level 3.
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

D. NEW ELECTED OFFICIALS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT RETIREMENT SYSTEM
(NEOSMRS) (Continued)

Investments (Continued)

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for the Plan’s investments
measured at fair value. Level 1 and Level 2 prices are obtained from various pricing sources by
the Plan’s custodian.

e Equity securities traded on national or international exchanges are valued at the last reported
sales price or current exchange rates (Level 1). This includes common stock, foreign stock,
exchange traded funds (ETF’s) and REIT’s.

e Debt securities are valued using pricing inputs that reflect the assumptions market participants
would use to price an asset or liability and are developed based on market data obtained from
sources independent of the reporting entity (Level 2). This includes corporate bonds and foreign
bonds.

The Plan has the following recurring fair value measurements as of December 31, 2017:

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets  Significant Other Significant

for Identical Observable Unobservable
Fair Value Assets Inputs Inputs
Investments by fair value level: as of 12/31/2017 (Level 1) (Level2) (Level 3)
Debt securities:
Mortgage/Asset backed securities S 778 - $ 077§
Total debt securties 1,077 - 1077
Equity securities:
Mutual Funds - fixed income 1,021,989 1,021,989
Mutual Funds - equity 3215407 3215407
Total equity securities 4,237,396 423739
Total nvestments at fair value $ 4238473 8 42373% § 1077 §

Investments measured at the net asset value ("NAV")
182,606

Real estate fund

Total investments $ 4421079
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

D. NEW ELECTED OFFICIALS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT RETIREMENT SYSTEM
(NEOSMRS) (Continued)

Net Pension Liability
The City’s net pension liability was measured by the actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2016
and rolled forward to the December 31, 2017 (measurement date). The total pension liability

used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that
date.

Methods and assumption used to determine net pension liability:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Salary increase 1.0%

Investment rate of return 6.75% per year, net investment expenses

Retirement Age 100% upon eligibility

Mortality RP-2000 Mortality Table with collar adjustments and

generational projections using scale BB as used by the
Florida Retirement System for the Regular Class members
in the July 1, 2015 actuarial valuation.

Long-term expected rate of return: The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was determined using the long-term nominal building block data less the long-term
assumption of 2.58%. The building block long-term real return projections were developed
considering the long-term historic capital market returns, 10-15 year expected capital market return
assumptions, as well as, historical, current, and expected inflation data. Best estimates of arithmetic
real return for each asset class included in the pension plan’s target allocation as of December 31,
2017 are summarized in the following table:

Asset Group Long-Term Expected Real rate of return
Domestic Equity 7.50%
International Equity 8.50%
Domestic Bonds 2.50%
International Bonds 3.50%
Real Estate 4.50%
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

D. NEW ELECTED OFFICIALS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT RETIREMENT SYSTEM
(NEOSMRS) (Continued)

Net Pension Liability (Continued)

Discount rate: A single discount rate of 6.75% was used to measure the total pension liability.
This single discount rate was based on the expected rate on pension plan investments of 6.75%.
The projection of cash flows used to determine this single discount rate assumed that plan
member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer
contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between the total actuarially
determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on these assumptions, the pension
plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension
plan investments (6.75%) was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine
the total pension liability.

Changes in Net Pension Liability:

New Elected Officials' and

Senior Management Retirement System
Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension ~ Plan Fiduciary ~ Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability

(2) (b (@)-(b)

Total pension liability - beginning 12/31/2016 $ 4623228 § 4311200 § 312,028
Changes for the year:
Service Cost 58,646 - 58,046
Interest on the total pension liability 306,336 - 306,336

Difference between expected and actual experience

of the total pension liability - -
Changes of assumptions - -
Contributions - employer - 108,151 (108,151)

Net investment income - 660,067 (660,067)

Benefit payments (287,120) (287,120)

Pension plan administrative expense - (66,113) 66,113

Other - (1,527) 1,527
Net change in total pension liability 71862 413458 (335,596)

Total pension liability (asset) - ending 12/31/2017 $ 4701,000 § 4724658 §  (23,568)
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D. NEW ELECTED OFFICIALS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT RETIREMENT SYSTEM
(NEOSMRS) (Continued)

Net Pension Liability (Continued)

Sensitivity of the net pension liability (asset) to changes in the discount rate: The following
presents the net pension liability (asset) of the City calculated using the current discount rates
(6.75%) and the liability using discount rates that are one percentage point lower (5.75%) and
one percentage point higher (7.75%) than the current rates:

New Elected Officials' and
Senior Management Retirement System

Current
1% Decrease discount rate 1% Increase
5.75% 6.75% 7.75%
Net pension liability (asset)  $ 550,188 $ (23,568)  $ (495,888)

Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pension

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018 but based on a measurement date of December 31,
2017, the City recognized an increase to the Plan’s pension expense of $68,860 This amount is
included as an addition to personal services expenses within the functional program activities.

At September 30, 2018, the City reports deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to the
Plan as follows:

New Elected Officials' and
Senior Management Retirement System

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $ 14,299 $
Changes in assumptions 68,335
Contributions subsequent to measurement date 105,641
Difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 224,089 320,580
Total $ 412,364 $ 320,580
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D. NEW ELECTED OFFICIALS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT RETIREMENT SYSTEM
(NEOSMRS) (Continued)

Net Pension Liability (Continued)
Deferred outflows of resources related to the NEOSMRS, totaling $105,641, resulting from the
City contributions subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction of the

net pension liability for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to NEOSMRS will be
recognized as a reduction of pension expense as follows:

Net Deferred

Year Ending Outflows of

September 30, Resources
2019 $ 24,564
2020 43,238

2021 (31,163)

2022 (56,258)
2023 5,762

$ (13,857)

The schedule of changes in the City’s net pension liability (asset) and related ratios and the
schedule of contributions, are presented as Required Supplementary Information (RSI)
following the notes to the financial statements, provides additional information about the net
pension liability (asset), plan assets and contributions.

E. FIREFIGHTERS’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM (HFRS)
Plan Description

The following description of the City of Homestead Firefighters’ Retirement System is provided
for general information only. Participants should refer to the Plan agreement for more complete
information. The Plan year end is December 31, 2017. The Plan issues a publicly available
financial statement that includes fiduciary financial statements and required supplementary
information. The financial statements may be obtained by writing to: Board of Trustees —
Firefighters’ Retirement System, C/O City of Homestead, Finance Department., 100 Civic
Court, FL 33030.
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

E. FIREFIGHTERS’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM (HFRS) (Continued)
Eligibility
The Plan is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan, covering members of the City of
Homestead Firefighters. No new participants entered the Plan after 1978.

Pension Benefits

Participants are entitled to monthly pension benefits beginning at normal retirement age (55).
Normal retirement benefit is in the form of an annuity guaranteed for ten years and life thereafter
and is equal to the lesser of 3% of average compensation multiplied by the number of years of
service or 80% of average compensation.

Disability Benefits

A member who becomes permanently and totally disabled and has at least five years of credited
service is entitled to receive a monthly benefit based upon the accrued benefit at date of disability
reduced to reflect an early commencement date. Under all circumstances it will not be less than
50% of average compensation.

Termination Benefits

If a vested participant is terminated, the participant is entitled to receive a monthly benefit
commencing on the normal retirement date or (b) a reduced early benefit on the date of eligibility
for an early retirement benefit.

Death Benefit

The Plan provides a pre-retirement death benefit. The benefit payable for members with 10 or
more years of credited service is equal to the amount the member would have received under early
or normal retirement. Members with less than 10 years of credited service, the pre-retirement death
benefit is payable in a lump sum amount equal to the participants contribution account.

Funding Policy
Contributions to the Plan are provided by the State of Florida and the City. The City is required

to contribute an actuarially determined amount. State of Florida contributions are recorded as
revenues and expenditures in the City of Homestead’s General Fund.
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

E. FIREFIGHTERS’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM (HFRS) (Continued)
State of Florida Excess Contributions

Florida Statutes outline minimum Plan benefits. Costs associated with making benefit
improvements are required only to the extent that additional State contributions (premium tax
revenue) are available. Premium tax revenue is determined as the excess of tax revenues earned
subsequent to December 31, 1997 over the tax revenue earned for 1997. Excess revenues must
be used to fund benefits in addition to or greater than those provided to participants.

Investments

The Board of Trustees has engaged outside investment professionals to manage Plan assets.
Firms registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission as investment advisors manage
fixed income and equity assets of the Plan. The investment custodian is responsible for the
activity and safeguarding of the investment assets. The Board also utilizes an investment
consultant to provide advice on manager performance and investment policy amendments and
benchmarks.

The plan investments are managed by Highland Capital Management LLC. Plan assets are held
in custodial accounts with Salem Trust. The Plan had investment balances as of December 31,

2017:
Fair 0-12 1-5 6-10 More than
Investment Type Value Months Years Years 10 years

Money market $ 608261 § 608261 $ - § - 3 -
Corporate bonds 844,812 9,993 437513 222818 174,488
Government securities 656,022 25285 214,636 84,572 331,529
Municipal obligations 83,734 - 31,731 - 52,003
Sub-total : fixed income 1,584,568 $ 35278 $ 683880 $ 307390 § 558,020

Common stocks 3,939,462

Mutual Funds equity 1,528,696

Other 45,783

Total Investments $ 7,706,770
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

E. FIREFIGHTERS’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM (HFRS) (Continued)
Investments (Continued)

Interest Rate Risk — Interest rate risk refers to the portfolio’s exposure to fair value losses arising
from increasing interest rates. Interest rate risk disclosures are required for all debt investments
as well as investments in mutual funds, external investment pools, and other pooled investments
that do not meet the definition of a 2a7-like pool. The Plan does not have a written policy that
limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to losses arising from interest
rate fluctuations. The Plan evaluates its portfolio to determine if based on the interest rate
environment, other investment vehicles would provide higher yields that lower the cost of risk.

Credit Risk — Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its
obligation to the holder of the investment. The Plan limits its credit risk by limiting its investments
in fixed income securities to U.S. Government and agency securities or corporate bonds which
meet or exceed a credit rating of BBB for Standard & Poor’s or Baa for Moody’s. As of December
31, 2017, the Plan’s corporate bonds were rated between Al and Baa3 by Moody’s Investor

Services.
Corporate Percentage
Bonds of Fixed
Fair Value Rating Income
$ 844,812 Between Al and Baa3 100.0%

Custodial Credit Risk — The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that investment
securities are uninsured, are not registered in the name of the Plan and are held by a counterparty
or the counterparty’s trust department or agent but not in the Plan’s name. The custodial risk, is
that, in the event of failure of the counterparty to a transaction, the Plan will not be able to recover
the value of the investment that is in the possession of an outside party.

Consistent with the Plan’s investment policy, the investments are held by a third party custodian.
Investments held by the custodian are registered in the custodian’s name as nominee. The Plan
requires that the custodian insure all Plan investments in accordance with terms of the custodial
agreement.
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

E. FIREFIGHTERS’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM (HFRS) (Continued)
Investments (Continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk — GASB Statement 40 requires disclosure of investments in any
one issuer that represents 5% or more of its total net position. The Plan’s investment policy
places investment limitations and provides target allocations to its investment managers to limit
credit risk due to concentration.

As of December 31, 2017, investments in the Templeton Global Bond Fund of $425,730 and
Vanguard 500 Index Fund of $1,102,966 exceeded 5% of the Plan’s fiduciary net position.

Fair Value measurements —Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The Plan categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value
hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the
valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level
3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. The Plan does not have any investments that are
categorized as Level 3.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for the Plan’s investments
measured at fair value. Level 1 and 2 prices are obtained from various pricing sources by the
Plan’s custodian.

e Short-term investments, which consist of money market funds, are reported at cost.

e Equity securities traded on national or international exchanges are valued at the last
reported sales price or current exchange rates (Level 1). This includes common stock,
and American depository receipts and mutual fund equities.

e Debt securities are valued using pricing inputs that reflect the assumptions market
participants would use to price an asset or liability and are developed based on market
data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity (Level 2). This includes
U.S. Treasury bonds and notes, inflation-indexed bonds, U.S federal agencies,
mortgage-backed and collateralized securities, municipal bonds, mutual bond funds
and corporate obligations, including asset-backed, foreign bonds and notes.
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

E. FIREFIGHTERS’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM (HFRS) (Continued)

Investments (Continued)

The Plan has the following recurring fair value measurements as of September 30, 2017:

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets  Significant Other Significant

for Identical Observable Unobservable
Fair Value Assets Inputs Inputs

Investments Type as of 12/31/2017 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Equity securities $ 3939462 § 3939462 § - 8§ -

Mutual Funds 1,528,696 1,528,696

Corporate bonds 844,812 - 844,812

Government securities 656,022 - 656,022

Municipal obligations 83,734 83,734

Other 45,783 - 45,783
Total fair value $ 7098509  § 5.468,158 $ 1,630351  $ -
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

E. FIREFIGHTERS’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM (HFRS) (Continued)
Net Pension Liability
The City’s net pension liability was measured by the actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2017

and rolled forward to the December 31, 2017 (measurement date). The total pension liability
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Methods and assumption used to determine net pension liability:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Inflation 2.5%

Salary increase N/A

Investment rate of return 6.50%

Retirement Age N/A

Mortality RP-2000 Mortality Table for annuitants (for healthy post-

retirement mortality), with mortality improvements projected
to all future years after 2000 using scale BB. For males, the
base mortality rates include a 90% blue collar adjustment and
a 10% white collar adjustment For females, the base mortality
rates include a 100% white collar adjustment. For disabled
retirees, the mortality table used was 60% of the RP-2000
Mortality Table for Disabled Annuitants with ages set back 4
years for males and set forward 2 years for females, and 40%
of the RP-2000 Mortality Table for healthy annuitants with a
100% white collar adjustment, with no provision being made
for future mortality improvements. These are the same rates
used for Special Risk Class members of the Florida Retirement
System (FRS) in the July 1, 2016 FRS Valuation, as required
under Florida statutes, Chapter 112.63.

Discount rate: A single discount rate of 6.50% was used to measure the total pension liability.
This single discount rate was based on the expected rate on pension plan investments of 6.50%.
The projection of cash flows used to determine this single discount rate assumed that plan member
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer contributions will be
made at rates equal to the difference between the total actuarially determined contribution rates
and the member rate. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefits payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments (6.50%) was applied
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

E. FIREFIGHTERS’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM (HFRS) (Continued)
Net Pension Liability (Continued)

Changes in Net Pension Liability:

Firefighters Retirement system
Increase (Decrease)
Total Pension ~ Plan Fiduciary ~ Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability

(a) (b) (a) - (b)

Total pension liability - beginning 12/31/2016 $ 7722230 § 7219945 § 502,285
Changes for the year:

Interest on the total pension liability 477,065 - 477,065

Difference between expected and actual experience

of the total pension liability 113,721 - 113,721

Change of assumptions - - -

Contributions - employer - 188,587 (188,587)

Contributions - employer (from state) - 215,060 (215,060)

Net investment income - 1,047,585 (1,047,585)

Benefit payments (888,166) (888,166)

Pension plan administrative expense - (72,089) 72,089

Other (change in share plan reserve) 122,635 - 122,635
Net change in total pension liability (174,745) 490,977 (665,722)

Total pension liability (asset) - ending 12/31/2017 § 7547485 § 7710922 §  (163437)

Sensitivity of the net pension liability (asset) to changes in the discount rate: The following
presents the net pension liability (asset) of the City calculated using the current discount rates
(6.50%) and the liability using discount rates that are one percentage point lower (5.50%) and
one percentage point higher (7.50%) than the current rates:

Firefighters Retirement system

Current
1% Decrease discount rate 1% Increase
5.50% 6.50% 7.50%
Net pension liability (asset) $ 501,977 $ (163,437) $ (730,410)
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

E. FIREFIGHTERS’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM (HFRS) (Continued)
Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pension

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018 but based on a measurement date of December 31,
2017, the City recognized a reduction to the Plan’s pension expense of $166,397 This amount is
included as a reduction to personal services expenses within the functional program activities.

At September 30, 2018, the City reports deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to the
Plan as follows:

Firefighters Retirement System

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience $ - $ -

Contributions subsequent to measurement date 377,292 -
Difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments 219,933 486,860

Total $ 597,225 $ 486,360

Deferred outflows of resources related to the HFRS, totaling $377,292, resulting from the State
and City contributions subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction of
the net pension liability (asset) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019. Amounts reported
as deferred outflows of resources related to NEOSMRS will be recognized as a reduction of
pension expense as follows:

Net Deferred

Year Ending Outflows of
September 30, Resources
2019 $ (773)
2020 (24,350)
2021 (122,530)
2022 (119,274)

$ (266,927)

The schedule of changes in the City’s net pension liability (asset) and related ratios and the
schedule of contributions, are presented as Required Supplementary Information (RSI) following
the notes to the financial statements, provides additional information about the net pension liability
(asset), plan assets and contributions.
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NOTE 11. MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

The following table summarized the aggregate amount for all five pension plans’ total net pension
liability of the City, deferred outflows, deferred inflows and pension expense (income) for the
period as of the indicated measurement date:

Net Net Deferred Deferred Pension

Measurement Pension Pension Outflows Inflows Expense

Date Asset Liability of Resources  of Resources (income)
General Employees' Retirement Plan 9/3012017  § - (9999.463) § 5296074 $§ (3,592,654) §  (497,135)
Police Officers' Retirement Plan 9/30/2017 - (17,714,442) 10,260,917 (4,672,163) (193,836)
Elected Officials' Retirement Plan 1213172017 - (447,870) 464,127 (15,728) (49,971)

New Elected Officials and Senior

Management Retirement System 12/31/2017 23,568 - 412,364 (320,580) 68,860
Firefighters' Retirement System 12/3172017 163,437 - 597,225 (486,860) (166,397)

§ 187,005 § (28,161,775 $§ 17,030,707 § (9,087,985) §  (838,479)

F. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN
City Managers’ Defined Contribution Plan

The City offers a defined contribution plan for the City Manager created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Service Code Section 401(a) and Ordinance Number 97-01-06 dated January
21, 1997. The Plan covers only the City Manager. The participant contributes 3.5% and the City
contributes 18% of salary. Plan provisions may be amended by the City Council. The Plan is
held in a trust for the exclusive benefit of the participant and the participants’ beneficiaries by a
third party administrator. Consequently, the City has no fiduciary responsibility, and therefore, the
assets of the Plan are not included in the City’s financial statements. The City made contributions
totaling $39,107 to the Plan for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018.

Executive Employees’ Defined Contribution Plan

The City offers a defined contribution plan for department directors, assistant directors, and
assistant city managers created in accordance with Internal Revenue Service Code Section 401(a)
and Ordinance Number 97-03-15 dated April 1, 1997. At September 30, 2018, there were 9 Plan
members. Plan members are required to contribute 5% to the Plan and are fully vested after one
year of service. The City is required to contribute 13% of the participants’ earnings. Plan
provisions may be amended by the City Council. The Plan is held in a trust for the exclusive
benefit of the participants and the participants’ beneficiaries by a third party administrator.
Consequently, the City has no fiduciary responsibility, and therefore, the assets of the Plan are not
included in the City’s financial statements. The City contributed approximately $135,000 to the
Plan for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018.
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MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN (Continued)
General Employees’ Defined Contribution Plan

As of April 1, 2009, general employees have the option of participating in the General
Employees’ defined contribution plan. The Plan was created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Service Code Section 401(a) and Resolution Number R2009-03-37. The City will
match employee contributions up to 8% of pay. Plan provisions may be amended by the City
Council. The Plan is held in a trust for the exclusive benefit of the participants and the
participants’ beneficiaries by a third party administrator. Consequently, the City has no fiduciary
responsibility, and therefore, the assets of the Plan are not included in the City’s financial
statements. The City contributed approximately $299,970 to the Plan for the year ended
September 30, 2018.

OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

Plan Description

OPEB benefits are all forms of employee benefits other than pension benefits provided by an
employer to retirees and their beneficiaries. The most common OPEB benefits are medical and
life insurance benefits. The City presently offers retired employees the opportunity to retain post-
employment health and life insurance at the same premium charged to regular employees. The
Plan is not accounted for as a trust fund since an irrevocable trust has not been established to fund
the plan. The Plan has no assets and does not issue a separate financial report.

At September 30, 2018, the OPEB Plan covered 357 active employees and 21 retirees.

Except for elected officials in the EORP Pension Plan, the City does not provide funding for any
portion of the premiums after retirement; however, the City recognizes that there is an implicit
subsidy arising as a result of the blended rate premium since retiree health care costs, on the
average, are higher than active employee health costs.

Funding Policy

The City currently funds this benefit on a pay-as-you-go basis and intends to continue this
practice.
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Total OPEB Liability
The City’s total OPEB liability was measured by the actuarial valuation as of October 1, 2016
and rolled forward to October 1, 2017 (measurement date) for reporting date September 30, 2018.
At September 30, 2018, the City reported the following:

Total OPEB liability: ~ $14,097,908

Total covered payroll: ~ $24,955,309
Total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered payroll:  56%.

Methods and assumption used to determine Total OPEB liability:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Discount Rate 3.63%

Healthare Cost Trend Rates 8.00% for 2017, decreasing 0.5% per year to an
ultimate rate of 5.0% in 2023 and later years.

Salary Increase 3%

Motarity Rate RF-2014 mortality table (combined healthy lives)

Changes in Total OPEB Liability:

Total OPEB
Liability
Total OPEB liability- beginning $ 13,538,196
Changes for the year:
Service cost 1,040,917
Interest cost 421,901

Changes of benefit terms -
Difference between expected and actual experience -
Change of assumptions (850,170)
Pre-funding contributions - employer -
Net investment income -
Benefit payments (52,936)
Administrative expense -

Net change in total OPEB liability 559,712
Total OPEB liability- ending $ 14,097,908
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NOTE 12. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued)

Total OPEB Liability (Continued)

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate: The following presents the
total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City’s total OPEB liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.63%) or 1-percentage-
point higher (4.63%) than the current discount rate:

Sensitivity Testing to change in interest discount assumption

Selected
1% Decrease discount rate 1% Increase
Discount rate assumption 2.63% 3.63% 4.63%
Total OPEB liability $ 15,566,563 $ 14,907,908 $ 12,804,024

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in medical costs trend rate: The following
presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City’s total OPEB liability would
be if it were calculated using a medical costs trend rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (7.0%)
or 1-percentage-point higher (9.0%) than the current medical costs trend rate rate:

Sensitivity Testing to change in medical costs trend assumption

Selected
1% Decrease Trend rate 1% Increase
Medical costs trend assumption starts at 7% starts at 8% starts at 9%
Total OPEB liability $ 12,815,786 $ 14,907,908 $ 15,513,148

OPEB Expense, Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018 but based on a measurement date of October 1,

2017, the City recognized an increase to the Plan’s OPEB expense of $1,353,664. This amount
is included as an increase to personal services expenses within the functional program activities.
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NOTE 12. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued)

OPEB Expense, Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB
(Continued)

At September 30, 2018, the City reports deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to the
Plan as follows:

OPEB

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience $ - S -

Changes in assumptions - 850,170

Changes in benefit terms - -
Expected benefit payments subsequent to the

measurement date of 10/1/2017 56,218
Total $ 56218 § 850,170

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Net Deferred

Year Ending inflows of
September 30, Resources
2018 $ (5,391)
2019 (61,6006)
2020 (61,606)
2021 (61,606)
2022 (61,6006)
2023+ (542,137)

$ (793,952)

The schedule of changes in the City’s total OPEB liability and related ratios presented as
Required Supplementary Information (RSI) following the notes to the financial statements,
provides additional information about the total OPEB liability.

-128-



City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

a. Litigation

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not
presently determinable, it is in the opinion of the City management and counsel that resolution
of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City.

b. Compliance Audits

Amounts received or receivable from granting agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by
Federal and State grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected,
may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount of expenditures which may be
disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the City expects such
amounts, if any, to be insignificant.

c¢. Florida Petroleum Reprocessors Superfund Site

In the late 1990s, the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) identified the City,
together with several hundred other entities, as a potentially responsible party (PRP) with respect
to the Florida Petroleum Reprocessors Superfund Site (FPR site). According to the EPA, the
City is jointly and severally liable for all necessary costs of response incurred in connection with
the cleanup of the FPR site. The PRP group, including the City, have finalized a consent decree
with the EPA to share the costs of undertaking the assessment of the FPR site and a cleanup of a
portion of the site. The consent decree was entered as a final order by the United States District
Court for the Southern District of Florida on January 23, 2006. The City has contributed $68,475
toward that effort to date. While a part of the cleanup has been completed (the onsite soil and
groundwater), a large plume of contaminated groundwater extends offsite. The PRP group is
responsible for the cleanup of the plume. The FPR site will remain on the U.S. EPA list of
Superfund sites for at least several more years. Cleanup of the offsite groundwater contamination,
which is being accomplished through "natural attenuation," is ongoing and no estimated
completion date has been identified. Monitoring of the plume occurs only once every three years
and the next monitoring will be in fiscal year 2021.

d. Power Sales Contracts

In connection with the City’s participation in certain Florida Municipal Power Agency projects
and contracts with Progress Energy among others, the City is committed to purchase its
entitlement share of capacity and must take energy generation of these projects as defined in the
power sales contracts. The City’s cost of power purchased under these power sales contracts,
which extend through 2038, total approximately $326 million plus interest imputed at annual rate
at 5%. The City intends to meet its obligations under these agreements. Purchased power during
fiscal 2017 was sufficient to meet the City’s commitment under the power sales contracts.
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NOTE 13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

d. Power Sales Contracts (Continued)

Required purchase commitments under these contracts for future fiscal years are
approximately as follows:

Fiscal year ending September 30:

2019 $ 22,016,000
2020 16,623,000
2021 16,683,000
2022 16,817,000
2023 17,154,000
2024 - 2028 82,000,000
2029 - 2034 75,215,000
2035 - 2038 79,644,000
Total 326,152,000
Less amount representing interest 110,200,000
Total present value $ 215,952,000

e. Motorsports Complex

The City of Homestead is a party in a long-term lease agreement with Homestead
Motorsports Joint Venture to manage and operate the Motorsports Complex. The lease
provides for the City to receive annual rental income through its expiration on December
31, 2032. Future lease income is as follows:

Fiscal year ending September 30:

2019 $ 1,000,000
2020 1,000,000
2021 1,000,000
2022 1,000,000
2023 1,000,000
2024 - 2028 5,000,000
2029 - 2032 4,000,000
Total $ 14,000,000
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NOTE 14. HOMESTEAD COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

For fiscal year 2018 total property taxes revenues for the CRA amounted to $2,479,310. Of the
total amount, $1,089,584 was from property taxes levied by Miami-Dade County and $1,389,726
was from property taxes levied by the City.

The following projects were completed, ongoing or planned during fiscal year ending September
30, 2018:

Projects completed in fiscal year 2018:

NNk D=

10.
11.

One (1) residential grant was awarded.

Six (6) commercial grant were awarded.

Three (3) unsafe structures were demolished.

Three (3) community events were held and sponsored by CRA.

Six (6) not-for-profit organizations were supported.

One (1) business loan matchmaker was held to assist our local vendors.

Partial funding for the purchase of properties for the Homestead Cybrary and the Multimodal
Transit Center.

CRA jointed the Friends of the Historic Seminole Theatre to present the Broadway Musical
shows “In-the-Heights” and “Annie”. Two performances were provided for free to not-for-
profit organizations from the area.

An upgrade to the audio system was purchased and installed in the City Council Chambers,
where the CRA public hearing meetings are held.

The CRA code enforcement officer cited 466 residents.

The community policing officer participated in 16 community events, 62 presentations and,
contacted 47 businesses.

Projects planned for fiscal year 2019:

12.

13.
14.
15.
16.

Continue support of the development of the Homestead Cybrary and the Multimodal Transit
Center.

Blight removal project.

Losner Park community events.

Not-for-profit grant program.

Commercial & residential enhancement grant programs.

Expenditures incurred during fiscal year 2018 related to these projects are as follows:

Expenditures

General government $ 1,417,400
Public safety 267,246
Public works 147,942
Capital outlay 45,797
Total Expenditures $ 1,878,385
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 15. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

(1

2

The October 1, 2017 beginning net position for both governmental activities and business-type
activities was restated as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Net position, beginning as previously stated $ 203,257,368
Prior period adjustments:

(1) Utility service tax adjustments for prior years (744,571)

(2) Net effect of implementation of GASB 75 (1.335.932) (2,080.503)
Net position, beginning as restated $ 201,176,865

Business-type Activies:

Net position, beginning as previously stated $ 31,964,118
Prior period adjustments:

(2) Net effect of implementation of GASB 75 (842.337)
Net position, beginning as restated $ 31,121,781

The City reduced the beginning fund balance in the General Fund and in Governmental Activities
for a $744,571 adjustment to prior year earnings related to utility taxes. The adjustment was the
result of a credit granted to a customer of the City’s utility services; that customer was a local
government agency that was exempt from all state and local taxes.

The City reduced the prior year’s net position by $1,335,932 in the Governmental Activities, and
$842,337 in the Business-type Activities when it implemented GASB Statement No. 75,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. This
accounting standard specifies that governments must recognize their total Other Postemployment
Benefits (OPEB) liability, related deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources,
and OPEB expense in the financial statements based on the actuarial present value of projected
benefit payments, rather than the previously recorded, smaller net OPEB obligation based on
contribution requirements under GASB Statement No. 45. See Note 12 Other Postemployment
Benefits (OPEB).
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City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Variance
with Final
Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes $ 13,284,941 $ 13,284,941 $ 13,411,689 126,748
Fuel taxes 1,165,480 1,165,480 1,309,021 143,541
Franchise fees 4,115,956 4,115,956 4,115,956 -
Utility taxes 1,630,080 1,630,080 1,491,902 (138,178)
Communication service taxes 1,535,447 1,535,447 1,518,228 (17,219)
Half cent sales taxes 5,221,957 5,221,957 5,631,661 409,704
Total taxes 26,953,861 26,953,861 27,478,457 524,596
Licenses and permits 2,615,000 2,615,000 2,975,987 360,987
Intergovernmental:
State revenue sharing 2,833,456 2,833,456 3,071,594 238,138
State insurance premium taxes 900,000 900,000 832,748 (67,252)
County revenue sharing 50,000 50,000 83,891 33,891
Total intergovernmental 3,783,456 3,783,456 3,988,233 204,777
Charges for services:
Recreation fees 319,343 319,343 280,707 (38,636)
Other fees 978,095 978,095 1,000,932 22,837
Total charges for services 1,297,438 1,297,438 1,281,639 (15,799)
Fines and forfeitures 598,500 598,500 705,810 107,310
Investment income 248,000 248,000 159,833 (88,167)
Payments in lieu of taxes 1,704,671 1,704,671 1,704,671 -
Rentals and other revenues 7,464,392 7,964,392 8,985,170 1,020,778
Total other revenues 10,015,563 10,515,563 11,555,484 1,039,921
Total revenues $ 44665318 $ 45165318 $ 47,279,800 § 2,114,482
(Continued)

See note to budgetary comparison schedule.
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
(Continued)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Expenditures:

General government:
Mayor and Council
City Attorney
City Manager
City Clerk
Planning & Zoning
Finance
General Services
Genaral Administration
Human resources

Total general government

Public safety:

Police
Building department
Total public safety

Public works and services:
Streets

Total public works

Parks, recreation and facility maintenance
Total parks and recreation

Capital outlay
Debt service:

Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Non-operating expenses:
Leverage loan to investor 129 LLC (NMTC)

Total non-operating expenses

Other financing sources (uses):
Issuance of debt (equipment financing)
Issuance of other long-term debts
Transfers in
Transfers out
Transfer to Homestead Station QALICB (NMTC)
Appropriation of prior years' fund balance
Total other financing sources (uses)

Change in fund balance
Fund balance - beginning as originally stated
Prior period adjustment

Fund balance - beginning as restated

Fund balance - ending

Variance
with Final
Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 1,638,705 $ 1,623,705 $ 1,385,871 $ 237,834
1,000,000 1,000,000 942,038 57,962
949,168 949,168 941,965 7,203
899,224 899,224 757,163 141,461
1,500,841 1,503,841 1,243,902 259,939
1,645,081 1,638,281 1,637,128 1,153
1,925,682 1,889,520 1,644,858 244,662
3,953,356 4,765,003 3,787,757 977,246
704,047 704,947 662,247 42,700
14,216,104 14,973,689 13,003,529 1,970,160
25,841,260 25,877,477 25,461,545 415,932
1,798,387 1,794,216 1,652,286 141,930
27,639,647 27,671,693 27,113,831 557,862
1,402,684 1,344,156 1,294,494 49,662
1,402,684 1,344,156 1,294,494 49,662
4,771,394 4,768,661 4,352,643 416,018
4,771,394 4,768,661 4,352,643 416,018
846,862 1,520,248 772,270 747,978
399,193 399,193 399,200 7
239,618 322,178 322,169 9
49,515,502 50,999,818 47,258,136 3,741,682
(4,850,184) (5,834,500) 21,664 5,856,164
- 10,766,000 - 10,766,000
- 10,766,000 - 10,766,000
- - 226,008 226,008
- 12,829,100 12,829,100 -
- - 2,970,332 2,970,332
(690,392) (5,790,392) (6,270,482) (480,090)
- (1,150,000) (1,150,000) -
5,540,576 10,711,792 - (10,711,792)
4,850,184 16,600,500 8,604,958 (7,995,542)
$ - $ - 8,626,622 $ 8,626,622
19,437,354
(744,571)
18,692,783
S 27319405

See note to budgetary comparison schedule.
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
HOMESTEAD COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Variance
with Final
Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 2,479,310 $ 2,479310 $ 2,479,310 $ -
Investment income 16,000 16,000 11,568 (4,432)
Other revenue 2,250 2,250 13,720 11,470
Total revenues 2,497,560 2,497,560 2,504,598 7,038
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 1,820,033 1,729,260 1,417,400 311,860
Public safety 276,507 292,735 267,246 25,489
Public works and services 165,948 286,103 147,942 138,161
Capital outlays 980,176 934,566 45,797 888,769
Total expenditures 3,242,664 3,242,664 1,878,385 1,364,279
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (745,104) (745,104) 626,213 1,371,317
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - - 93,500 93,500
Transfers out (327,500) (327,500) (327,500) -
Appropriation of prior years' fund balance 1,072,604 1,072,604 - (1,072,604)
Total other financing sources (uses) 745,104 745,104 (234,000) (979,104)
Change in fund balance $ - 8 - 392,213 $ 392,213

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

1,232,375

$

See note to budgetary comparison schedule.
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City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

IMPACT FEES
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Variance
with Final
Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 2,660,000 $ 2,660,000 $ 2,775973 % 115,973
Investment income 88,000 88,000 91,683 3,683
Total revenues 2,748,000 2,748,000 2,867,656 119,656
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 1,288,985 1,288,985 - 1,288,985
Public safety 227,789 227,789 228,253 (464)
Public works and services 626,010 567,971 1,339 566,632
Parks & recreation 1,195,983 354,883 99,565 255,318
Capital outlays 1,991,108 2,890,247 1,369,497 1,520,750
Total expenditures 5,329,875 5,329,875 1,698,654 3,631,221
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (2,581,875) (2,581,875) 1,169,002 3,750,877
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - - 332,181 332,181
Appropriation of prior years' fund balance 2,581,875 2,581,875 - (2,581,875)
Total other financing sources (uses) 2,581,875 2,581,875 332,181 (2,249,694)
Change in fund balance $ - $ - 1,501,183 $ 1,501,183
Fund balance - beginning 10,090,367
Fund balance - ending $ 11,591,550

See note to budgetary comparison schedule.
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NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

NOTE 1. BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY INFORMATION

The State of Florida requires that all units of local government prepare, adopt and execute an annual
budget for such funds as may be required by law or by sound financial practices and accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States. Accordingly, the City has established the
following procedures for the budgeting process:

L.

During the beginning of September, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed
operating budget for the fiscal year commencing October 1. The operating budget includes
proposed expenditures and the means to finance them.

Public hearings are conducted to obtain citizen comments.
Prior to September 30, the budget is legally enacted through the passage of an ordinance.

The City Manager is authorized to make budgetary transfers and amendments within any
department. Any revisions that alter the total expenditures of a department or fund must be
approved by the City Council. The legal level of budgetary control is at the fund level except
for the General Fund which is at the department level. Unencumbered appropriations in the
annual operating budget lapse at fiscal year end.

The City budgets revenues and expenditures for the General Fund, the Homestead Community
Redevelopment Agency Fund, and Impact Fees Fund on the basis consistent with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States.

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts and purchase orders
issued for goods and services. Encumbrances outstanding at year end for the General Fund are
reported as assigned fund balance as appropriations for subsequent year’s budget and do not
constitute expenditures or liabilities under accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States.

The General Fund had $18,500,316 in supplemental appropriations in fiscal year 2018, as
follows:

$ 12.829,100 NMTC Ordmance 2018-11-23
5,100,000  Disaster expenditures Ordiance 2018-11-24
500,000 50 CDD roadway improvement Ordinance 2018-05-11
71216 Two police dispatchers Ordinance 2018-05-10

$ 18500316  Total
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REQUIRED SUPPLMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
GENERAL EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT PLAN

Measurement date September 30,

A. Total pension liability
Service Cost
Interest on the total pension liability
Difference between expected and actual experience
of the total pension liability **

Changes of assumptions
Benefit payments
Refunds

Net change in total pension liability

Total pension liability - beginning

Total pension liability - ending

B. Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee

Net investment income

Benefit payments

Refunds

Pension plan administrative expense

Net change in plan fiduciary net position
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning
Plan fiduciary net position - ending

C. Net pension liability (A-B)
D. Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of
the total pension liability

E. Covered payroll

F. Net pension liability as a percentage of
covered payroll

Note: This schedule is intended to have ten years of data. Additional data to be compiled as information becomes available.

City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

** These amounts are the updated amount. The amount reported in the RSI in the Plan' financial does not reflect the updated

amount of the "Difference between expected and actual experience of the total pension liability."

-138-

2017 2016 2015 2014
$ 1,667,916 $ 1,653,360 $ 1,693,876 $ 1,749,000
5,674,844 5,618,813 5,415,394 5,207,957
557,519 (807,532) 57471 (588,885)
1,956,133 - - -
(3,157,304) (3,721,862) (2,900,572) (3,626,962)
(30,307) (57,959) (30,096) (256,423)
6,668,301 2,684,820 4,236,073 2,484,687
83,997,656 81,312,836 77,076,763 74,592,076
$ 90,666,457 $ 83,997,656 $ 81312836 $ 77,076,763
$ 2505891 § 2725022 $ 2,834,656 $  2,874430
360,501 353,824 360,333 368,500
6,830,581 7,438,130 1,652,437 5,985,552
(3,157,304) (3,721,862) (2,900,572) (3,626,962)
(30,307) (57,959) (30,096) (256,423)
(114,280) (121,737) (94,114) (115,419)
6,395,082 6,615,418 1,822,644 5,229,678
74,271,912 67,656,494 65,833,850 60,604,172
$ 80,666,994 $ 74271912 $  67.656494 $ 65,833,850
$ 9999463 $ 9725744 $ 13,656,342 $ 11242913
88.97% 88.42% 83.21% 85.41%
$ 9012525 $ 8845600 $  9,008325 $ 11,891,551
110.95% 109.95% 151.60% 94.55%



REQUIRED SUPPLMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
POLICE OFFICERS' RETIREMENT PLAN

Measurement date September 30,

A. Total pension liability
Service Cost
Interest on the total pension liability
Changes of benefit terms

City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

Difference between expected and actual experience

of the total pension liability **

Changes of assumptions

Benefit payments

Refunds

Other: excess premium tax money
Net change in total pension liability
Total pension liability - beginning
Total pension liability - ending

B. Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions - employer
Contributions - employer (from state)
Contributions - employee

Net investment income

Benefit payments

Refunds

Pension plan administrative expense

Net change in plan fiduciary net position
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning
Plan fiduciary net position - ending

C. Net pension liability (A-B)
D. Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of
the total pension liability

E. Covered payroll

F. Net pension liability as a percentage of
covered payroll

2017 2016 2015 2014
$ 2457445 $ 2303862 $ 2,038,250 $ 1,867,237
7,779,407 7,467,998 6,996,689 6,697,302

- - - (636,892)

(1,061,534) 2,137,361 9,760 868,752
3,284,117 994,053 909,574 -
(3,546,301) (5,950,632) (5,450,397) (5.292,181)
(23,031) - - (27,559)

- 208,166 204,003 136,996

8,890,103 7,160,808 4,707,879 3,613,655
101,687,839 94,527,031 89,819,152 86,205,497

$ 110,577,942 $ 101,687,839 $ 94,527,031 $ 89,819,152
$ 399689 $ 3,726,793 $ 3816076 $ 4,057,242
577,817 532,808 528,645 461,638
663,039 665,451 580,028 680,063
9,517,349 6,354,619 498,007 10,520,035
(3,546,301) (5,950,632) (5,450,397) (5.292,181)
(23,031) - - (27,559)
(103,626) (108.,083) (84,733) (82,376
11,082,116 5,220,956 (112,374) 10,316,862
81,781,384 76,560,428 76,672,802 66,355,940

$ 92,863,500 $ 81,781,384 $ 76,560,428 $ 76,672,802
$ 17714442 $ 19,906,455 $ 17,966,603 $ 13,146,350
83.98% 80.42% 80.99% 85.36%

$  7.858,654 $ 7,394,222 $  7,145922 $ 6,411,046
225.41% 269.22% 251.42% 205.06%

Note: This schedule is intended to have ten years of data. Additional data to be compiled as information becomes available.
** These amounts are the updated amount. The amount reported in the RSI in the Plan' financial does not reflect the updated
amount of the "Difference between expected and actual experience of the total pension liability."
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REQUIRED SUPPLMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
ELECTED OFFICIALS RETIREMENT PLAN

Measurement date December 31,

A. Total pension liability
Service Cost
Interest on the total pension liability
Difference between expected and actual experience
of the total pension liability

Changes of assumptions
Benefit payments

Net change in total pension liability

Total pension liability - beginning

Total pension liability - ending

B. Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions - employer (from City)
Net investment income

Benefit payments

Pension plan administrative expense

Net change in plan fiduciary net position
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning
Plan fiduciary net position - ending

C. Net pension liability (A-B)
D. Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of
the total pension liability

E. Covered payroll

F. Net pension liability as a percentage of
covered payroll

2017 2016 2015 2014
$ 33,062 $ 30,899 § 28,777 28,777
221,813 213,296 205,503 196,249
- (147,132) - -
- 127,575 - -
(121,962) (118.,409) (84,381) (91,469)
132,913 106,229 149,899 133,557
3,314,035 3,207,806 3,057,907 2,924,350
$ 3,446,948 $ 3,314,035 $ 3,207.806 3,057,907
$ 297,864 $ 297,864 $ 136,611 221,576
203,238 162,124 (254,296) 3,474
(121,962) (118,409) (84,381) (91,469)
(23,577) (BL711) (19,095) (33313)
355,563 309,868 (221,161) 100,268
2,643,515 2,333,647 2,554,808 2,454,540
$ 2,999,078 $ 2,643,515 $ 2,333,647 2,554,808
$ 447870 $ 670,520 $ 874,159 503,099
87.01% 79.77% 72.75% 83.55%
$ 33,200 $ 34,363 S 56,167 32,100
1349.01% 1951.28% 1556.36% 1567.29%

Note: This schedule is intended to have ten years of data. Additional data to be compiled as information becomes available.
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REQUIRED SUPPLMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
NEW ELECTED OFFICIALS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Measurement date December 31, 2017 2016 2015 2014

A. Total pension liability

Service Cost $ 58,646 $ 58,065 $ 44342 § 43,903
Interest on the total pension liability 306,336 301,228 288,559 284,923
Difference between expected and actual experience
of the total pension liability - 20,951 - -
Changes of assumptions - 100,119 - -
Benefit payments (287,120) (281,288) (278,718) (272,069)
Net change in total pension liability 77,862 199,075 54,183 56,757
Total pension liability - beginning 4,623,228 4,424,153 4,369,970 4,313,213
Total pension liability - ending $ 4,701,090 $ 4,623,228 $ 4,424,153  § 4,369,970

B. Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions - employer $ 108,151  $ 107,073  $ 54,580 $ 108,622

Net investment income 660,067 162,088 (64,059) 390,121
Benefit payments (287,120) (281,288) (278,718) (272,069)
Pension plan administrative expense (60,113) (47,988) (29,472) (31,358)

Other (1,527) - - -

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 413,458 (60,115) (317,669) 195,316

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 4,311,200 4,371,315 4,688,984 4,493,668

Plan fiduciary net position - ending $ 4,724,658 $ 4,311,200 $ 4371,315 $ 4,688,984
C. Net pension liability (A-B) $ (23,568) $ 312,028 $ 52,838 § (319,014)

D. Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of
the total pension liability 100.50% 93.25% 98.81% 107.30%

E. Covered payroll $ 175,611 $ 181,800 $ 154,744 $ 151,500

F. Net pension liability as a percentage of
covered payroll -13.42% 171.63% 34.15% -210.57%

Note: This schedule is intended to have ten years of data. Additional data to be compiled as information becomes available.
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REQUIRED SUPPLMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

FIREFIGHTERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Measurement date December 31,

A. Total pension liability
Interest on the total pension liability
Difference between expected and actual experience
of the total pension liability

Changes of assumptions
Benefit payments
Other: excess premium tax money

Net change in total pension liability

Total pension liability - beginning

Total pension liability - ending

B. Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions - employer
Contributions - employer (from state)
Net investment income

Benefit payments

Pension plan administrative expense

Net change in plan fiduciary net position
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning
Plan fiduciary net position - ending

C. Net pension liability (A-B)
D. Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of
the total pension liability

E. Covered payroll

F. Net pension liability as a percentage of
covered payroll

2017 2016 2015 2014
477,065 520,113 511,447 S 500,515
113,721 (314,459) - 87,812
- (61,905) 433,681 -
(888,166) (993,410) (1,031,456) (1,000,057)
122,635 146,910 254,332 302,968
(174,745) (702,751) 168,004 (108,762)
7,722,230 8,424,981 8,256,977 8,365,739
7,547,485 7,722,230 8,424981 $ 8,256,977
188,587 181,617 289,941 S 195,529
215,060 239,335 346,757 395,393
1,047,585 475,187 3,173 381,316
(888,166) (993,410) (1,031,456) (1,000,057)
(72,089) (58,793) (61,629) (54,920)
490,977 (156,064) (453,214) (82,739)
7,219,945 7,376,009 7,829,223 7,911,962
7,710,922 7,219,945 7,376,009 $  7.829.223
(163,437) 502,285 1,048,972 $ 427,754
102.17% 93.50% 87.55% 94.82%
- - - $ -
N/A N/A N/A N/A

Note: This schedule is intended to have ten years of data. Additional data to be compiled as information becomes available.
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City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

Measurement date October 1, 2017

Total OPEB Liability
Service cost $ 1,040,917
Interest cost 421,901

Changes of benefit terms -
Difference between expected and actual experience -

Changes of assumptions (850,170)
Discount rate -6.28%
Trend rate 0.00 %
Mortality 0.00 %
ACA 0.00 %

Total increase/(decrease) -6.28%
Pre-funding contributions - employer -
Net investment income -

Benefit payments (52,936)
Net change in total OPEB liability 559,712
Total OPEB liability - beginning 13,538,196 ***
Total OPEB liability - ending $ 14,097,908
Covered payroll $ 24,961,866

Total OPEB liability as a percentage of
covered payroll 56.48%

Note: This schedule is intended to have ten years of data. Implementation of GASB No. 75 occurred
in fiscal year 2018.
Additional data to be compiled as information becomes available.
GASB 75 requires that the impact of all assumptions changes to be calculated and disclosed.
There were no assumption changes in this valuation other than the discaount rate.

*#%  This is last year's Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL). It is now Total OPEB liability.
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND
STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES




MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS




MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Capital Project Funds

Capital projects funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities
other than those financed by proprietary and trust funds.

Multimodal Transit Center Fund — This fund is used to account for the cost associated with the
construction of a parking garage/retail facility (Multimodal Transit Center) financed through Taxable
Transportation System Revenue Bonds, Series 2017.



| -l ]
_mmm

CITY OF
HOMESTEAD

(This page intentionally left blank)



City oFf HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Revenues:
Investment income

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Public works
Capital outlay

Debt service:
Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources: (uses):
Issuance of other long-term debt
Transfer in
Transfer out
Appropriation of prior years' fund balance

Total other financing sources (uses)
Change in fund balance

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

Capital Project Funds

Multimodal Transit Center

Variance

with Final

Budget -

Original Final Actual (Negative)
- - 347,613 $ 347,613
- - 347,613 347,613
- 82,884 669,286 (586,402)
32,746,651 32,997,618 436,401 32,561,217
18,959 1,100 1,100 -
32,765,610 33,081,602 1,106,787 31,974,815
(32,765,610) (33,081,602) (759,174) 32,322,428
- 1,270,000 - (1,270,000)
- - 287,834 287,834
- (954,008) (3,921,616) (2,967,608)
32,765,610 32,765,610 - (32,765,610)
32,765,610 33,081,602 (3,633,782) (36,715,384)

-147-

(4,392,956) $

28,347,814

23,954,858

(4,392,956)
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditures
for particular purposes.

Sundries Grants — This fund is used to account for expenditures and revenues derived from various grants.

Community Development Block Grants — This fund was established to account for expenditures and
revenues derived from Community Development Block Grants obtained from the Department of Housing
and Urban Development (HUD), and other local agencies.

Confiscated Property Law Enforcement Fund — This fund is used to account for monies received from
federal and state confiscated and forfeited property and from county surcharges of traffic violations. The
federal and state equitable shared property are to be used in accordance with State of Florida Statutes,
Chapter 932, the United States Department of Justice publication, A Guide to Equitable Sharing of
Federally Forfeited Property for State and Local Law Enforcement Agencies, and the United States
Treasury Department publication, Guide to Equitable Sharing for Foreign Countries and Federal, State,
and Local Law Enforcement Agencies, which govern the use of confiscated and forfeited funds. The county
funds are restricted to use on police training activities.

Disaster Relief Fund- This fund is used to account for the expenditures and reimbursements related to
natural disasters.

Homestead Miami Speedway — This fund is used to account for the lease rental income and costs related
to the bond debt service and taxes for the racetrack facility.

Debt Service Funds
Debt service funds are used to account for the servicing of the governmental debt.

Taxable Transportation System Revenue Bonds Debt Service — This fund is used to account for the
accumulation of resources for, and the payment of principal, interest, and related costs of the Taxable
Transportation System Revenue Bonds, Series 2017.

HERO/Tax Increment Financing Debt Service — This fund is used to account for the accumulation of
resources for, and the payment of principal, interest, and related costs of the Homestead Economic and
Rebuilding Organization (HERO) Increment Revenue Bonds.

GOB Debt Service — This fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment
of principal, interest, and related costs of the General Obligation Bonds, Series 2014.



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
(Continued)

Capital Projects Funds

Capital projects funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities
other than those financed by proprietary funds.

People’s Transportation Plan — This fund is used to account for surtax revenues received from Miami-
Dade County based on a one-half of one percent discretionary sales surtax on all transactions occurring in
Miami-Dade County per an Interlocal agreement. At least 20% of the surtax revenue must be used for transit
purposes such as buses, bus shelters and other transit-related infrastructure and the remainder be used for
transportation.

Capital Improvement Fund — This fund is used to account for various capital improvement projects for
the General Fund, funded mostly from the capital leases.

New City Hall Fund — This fund is used to account for the cost associated with the construction of the
New City Hall Building.

New Police Building Fund — This fund is used to account for the cost associated with the construction of
the New Police Building financed through General Obligation Bonds.

Seminole Theatre Renovation Fund — This fund was used to account for the renovation of the Seminole
Theatre. Financing is provided by the General Obligation Bonds. This fund was closed in 2018.

Cybrary Fund — This fund is used to account for the for the cost associated with the construction of a new
Cybrary building, and the various sources of funding, including a HUD Section 108 Loan.



ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Interest receivable on investments

Account receivables, net
Due from other funds
Prepaid costs
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Asset available for sale
Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Due to other funds
Unearned revenue
Total Liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable :
Prepaid costs
Restricted :
Grants
Community development
Disaster relief
Law enforcement
Debt service
Assigned :
Parks and recreation

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Special Revenue Funds

Community
Development Homestead
Sundries Block Confiscated Disaster Miami
Grants Grants Property Relief Speedway Total

7229 $ 351,380 $ -3 198,501 $ 211,075 $ 768,185

- - 894 - - 894
2,971,244 111,094 1,082 - 3,083,420
- - - 475,000 475,000

- - 382 - 382

- - 785,956 112,841 898,797

- - 240,581 883,331 1,123,912

- 807,346 - - - 807,346
2,978473 $ 1,269,820 $ 1,028,895 $ 198,501 § 1,682,247 $ 7,157,936
548,041 $ 110,241  $ 120,599 $ 184,698 $ -8 963,579
1,780,000 - - - - 1,780,000
89,908 421,034 137,181 - - 648,123
2,417,949 531,275 257,780 184,698 - 3,391,702
- - 382 - - 382
560,524 - - - - 560,524

- 738,545 - - - 738,545

- - - 13,803 - 13,803

- - 770,733 - - 770,733

- - - - 996,172 996,172

- - - - 686,075 686,075
560,524 738,545 771,115 13,803 1,682,247 3,766,234
2,978473 $ 1,269,820 $ 1,028,895 $ 198,501 § 1,682,247 $ 7,157,936
(Continued)
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City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
(Continued)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Debt Service Funds

Taxable
Transportation HERO/Tax Genaral
System Revenue Increment Obligation
Bonds Financing Bonds Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ - $ 431,646 $ - $ 431,646
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 449,841 305,976 142,717 898,534
Total Assets $ 449,841 $ 737,622 $ 142,717 $ 1,330,180
FUND BALANCES
Restricted :
Debt service 449,841 737,622 142,717 1,330,180
Total fund balances 449,841 737,622 142,717 1,330,180
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 449,841 $ 737,622 $ 142,717 $ 1,330,180

(Continued)
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Interest receivable on investments
Account receivables, net
Due from other funds
Prepaid costs
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Asset available for sale

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Unearned revenue
Other liabilities
Total Liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable :
Prepaid costs
Restricted :
Grants
Community development
Disaster relief
Law enforcement
Debt service
Capital projects
Transit and transportation
Assigned :
Parks and recreation
Capital Project
Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
(Continued)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Total
Other
Governmental
Capital Projects Funds Funds
People's
Transportation Capital New City ~ New Police
Plan Improvement Hall Building Cybrary Total
$ 33,418 $§ 219,679 $ 204,662 - $ 645581 § 1,103,340 S 2,303,171
683,080 - - - 398 683,478 683,478
2,538 - - - 1,407 3,945 4,839
992,935 - 183,904 - - 1,176,839 4,260,259
800,000 300,000 - - 185,000 1,285,000 1,760,000
9,018 - - - - 9,018 9,400
- - - 2,300 - 2,300 1,799,631
- - - 436,432 378,242 814,674 1,938,586
- - - - - - 807,346
$ 2,520,989 § 519,679 $ 388,566 438,732 $ 1,210,628 $ 5,078,594 $ 13,566,710
69,104 7,386 13,803 116,442 2,162 208,897 1,172,476
- - - 185,000 - 185,000 1,965,000
488,958 - - - - 488,958 1,137,081
- - 156,250 - - 156,250 156,250
558,062 7,386 170,053 301,442 2,162 1,039,105 4,430,807
9,018 - - - - 9,018 9,400
- - - - - - 560,524
- - - - - - 738,545
- - - - - - 13,303
- - - - - - 770,733
- - - - - - 2,326,352
- - - 137,290 378,242 515,532 515,532
1,953,909 - - - - 1,953,909 1,953,909
- - - - - - 686,075
- 512,293 218,513 - 830,224 1,561,030 1,561,030
1,962,927 512,293 218,513 137,290 1,208,466 4,039,489 9,135,903
§ 2,520,989 § 519,679 $ 388,566 $ 438,732 § 1,210,628 § 5,078,594 $ 13,566,710
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Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Fines and forfeitures
Investment income (loss)
Rentals and other revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Parks and recreation
Disaster relief
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources

Change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning

Fund balances, ending

City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Special Revenue Funds

Community
Development Homestead
Sundries Block Confiscated Disaster Miami
Grants Grants Property Relief Speedway Total

$ 4232591 $ 531,278 $ -3 172,586 $ - $ 4936455

- 1,456,943 - - 1,456,943

i : 4,613 . . 4,613

11,673 - - - 1,074,266 1,085,939

4,244,264 531,278 1,461,556 172,586 1,074,266 7,483,950

27,665 544,163 - - - 571,828

968,754 - 962,819 - - 1,931,573

9,898 - - - 730,789 740,687

- - - 4,774,725 4,774,725

2,898,780 3,241 8,334 - - 2,910,355

- 194,000 - - 550,000 744,000

- 369 - - 24,391 24,760

3,905,097 741,773 971,153 4,774,725 1,305,180 11,697,928
339,167 (210,495) 490,403 (4,602,139) (230,914) (4,213,978)

- - - 5,400,000 - 5,400,000
(332,181) - - - - (332,181)

(332,181) - - 5,400,000 - 5,067,819

6,986 (210,495) 490,403 797,861 (230,914) 853,841

553,538 949,040 280,712 (784,058) 1,913,161 2,912,393

$ 560,524 $ 738,545 $ 771,115 $ 13,803 $ 1,682,247 $ 3,766,234
(Continued)
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Revenues:
Property taxes

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources:
Transfers in

Total other financing sources

Change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning

Fund balances, ending

City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

(Continued)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Debt Service Funds

Taxable
Transportation HERO/Tax Genaral
System Revenue Increment Obligation
Bonds Financing Bonds Total
$ - $ - $ 1,393,318 $ 1,393,318
- - 1,393,318 1,393,318
865,000 284,203 465,000 1,614,203
931,807 38,341 1,021,088 1,991,236
1,796,807 322,544 1,486,088 3,605,439
(1,796,807) (322,544) (92,770) (2,212,121)
2,246,648 327,500 - 2,574,148
2,246,648 327,500 - 2,574,148
449,841 4,956 (92,770) 362,027
- 732,666 235,487 968,153
$ 449,841 $ 737,622 $ 142,717 $ 1,330,180
(Continued)
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City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Revenues:
Property taxes
Intergovernmental
Fines and forfeitures
Investment income
Rentals and other revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Parks and recreation
Disaster relief
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Issuance of debt (HUD section 108 loan)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources

Change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning

Fund balances, ending

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
(Continued)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Total
Other
Governmental
Capital Projects Funds Funds
People's
Transportation Capital New City New Police  Seminole
Plan Improvement Hall Building Theatre Cybrary Total
$ - 8 - 8 - 8 - 8 - 8 - 8 -8 1,393,318
2,928,991 - - - - - 2,928,991 7,865,446
- - - - - - - 1,456,943
6,626 - 1,275 2,995 - 2,598 13,494 18,107
286 - - - 16 - 302 1,086,241
2,935,903 - 1,275 2,995 16 2,598 2,942,787 11,820,055
- 342,688 4,680 - - - 347,368 919,196
- - - 167,063 - - 167,063 2,098,636
1,104,648 - - - - - 1,104,648 1,104,648
- - - - - 15,734 15,734 756,421
- - - - - - - 4,774,725
114,022 51,890 84,821 351,453 13,600 185,992 801,778 3,712,133
- - - - - - - 2,358,203
- - - - - - - 2,015,996
1,218,670 394,578 89,501 518,516 13,600 201,726 2,436,591 17,739,958
1,717,233 (394,578) (88,226)  (515,521) (13,584) (199,128) 506,196 (5,919,903)
- - - - - 194,000 194,000 194,000
954,008 394,892 - - - - 1,348,900 9,323,048
(1,747,892) - - - (2,724) - (1,750,616) (2,082,797)
(793,884) 394,892 - - (2,724) 194,000 (207,716) 7,434,251
923,349 314 (88,226)  (515,521) (16,308) (5,128) 298,480 1,514,348
1,039,578 511,979 306,739 652,811 16,308 1,213,594 3,741,009 7,621,555
$ 1,962,927 $§ 512,293 § 218,513 § 137,290 $ - $ 1208466 $ 4,039,489 $ 9,135,903
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NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS




NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Proprietary funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises - where the intent of the government’s Council is that the costs of providing
goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through
user charges; or where the government’s Council has decided that periodic determination of net income is
appropriate for accountability purposes.

Stormwater Fund - This fund accounts for the daily operating activities related to the Stormwater Utility.
Utilities Repair, Replacement and Improvement Fund — This fund accounts for the accumulation of

assets to be utilized for the repair, replacement and improvements of the electric, water, sewer, and solid
waste facilities of the City.
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City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Utilities Repair Total
Replacement Other
and Enterprise
Stormwater Improvements Funds
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 113,993 § 5,344 119,337
Investments 2,184,005 - 2,184,005
Interest receivable on investments 8,116 - 8,116
Account receivables, net 623,437 - 623,437
Due from other funds - 1,600,000 1,600,000
Total current assets 2,929,551 1,605,344 4,534,895
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets being depreciated, net 446,205 - 446,205
Total noncurrent assets 446,205 - 446,205
Total assets 3,375,756 1,605,344 4,981,100
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows for pension 94,764 - 94,764
Deferred outflows for OPEB 1,523 - 1,523
Total deferred outflows of resources 96,287 - 96,287
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 29,808 - 29,808
Compensated absences 9,870 - 9,870
Equipment financing 364 - 364
Total current liabilities 40,042 - 40,042
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences 23,030 - 23,030
Net pension liability 179,156 - 179,156
Total OPEB liability 381,963 - 381,963
Total noncurrent liabilities 584,149 - 584,149
Total liabilities 624,191 - 624,191
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows for pension 64,368 - 64,368
Deferred inflows for OPEB 23,034 - 23,034
Total deferred inflows of resources 87,402 - 87,402
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 445,841 - 445,841
Unrestricted 2,314,609 1,605,344 3,919,953
Total net position $ 2,760,450 $ 1,605,344 4,365,794
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City oFf HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Operating revenues:
Charges for services

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Personnel services
Other operating expenses
Depreciation

Total expenditures
Operating income
Non-operating income/(expense):
Interest income
Interest expense
Total non-operating income

Income before transfers

Transfers out
Total transfers

Change in net position

Net position, beginning as originally stated
Prior period adjustment

Net position, beginning as restated

Net position, ending

Utilities Repair Total
Replacement Other
and Enterprise
Stormwater Improvements Funds
$ 901,505 $ - 901,505
901,505 - 901,505
902,849 - 902,849
645,456 - 645,456
98,215 - 98,215
1,646,520 - 1,646,520
(745,015) - (745,015)
21,566 - 21,566
(14) - (14)
21,552 - 21,552
(723,463) - (723,463)
(6,437) (988,929) (995,366)
(6,437) (988,929) (995,366)
(729,900) (988,929) (1,718,829)
3,549,367 2,594,273 6,143,640
(59,017) - (59,017)
3,490,350 2,594,273 6,084,623
$ 2,760,450 $ 1,605,344 4,365,794
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City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Utilities Repair Total
Replacement Other
and Enterprise
Stormwater Improvements Funds
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers $ 722,097 $ -3 722,097
Cash payments to suppliers (631,381) - (631,381)
Cash received from other funds 350,000 900,000 1,250,000
Cash payments to employees (872,301) - (872,301)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (431,585) 900,000 468,415
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers to other funds (6,437) (988,929) (995,366)
Net cash used in noncapital financing activities (6,437) (988,929) (995,366)
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (31,201) - (31,201)
Principal paid on long-term debt (718) - (718)
Interest paid on long term debt (14) - (14)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (31,933) - (31,933)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of investments (61,385) - (61,385)
Proceeds from sale of investments 537,292 - 537,292
Interest received on investments 21,566 - 21,566
Net cash provided by investing activities 497,473 - 497,473
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 27,518 (88,929) (61,411)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning 86,475 94,273 180,748
Cash and cash equivalents, ending $ 113,993 §$ 5344 § 119,337
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities:
Operating loss $ (745,015) $ -3 (745,015)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation 98,215 - 98,215
Net changes in assets, liabilities, deferred outflows and deferred inflows:
(Increase) decrease in:
Interest receivable 2,712 - 2,712
Accounts receivables (182,120) - (182,120)
Due from other funds 350,000 900,000 1,250,000
Deferred outflows for pensions (21,592) - (21,592)
Deferred outtlows for OPEB (1,523) - (1,523)
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 14,075 - 14,075
Due to other funds - - -
Compensated Absences (2,064) - (2,064)
Net pension liability 13,512 - 13,512
Total OPEB liability 12,102 - 12,102
Deferred inflows for pensions 7,079 - 7,079
Deferred inflows for OPEB 23,034 - 23,034
Total adjustments 313,430 900,000 1,213,430
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ (431,585) $ 900,000 $ 468,415
Non-cash investing, capital and financing activities:
Change in fair value of investments $ (25,938) § -3 (25,938)
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ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Account receivables, net
Due from other funds
Inventories

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets being depreciated, net
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows for pension
Deferred outflows for OPEB
Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Compensated absences
Equipmet financing
Claims and judgements

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Total OPEB liability
Claims and judgements

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred inflows for pension
Deferred inflows for OPEB

Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Business-
type
Governmental Activities Activities

Health Other Total Total

Self- Self- Fleet Governmental Customer Internal

Insurance Insurance Management Activities Service Service
$ 6,650 $ 27,445 $ 6,899 $ 40,994 $ 2,103 43,097
- - 14,576 14,576 - 14,576
- 3,880,000 460,000 4,340,000 1,610,000 5,950,000
- - 151,442 151,442 - 151,442
6,650 3,907,445 632,917 4,547,012 1,612,103 6,159,115
- 1,212 112,453 113,665 111,725 225,390
6,650 3,908,657 745,370 4,660,677 1,723,828 6,384,505
- 42,499 130,240 172,739 299,036 471,775
- 138 969 1,107 3,739 4,846
- 42,637 131,209 173,846 302,775 476,621
6,650 178,173 206,171 390,994 145,278 536,272
- 4,566 17,532 22,098 17,273 39,371
- 215 1,274 1,489 6,071 7,560
- 893,730 - 893,730 - 893,730
6,650 1,076,684 224,977 1,308,311 168,622 1,476,933
- 10,655 40,908 51,563 40,307 91,870
- 80,347 246,225 326,572 565,341 891,913
- 34,724 243,067 277,791 937,546 1,215,337
- 2,714,617 - 2,714,617 - 2,714,617
- 2,840,343 530,200 3,370,543 1,543,194 4,913,737
6,650 3,917,027 755,177 4,678,854 1,711,816 6,390,670
- 28,867 88,465 117,332 203,119 320,451
- 2,094 14,659 16,753 56,538 73,291
- 30,961 103,124 134,085 259,657 393,742
- 997 111,179 112,176 105,654 217,830
- 2,309 (92,901) (90,592) (50,524) (141,116)
$ -3 3,306 $ 18,278 $ 21,584  $ 55,130 $ 76,714
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City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Business-
type
Governmental Activities Activities
Health Other Total Total
Self- Self- Fleet Governmental Customer Internal
Insurance Insurance Management Activities Service Service
Operating revenues:
Charges for services $ 9,598,189 $ 2,707,570 $ 3,474,413 $§ 15,780,172 $ 3,973,087 $ 19,753,259
Other revenues - - 61,525 61,525 6,395 67,920
Total operating revenues 9,598,189 2,707,570 3,535,938 15,841,697 3,979,482 19,821,179
Operating expenses:
Personnel services - 139,742 721,226 860,968 2,032,252 2,893,220
Administration 52,213 1,018,078 - 1,070,291 - 1,070,291
Insurance and claims 9,545,976 1,540,169 - 11,086,145 - 11,086,145
Other operating expenses - - 2,682,842 2,682,842 1,740,043 4,422 885
Depreciation - 902 110,986 111,888 48,213 160,101
Total operating expenses 9,598,189 2,698,891 3,515,054 15,812,134 3,820,508 19,632,642
Operating income (loss) - 8,679 20,884 29,563 158,974 188,537
Non-operating expenses:
Interest expense - (8) (50) (58) (240) (298)
Total non-operating expenses - (8) (50) (58) (240) (298)
Other financing uses:
Transfer out - - - - (25,747) (25,747)
Total other financing uses - - - - (25,747) (25,747)
Change in net position - 8,671 20,834 29,505 132,987 162,492
Net position, beginning as originally stated - - 35,000 35,000 67,005 102,005
Prior period adjustment - (5,365) (37,556) (42,921) (144,862) (187,783)
Net position, beginning as restated - (5,365) (2,556) (7,921) (77,857) (85,778)
Net position, ending $ - 3 3,306 $ 18,278  $ 21,584  $ 55,130 § 76,714
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Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from other funds
Cash payments to suppliers
Cash payments to employees

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers to other funds

Net cash used in noncapital financing activies

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal paid on long term debt
Interest paid on long term debt

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning

Cash and cash equivalents, ending

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation

City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Net changes in assets, liabilities, deferred outflows and deferred inflows:

(Increase) decrease in:
Account receivables
Due from other funds
Prepaid / Other assets
Inventories
Net pension asset
Deferred outflows for pension
Deferred outflows for OPEB
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Compensated Absences
Net pension liability
Total OPEB liability
Claims and judgements
Deferred inflows for pension
Deferred inflows for OPEB
Total adjustments

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Business-
type
Governmental Activities Activities
Health Other Total Total
Self- Self- Fleet Governmental Customer Internal
Insurance Insurance Management Activities Service Service

$ 9,598,189 $ 3,527,570 $ 3,275,938 $ 16,401,697 § 3,869,482 § 20,271,179
(9,596,339) (3,461,878)  (2,552,974) (15,611,191) (1,767,225) (17,378,416)
- (139,242) (716,271) (855,513) (2,063,030) (2,918,543)
1,850 (73,550) 6,693 (65,007) 39,227 (25,780)
- - - - (25,747) (25,747)
- - - - (25,747) (25,747)
- - (101,299) (101,299) (79,609) (180,908)
- (423) (2,514) (2,937) (11,983) (14,920)
- ®) (50) (58) (240) (298)
- (431) (103,863) (104,294) (91,832) (196,126)
1,850 (73,981) (97,170) (169,301) (78,352) (247,653)

4,800 101,426 104,069 210,295 80,455 290,750

$ 6,650 § 27,445 $ 6,899 § 40,994 $ 2,103 $ 43,097
$ - 8 8,679 § 20,884 $ 29,563 $ 158974 §$ 188,537
- 902 110,986 111,888 48,213 160,101
- - (2,050) (2,050) - (2,050)

- 820,000 (260,000) 560,000 (110,000) 450,000

- 10,801 - 10,801 - 10,801

- - 27,108 27,108 - 27,108
- (8,825) (27,077) (35,902) (10,627) (46,529)
(138) (969) (1,107) (3,739) (4,846)

1,850 5,749 104,810 112,409 (27,182) 85,227
- (350) (9,742) (10,092) 7,579 (2,513)
- 4,117 12,688 16,805 (87,546) (70,741)

- 1,100 7,701 8,801 29,704 38,505
- (920,181) - (920,181) - (920,181)

- 2,502 7,695 10,197 (22,687) (12,490)

- 2,094 14,659 16,753 56,538 73,291

1,850 (82,229) (14,191) (94,570) (119,747) (214,317)

$ 1,850 $ (73,550) $ 6,693 § (65,007) $ 39,227 $ (25,780)
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STATISTICAL SECTION




Statistical Section

This part of the City of Homestead’s comprehensive annual financial report represents
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the City's
overall financial health.

Contents

Financial Trends

The information presented in this section is intended to assist users in understanding and
assessing how a government's financial position has changed over time.

Revenue Capacity

These information presented in this section is intended to assist users in understanding and
assessing the City’s two most significant local revenue sources, the property tax and the
electric utility revenues.

Debt Capacity

The information presented in this section is intended to assist users in understanding and
assessing the City’s current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue
additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information

The information presented in this section is intended to assist users in understanding the
socioeconomic environment within which the City operates.

Operating Information

The information presented in this section contains service and infrastructure data and is
intended to help the reader understand how the information in the City’s financial reports
relates to the services the City provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports for the relevant years.

Page
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Financial Trends Information
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The information presented in this section is intended to assist users in understanding and
assessing how a government's financial position has changed over time. 168-172
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Revenue Capacity Information Page

The information presented in this section is intended to assist users in understanding and
assessing the City’s two most significant local revenue sources, the property tax and the
electric utility revenues. 173-177
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City oFf HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA
ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)
Assessed
Value
Real Personal Total Total Estimated asa
City's Property Property Taxable Direct Actual Percentage
Fiscal Assessed Assessed Assessed Valuation Tax Taxable of Estimated
Year Value Value Value Adjustments Rate Value Value
2009 $ 3,854,307 $ 110,531 $3,964,838 $ (206,460) 5.3410 $ 3,758,378 94.8%
2010 2,876,330 110,037 2,986,367 (204,545) 6.2917 2,781,822 93.2%
2011 1,949,572 104,273 2,053,845 (126,949) 6.2917 1,926,896 93.8%
2012 1,764,888 109,630 1,874,518 (77,170) 6.2917 1,797,348 95.9%
2013 1,703,374 99,520 1,802,894 (63,028) 6.2435 1,739,866 96.5%
2014 1,705,252 99,762 1,805,014 (34,245) 5.9215 1,770,769 98.1%
2015 1,847,542 101,259 1,948,801 (40,766) 6.9315 1,908,035 97.9%
2016 2,035,141 103,169 2,138,310 (35,122) 6.5149 2,103,188 98.4%
2017 2,214,915 101,599 2,316,514 (13,593) 6.5149 2,302,921 99.4%
2018 2,500,479 108,154 2,608,633 (19,462) 6.4790 2,589,171 99.3%

Source: Miami-Dade County Department of Property Appraiser.
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City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

Ratio of
Total Delinquent
Taxes Current Tax Delinquent Tax Total Tax Outstanding Taxes to
City's Levied Collections Collections Collections Delinquent Total
Fiscal Tax for the % % % Taxes
Year Year fiscal year Amount  of Levy Amount of Levy Amount of Levy Amount Levied
2009 2008 § 21,176 $ 18,642 88.0% $ 342 1.6%  $18,984 89.6% $ 1,028 4.9%
2010 2009 18,789 16,097 85.7% 703 3.7% 16,800 89.4% 1,372 7.3%
2011 2010 12,922 11,873 91.9% 310 2.4% 12,183 94.3% 558 4.3%
2012 2011 11,794 11,365 96.4% 35 0.3% 11,400 96.7% 163 1.4%
2013 2012 11,256 10,568 93.9% 3 0.0% 10,571 93.9% 680 6.0%
2014 2013 10,688 10,216 95.6% 40 0.4% 10,256 96.0% 139 1.3%
2015 2014 13,508 12,668 93.8% 49 0.4% 12,717 94.1% 233 1.7%
2016 2015 13,931 13,097 94.0% 33 0.2% 13,130 94.3% 756 5.4%
2017 2016 15,092 14,522 96.2% 47 0.3% 14,569 96.5% N/A N/A
2018 2017 16,901 15,528 91.9% 667 3.9% 16,195 95.8% 1,256 7.4%
Source:  Miami-Dade County Department of Property Appraiser
Note: Starting in fiscal year 2015, total tax levied also included tax levied on debt services.

N/A - Not available
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Debt Capacity Information Page

The information presented in this section is intended to assist users in understanding and
assessing the City’s current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue
additional debt in the future. 178-183
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City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA
RATIO OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS DEBT OUTSTANDING
LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

Percentage of

Fiscal Year General Assessed Value Assessed Value
Ended Obligation of Taxable of Taxable Per
September 30, Bonds Property Property Population Capita

2014 $ 25995 $ 1,805,014 1.44% 66,586 $ 390
2015 25,597 1,948,801 1.31% 69,533 368
2016 25,597 2,138,310 1.20% 70,209 365
2017 24,606 2,316,514 1.06% 73,627 334
2018 24,083 2,608,633 0.92% 73,863 326
Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

The City issued General Obligation Bonds in FY 2014.
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City oFr HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Estimated
Percentage
Applicable Estimated
to share of
Debt City of Overlapping
Governmental Unit Outstanding Homestead Debt
OVERLAPPING:
School Board of Miami-Dade County (1) $ 980,501 2.66% 3) $ 26,081
Miami-Dade County (2) 1,828,451 2.66% 3) 48,637
Subtotal $ 2,808,952 $ 74718
DIRECT DEBT: (5)
General obligation bonds $ 24,083 100.00% 24,083
Revenue bonds 31,143 100.00% 31,143
Other long-term debt 22,009 100.00% 22,009
Special obligation bonds 600 100.00% 600
Equipment financing obligation 3,193 100.00% 3,193
Subtotal $ 81,028 $ 81,028
TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT $ 155,746

(1) Information obtained from Miami-Dade County School Board CAFR for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018.

(2) Information obtained from Miami-Dade County, Finance Department.

(3) The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated by dividing:
City of Homestead's population (April 1, 2018 estimate) ** 73,863
by Miami-Dade County's population (April 1, 2018 estimate) ** 2,779,322
Source : ** Office of Economic and Demographic Research

(4) City of Homestead CAFR for fiscal year ending September 30, 2018.

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with geographic boundaries of the City.
This schedule estimates that portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne
by the property taxpayers of the City of Homestead. This process recognizes that, when considering the
government's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the property
taxpayers should be taken into account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayers is a resident,
and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping government.
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City oFr HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA
PLEDGED-REVENUE BOND COVERAGE FOR BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)
Net
Revenue Coverage by
Less: Available Net Revenue
Gross Operating for Available

Fiscal Revenue Expenses Debt Debt Service for
Year 1) 2) Service Principal Interest Total Debt Service
2009 $§ 56,675 § 46,732 $ 9,943 $ 467 $§ 251 § 718 13.85
2010 56,421 51,885 4,536 486 232 718 6.32
2011 58,189 53,545 4,644 505 212 717 6.48
2012 56,838 53,293 3,545 525 193 718 4.94
2013 60,032 54,669 5,363 548 169 717 7.48
2014 59,808 57,826 1,982 570 147 717 2.76
2015 62,616 57,116 5,500 592 124 716 7.68
2016 63,892 58,951 4,941 773 101 874 5.65
2017 62,092 60,601 1,491 645 77 722 2.07
2018 64,079 60,608 3,471 495 60 555 6.25

(1) Gross revenue - all operating and non-operating revenue sources
(2) Operating expenses - total operating expenses exclusive of depreciation, amortization and operating transfers
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City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

PLEDGED-REVENUE BOND COVERAGE FOR GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
HERO TAX INCREMENT REVENUE BONDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)
Fiscal Year Debt Service
Ended TIF Requirement
September 30, revenue Principal Interest Total Coverage

2009 $ 4212 $ 284 $ 180 §$ 464 9.08
2010 4,142 284 164 448 9.25
2011 3,018 284 132 416 7.25
2012 2,400 284 119 403 5.96
2013 2,325 284 105 389 5.98
2014 1,792 284 89 373 4.80
2015 1,819 284 78 362 5.02
2016 2,076 284 53 337 6.16
2017 2,278 284 52 336 6.78
2018 2,479 284 37 321 7.72
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City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

PLEDGED-REVENUE BOND COVERAGE FOR GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Fiscal Year
Ended

September 30,

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

TAXABLE SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

Debt Service

Lease Requirement

revenue Principal Interest Total Coverage
2,165 $ 1,110 $ 368 $ 1,478 1.46
2,165 1,110 328 1,438 1.51
2,165 1,110 288 1,398 1.55
2,165 1,110 247 1,357 1.60
2,165 1,110 207 1,317 1.64
2,165 1,110 154 1,264 1.71
2,165 1,110 113 1,223 1.77
1,291 1,110 69 1,179 1.09
1,000 550 45 595 1.68
1,000 550 25 575 1.74
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Demographic and Economic Information Page

The information presented in this section is intended to assist users in understanding the
socioeconomic environment within which the City operates. 184-185
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City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
O]
Personal (4)
2) 2) Income Per
General Per General Per (Thousands Capita 3)
(1) Fund Capita Fund Capita of Personal Unemployment
Year Population Budget * Budget Actual * Actual Dollars) Income ** Rate
2009 57,617 $ 42255436 $§ 733 $§ 37,756,086 $ 655 N/A N/A 9.3%
2010 60,512 40,239,687 665 37,050,157 612 $ 897,635 § 14,834 10.1%
2011 61,503 35,095,321 571 34,443,325 560 988,353 16,070 8.9%
2012 63,290 37,161,276 587 35,615,503 563 890,490 14,070 8.0%
2013 64,444 39,237,145 609 37,346,134 580 1,128,414 17,510 7.5%
2014 66,586 41,593,600 625 40,890,733 614 1,014,305 15,233 6.5%
2015 69,533 45,153,064 628 44,290,837 616 1,198,123 17,231 6.5%
2016 70,209 49,427,679 704 47,827,570 681 1,225,709 17,458 5.8%
2017 73,627 52,844,703 718 54,622,724 742 1,285,086 17,454 6.1%
2018 73,863 68,706,210 930 54,678,618 740 1,285,586 17,405 4.1%
Sources: (1) Office of Economic and Demographic Research

(2) City of Homestead CAFR for fiscal years ending September 30, 2009 through September 30, 2018.
(3) US. Bureau of Labor Statistics (as of September 30, 2018).
(4) U.S. Census Bureau

Note : *  Numbers have been corrected to include transfers.
**  Per capita income in past 12 months (in 2017 Dollars). Per capita income for City of Homestead is not available prior to 2010.
Data used in prior CAFR were for Miami-Dade County.
N/A - Not available.
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City oF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT AND NINE YEARS AGO

2018 2009
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total
City City

Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment

Homestead Hospital 1,310 1 4.20% 1,211 1 7.08%
Homestead, City of 479 2 1.54% 425 2 2.48%
Publix Supermarkets 482 3 1.55% 325 3 1.90%
Homestead Manor 268 4 0.86% N/A N/A N/A
Keys Gate Charter 260 5 0.83% N/A N/A N/A
Somerset Academy SoHo 232 6 0.74% N/A N/A N/A
Contender Boats 201 7 0.64% N/A N/A N/A
Signature Health Care 170 8 0.55% 170 5 0.99%
BJ's Wholesale Club 126 9 0.40% 173 4 1.01%
Sedano's Supermarket 125 10 0.40% 140 7 0.82%
Kohl's Department Store 112 12 0.36% 112 8 0.63%
Waterstone Charter School 112 14 0.36% N/A N/A N/A
Walgreens 109 13 0.35% N/A N/A N/A
Lowes Homes Center, Inc 96 11 0.31% 102 10 0.60%
Olive Garden Restaurant 91 15 0.29% 165 6 0.96%
Homestead YMCA N/A N/A 105 9 0.61%
Armstrong Ford of Homestead N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Ruby Tuesday N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Chili's Grill & Bar N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Tropics North, Inc. N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Stock Building Supply of Florida N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Blake Chevrolet and Cadillac N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Place Gardens - North N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Family Resource Center-Krome Ave N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Everglades Preparatory N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
4,173 13.38% 2,928 17.08%

N/A - Not available
Source: City of Homestead Development Services Department
Bureau of Labor Statistics
Note: 2006 is the first year of collection of this data
Total labor force as of 9/30/2018 = 31,184
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Operating Information Page

The information presented in this section contains service and infrastructure data and is
intended to help the reader understand how the information in the City’s financial reports
relates to the services the City provides and the activities it performs. 186-188



| -l ]
_mmm

CITY OF
HOMESTEAD

(This page intentionally left blank)



-981-

yusunreda(q $92IN0S9Y UBWINY PBIISIWOH JO A1) :92IN0S

88¢ 08¢ LLE 8¢ 88¢ c6¢ 10t (4014 (4014 90v
0¢ 6v 0¢ 6v (% 6v (% (% 6v 0¢
8¢ 8¢ 8¢ 6¢C 143 143 ve ve 143 ve
14! (414 61 0S 0S 0S IS IS [5S IS
0¢SI Lyl 144! 144! [44! 8l 13! 13! €Sl Gel
0S Sl Sl Sl LT L1 LT LT L1 L1
9 9 S S S S S S ¢ S
1T C (44 9¢ 9¢ 9¢ 9¢ LT LT LT
0¢C 1T 0¢C 6l 61 6l 6l 61 6l 6l
0T 0T 0T I1 IT I1 IT IT I1 IT
L1 I 6 0l 01 Il Il I LT Il
[4 v 14 14 v € € € € 4

8 S L L L L L L L L

€ 4 € € € 14 4 4 14 v

6 6 Il 0l I Il Il I I Il
600C 0I0C T10C <CIOCT ¢€I0C ¥I0C  SIOC  910T L10T 810T

SAYVHA TVOSId NAL LSV

s3aLojdwy s -[Ing [®IOL
SaNIN[) dM9[H
QISeM PIOS
(107eMULIOIS “IOMISINBAN ‘SI0ONIS) SSIOAN O1[qnd
9901[0d
"SOAG JUIBJA] 29 UOIBOIODY ‘SyIed
S90INOSIY UeWNY
00IAI0S J1WOISN))
SIOIAIRG [BIQUAN)
ooueurj
S901A10G Juowdojoas(g
Aouagy juawdo[aAaapay Ajrunmo))
001} ,S13euRIN A1)
A1) A1)
[rouno) A1)

NOISIAIA/ININLIVdEA A9 SHHAOTdNA HNLL-T1Nd INHANNIAAOD ALID

VAo ‘avALSANOH 40 AL1D)



-L81-

vl Iyl A4 eyl eyl eyl epl cpl (24! b1
L L L L L [ [ [ I I
LS9 9¢L 708 ¥LOT S80°1 0r0‘1 0v0‘1 0r0‘1 0v0°1 62T'1
€l Gl Gl ¥4 zz v ¥ ¥ T ST
6v6°0T €SP°1T 182°CC 86L°1C 000°CT 10L°TT 980°€T €98°€T 1€0°6T SII°ST
L6'9 L9 166 V/IN L€ 0€'L 0Ty or'y 0¥ oLy
¥TT91 LES9T Y6191 68491 710°81 S06°81 88+°0C €60°1¢C 959°0T €1¢°Te
SSy 6v'¢ '8 V/IN 9IL'Y yIL or’s 0SS 009 08'S
SL161 YLV 61 9S€°61 LLE61 000°1¢ 796°1¢ L6S°€T 6S14¢ 696°€T S9t°ST
9L°LY 0€8°ct L68°9¢ 8TT'8E vT8°LE SYTIY 10¥°L¢E 6LELE 18T°LE ¥LE9E
L8Y 8¢ €6¢ 1454 86¢ ges LOY |£5% 65¢€ ¥€T
701°¢ $S9°C ¥20°¢ 12C°¢ 626 199°¢ 089°C [€'¢ L9Y'E €L0°C
600C 0T10C 110¢C 10T €10¢ v10C S10¢ 910C L10C 810¢
SYVHA TVISId NHL LSV'T

NVIDOUd/NOLLONNA A9 SHOLVIIANI ONLLVIIdO

VARIOT ‘QVALSINOH 40 ALL)

S|00Yds/pea1sawoy/eplio|}/310°S|00ydS1eals" MMM
juounreda(q s01AIS JuowdoaAd(q pedIsowoy Jo A1)
juounreda(q SaNIIN OO PEISIWOH Jo A1)
juounedo(q SO d1[qnd PeoISaWIoy Jo A1)
juouneda(q 901[04 PeAISOWOH JO A1) :S90INOS

JqE[leAY 10N - V/N

spaq juoned Jo ToquinN
srepdsoy jo raquunN
:syeydsoy
SI0JONIISUT JO JOqUINN
S[00Y[9S JO JoquUnN
:uoneonpy

JuowuIoA0s Arewid oy) ur papn[oul Jou SIOIAIIS PUE SANI[IO.,]

SIOWO0)SND JO JOqUINN
{WOISAS UONNQLNSIP O1II[F

(suored jo suorjjiu) uondwnsuod paj[iq A[rep 93eIoAY
SUOI)OQUUOD IITAIOS JO JOqUINN
RETIGIN

(suoyre3 jo suoryiu) uondwnsuod pa[[iq A[rep d3eIoAy
SUOI)OQUUOD IJTAIOS JO JOqUINN
RETY

9OIAIDS 10 S[[BD)
JSOIIE J[IUAN(
1So1IE JINpY
1901104



-881-

juountedo UONBAIOY pue S)Ied PeIISOWOH JO A1)

JuounIedo(q SoNI[IIN LA PedIsawoy Jo A1)

juounreda SYIOA O1[qnd PeIISOWOH JO A1)
juounteda 901]04 PeAISIWOH JO A1) :S90INOS

S S S S S S S S S S
61 61 61 61 61 6l 6l 6l 61 61
I61 l61 61 I161 161 161 cesel L6l €0¢ 60¢C
9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9
122! 122! Psl S¢Sl 9¢1 651 091 0L IL1 €LT
Ll Ll Ll Ll Ll L1 Ll L1 Ll LT
(4531 173! ¥S8°l LSS°1 098°1 €98°1 8L8°1 868°1 LO61 ceol
LT LT LT €LT YLT 9LT LLT 18¢ 8¢ ¥8¢
- - - - 4 4 4 4 4 %4
L L L L I I I I Il I
0¢C 61 Il I I Il Il Il Il I
4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
0l 0l 0l 0l 0l 0l 0l 0l 01 01l
9 L L €l €l €l €l €l el €l
¢8¢C SLT SLT SLT SLT SLT SLT SLT SLT SLT
vCl 14 14! 14 14 14 14 €€l 9¢l (44!
SOl <0l 01 (40! (40! 801 el el el el
[ [ [ [ [ [ [ [ [ I
600C 010¢ 110C ¢l10T £10¢ ¥10¢ S10¢ 910¢ L10T 810C
SAVHA TVOSId NHL LSV

IVIDOU/NOLLONNA A SOILSILV.LS LASSY TVLIdYO
VARIOT ‘VALSINOH 40 AL1D)

d[qe[reAy JoN - V/N

SUOTLISANS JO JOqUINN]
SI0PQJ UOHNQLISIP JO JOQUINN]
9IAIS JO SATIA

{W0)SAS uoNNQLISIP OLOA[

suo[es jo suorfqiur) Aroedeos Ajie
[1es J 1! ! ['ed
(sop1uu) I1omas Arejrues
110MOS

(suoyres jo suoryu) Ayoeded Ajreq
SJURIPAY 911,
(soqruu) surewr Ioje A\

RENJYY

[[eqio3oey
S)IN0O [[eqIOYseqg
SPIPY 11eqYOS/[[eqasey
SIOUAD AJunuIto))
3IN09 STUUD |,
spunoi3Ae|q
agearoy

1UOTIRAIOAI PUE SYIR]

(sop1u) s10anS
:syom o1qnd 1Yo

$1091JJ0 90170d UIOMS/SITUN [01EJ
uone)s
1001104



| -l ]
_mmm

CITY OF
HOMESTEAD

(This page intentionally left blank)



REPORTING SECTION




MARCUM

ACCOUNTANTS 4 ADVISORS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor, City Council, and City Manager
City of Homestead, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities,
business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Homestead, Florida (the City) as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements,
and have issued our report thereon dated June 7, 2019. Our report includes a reference to other
auditors who audited the financial statements of the Pension Trust Funds, as described in our report
on the City’s financial statements. This report does not include the results of the other auditors’
testing of internal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported
on separately by those auditors.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the City’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we
did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the City’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Marean LLP

Miami, FL
June 7, 2019
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MARCUM

ACCOUNTANTS 4 ADVISORS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
FEDERAL PROGRAM AND STATE PROJECT AND REPORT ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE
AND CHAPTER 10.550, RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL

To the Honorable Mayor, City Council, and City Manager
City of Homestead, Florida

Report on Compliance for each Major Federal Program and State Project

We have audited the City of Homestead’s (the City) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement and the requirements described in the
State of Florida Department of Financial Services’ State Projects Compliance Supplement, that
could have a direct and material effect on each of the City’s major federal programs and state
projects for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018. The City’s major federal programs and state
projects are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes and state statutes, regulations and the
terms and conditions of its federal awards and state projects applicable to its federal programs and
state projects.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the City’s major federal programs and
state projects based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance)
and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. Those standards, the Uniform Guidance and
Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program or state
project occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each of the
major federal programs and state projects. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination
of the City’s compliance.
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Opinion on the Major Programs

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred
to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal programs and state projects
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance which are required
to be reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the
Auditor General and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as items 2018-001 and 2018-002. Our opinion on the major programs is not
modified with respect to these matters.

The City’s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs and corrective action plan. The City’s
response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal
programs and state projects to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and state project and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s
internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore,
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We did not
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identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, we identified in our audit certain deficiencies in internal control over
compliance, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items
2018-001 and 2018-002 that we considered to be significant deficiencies.

The City’s response to the internal control over compliance findings are described in the
schedule of findings and questioned costs and corrective action plan. The City’s response was
not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and accordingly, we
express no opinion on the response.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the

requirements of the Uniform Guidance and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Morewn LLFP

Miami, FL
June 7, 2019
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CITY OF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

CFDA /
Federal/State Agency, Pass Through Entity CSFA Grant Provided to Total
Federal Program/State Project No. Identifying Number Sub recipients Expenditures
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Direct programs:
CDBG Entitlement Grants Cluster
Community Development Block Grant Neighborhood Stabilization Program 14.218 B-08-MN-12-0011 27,015
Community Development Block Grant 2012 Entitlement 14.218 B-12-MC-12-0055 47,659 47,659
Community Development Block Grant 2013 Entitlement 14.218 B-13-MC-12-0055 7,500 10,741
Community Development Block Grant 2014 Entitlement 14.218 B-14-MC-12-0055 43,783 43,783
Community Development Block Grant 2015 Entitlement 14.218 B-15-MC-12-0055 56,530 57,480
Community Development Block Grant 2016 Entitlement 14.218 B-16-MC-12-0055 199,912 199,912
Community Development Block Grant 2017 Entitlement 14.218 B-17-MC-12-0055 20,379 355,183
Total CDBG Entitlement Grants Cluster 375,763 741,773
CDBG Section 108 Loan Fund 14.248 B-15-MC-12-0055 -- 194,000
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development - 935,773
U.S. Department of Justice
Direct programs:
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 2016 16.738 2016-DJ-BX-1004 - 51,801
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 2017 16.738 2017-DJ-BX-0734 - 2,176
Total Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Programs -- 53,977
Office of Violence Against Women 16.590 2014-WE-AX-0022 - 14,399
Federal Equitable Sharing 16.922 N/A - 33,203
Subtotal Direct Programs - 101,579

Passed Through Florida Coalition Against Domestic Violence:

Violence Against Women Formula Grant 16.588 18-8017-LE-ENH - 57,809
Violence Against Women Formula Grant 16.588 19-8017-LE-ENH -- 18,744
Subtotal Violence Against Women pass through - 76,553

Passed Through State of Florida, Office of Attorney General:

Victims of Crime Act (VOCA) 16.575 2017-00304 -- 125,952
Total U.S. Department of Justice 375,763 304,084
U.S. Department of Treasury

Federal Equitable Sharing 21.016 N/A -- 380,531
U.S. Department of Energy

Resilient Electricity Delivery Infrastructure 81.122 DE-OE0000783 - 349,250
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency:

Congressional Earmarks 66.202 XP-96413705-0 - 760,152
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS $ 375,763 $ 2,729,790
Florida Department of State:

Division of Cultural Affairs, Cultural Facilities Grant, Seminole Theatre 45.014 17.9.200.560 - 492,979

Division of Cultural Affairs, General Program Support Grant, Seminole Theatre 45.061 18.c.ps.114.300 - 7,233

Division of Cultural Affairs, General Program Support Grant, Seminole Theatre 45.061 19.¢.ps.180.520 -- 2,665

Total Florida Department of State - 502,877
Florida Department of Transportation:

Florida Shared-Use Nonmotorized (SUN) Trail Network Program Grant 55.038 439899-1 - 69,750
Florida Department of Environmental Protection:

Florida Communities Trust (FCT), Florida Forever Program, Losner Park 37.078 16-007-UA17 - 332,181

Homestead Racetrack Water Tower Pump Station 37.039 LP13208 - 32,450

Total Florida Department of Environmental Protection - 364,631
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE $ - 8 937,258
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND

STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE $ 3,607,048

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance.

194



CITY OF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND
STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

NOTE 1 — BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance
(the schedule) includes the federal and state grant activity of the City of Homestead, Florida
(the City) under programs of the federal government and the State of Florida for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2018. Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance) and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. Because the schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of the City, it is not intended to and does not
present the financial position, changes in net position or cash flows of the City or used in the
preparation of the basic financial statements.

NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported in the schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following, as applicable, either the cost principles contained in
contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and the Florida
Single Audit Act, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as a
reimbursement, or the equitable sharing programs for Justice and Treasury which follow Guide
to Equitable Sharing for Foreign Countries and Federal, State and Local Law Enforcement
Agencies.

NOTE 3 - INDIRECT COST RATE
The City has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4 — OUTSTANDING LOANS WITH CONTINUING COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS
In accordance with Uniform Guidance requirements, loans outstanding at the beginning of the
year and loans made during the year are included in the federal expenditures presented in the
schedule. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Community Development

Block Grant — Section 108 Loan Guarantee for the cybrary project funded $194,000 during the
year. The outstanding loan balance was paid as of September 30, 2018.
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CITY OF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

PRIOR YEAR FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

SD 2017-001 — Financial Close Related to Bank Reconciliations was not repeated in the current
year.

SD 2017-002 — Financial Close Related to the Purchased Power Cost Adjustments Schedule was
not repeated in the current year.
PRIOR YEAR FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

SD 2018-001 (previously SD 2017-003) — Grant Policies and Procedures Manual was repeated in
the current year.

SD 2018-002 (previously SD 2017-004) — Sub-Recipient Monitoring was repeated in the current
year.

SD 2017-005 — Executed Contracts was not repeated in the current year.

SD 2017-006 — Reporting was not repeated in the current year.
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CITY OF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

SECTION I — SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS
Financial Statements

Type of auditors’ report issued on whether the financial
statements audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP: Unmodified Opinion
Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified Yes X  None reported
Non-compliance material to financial statements noted? Yes X No

Federal Awards and State Projects

Internal control over major federal programs and state projects:
Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? X  Yes

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major
federal programs and state projects: Unmodified Opinion
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a) and Chapter

10.557, Rules of the Auditor General? X  Yes No
Identification of major programs:
Federal Program/Cluster CFDA No.
CDBG Entitlement Grants Cluster 14218
Congressionally Mandated Projects 66.202
State Projects CSFA No.
Cultural Facilities Grant 45.014
Florida Communities Trust Projects 37.708

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B Federal programs and State projects: Federal  $750,000

State $281,177

Auditee qualified as low risk auditee for Federal awards? X Yes No
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CITY OF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

SECTION II — FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None.

SECTION III- FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES

SD 2018-001 (previously reported as SD 2017-003) - Grants Policies and Procedures
Manual

CFDA # 14.218 CDBG Entitlement Grants Cluster

Condition

The City has a grants policies and procedures manual approved by resolution on December
14, 2011. There have been changes to various policies and procedures which have not been
reflected in the City’s policies and procedures manual.

Criteria

As part of a sound system of internal control, it is important that policies and procedures
approved by those charged with governance are followed or updated for changes in
practices of the City.

Cause of Condition

The grants policies and procedures manual was approved starting in fiscal 2012 but has not
been updated for changes considered necessary by City staff and management regarding the
administration of grants awarded to the City.

Effect

Staff may be unaware of what is required to be performed to ensure in compliance with
grant requirements as designated by those charged with governance, which could impact
subsequent funding.

Recommendation

Marcum recommends that management review and update the grants policies and
procedures manual to ensure policies and procedures are in compliance with current grant
requirements and the requirements as designated by those charged with governance, which
could impact subsequent funding.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions
See accompanying corrective action plan.
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CITY OF HOMESTEAD, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

SECTION III- FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES (CONTINUED)
SD 2018-002 (previously reported as SD 2017-004) - Sub-recipient Monitoring
CFDA # 14.218 CDBG Entitlement Grants Cluster

Condition

During our review of the internal control processes over the major program, it was noted
that although an initial risk assessment is performed regarding the granting of federal
awards to sub-recipients, the subsequent monitoring is not specifically designed or
performed based on the differences in risk assessments per sub-recipient.

Criteria

Under the Uniform Guidance, a grantor is required to perform an initial risk assessment to
ensure the grantor is able to meet the national objective of the program and design
monitoring based on the specific risk assessment.

Cause of Condition
Monitoring has been performed annually but not based on specific risk assessments per
sub-recipient which is considered a necessary part of a sound system of internal control.

Effect

With infrequent monitoring, and monitoring not being based on specific risk assessments,
the sub-recipient could not be meeting the national objective of the program, which could
affect subsequent funding.

Recommendation

Marcum recommends the City enhance internal controls over the risk assessment process
based on each sub-recipient and ensure appropriate monitoring is performed.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions
See accompanying corrective action plan.
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MANAGEMENT LETTER IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE RULES OF THE
AUDITOR GENERAL OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

To the Honorable Mayor, City Council, and City Manager
City of Homestead, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Homestead, Florida (the City) as of and for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, and have issued our report thereon dated June 7, 2019.
We did not audit the financial statements of the Pension Trust Funds, which represent 89%, 94%,
and 39%, respectively, of the assets, net position/fund balance and revenues/additions of the
aggregate remaining fund information.

Auditors’ Responsibility

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements of Title
2 U.S. Code of Federal Requirements Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance); and Chapter 10.550,
Rules of the Auditor General.

Other Reporting Requirements

We have issued our Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
and Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards; Independent Auditors” Report on Compliance
for Each Major Federal Program and State Project and Report on Internal Control over
Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor
General; Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs; Summary Schedule of Prior Audit
Findings and Independent Accountants’ Report on an examination conducted in accordance with
AICPA Professional Standards, AT-C Section 315, regarding compliance requirements in
accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. Disclosures in those reports and
schedules, which are dated June 7, 2019, should be considered in conjunction with this
management letter.

Prior Audit Findings
Section 10.554(1)(1)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not
corrective actions have been taken to address findings made in the preceding annual financial audit

report. The status of recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit report have
been addressed in the summary schedule of prior audit findings.

200



Official Title and Legal Authority

Section 10.554(1)(1)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and
legal authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be
disclosed in this management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. This
information is disclosed in Note 1 to the financial statements.

Financial Condition and Management

Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.a. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply
appropriate procedures and communicate the results of our determination as to whether or not the
City has met one or more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and
to identify the specific condition(s) met. In connection with our audit, we determined that the City
did not meet any of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes.

Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1)(1)5.b. and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied
financial condition assessment procedures for the City. It is management’s responsibility to
monitor the City’s financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on
representations made by management and review of financial information provided by same. Our
assessment was performed as of the fiscal year end.

Section 10.554(1)(1)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate any
recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not have
any such recommendations.

Special District Component Unit

Section 10.554(1)(1)5.c., Rules of the Auditor General, requires, if appropriate, that we
communicate the failure of a special district that is a component unit of a county, municipality, or
special district, to provide the financial information necessary for proper reporting of the
component unit, within the audited financial statements of the county, municipality, or special
district in accordance with Section 218.39(3)(b), Florida Statutes. In connection with our audit, we
did not note any special district component unit that failed to provide the necessary information for
proper reporting in accordance with Section 218.39(3)(b), Florida Statutes.

Additional Matters

Section 10.554(1)(1)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate noncompliance
with provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have
occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but which
warrants the attention of those charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did not
note any such findings.
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Purpose of this Letter

Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida
Auditor General, Federal and other granting agencies, City Council, and applicable management, and
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Morew LLF

Miami, FL
June 7, 2019
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MARCUM

ACCOUNTANTS 4 ADVISORS

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE PURSUANT TO
SECTION 218.415 FLORIDA STATUTES

To the Honorable Mayor, City Council, and City Manager
City of Homestead, Florida

We have examined the City of Homestead's (the City) compliance with Section 218.415 Florida
Statutes, Local Government Investment Policies for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018.
Management of the City is responsible for the City's compliance with the specified requirements.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's compliance based on our examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the examination to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the City complied, in all
material respects, with the specified requirements referenced above. An examination involves
performing procedures to obtain evidence about whether the City complied with the specified
requirements. The nature, timing, and extent of the procedures selected depend on our
judgement, including an assessment of the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud
or error. We believe that the evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the City's compliance with the
specified requirements.

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with Section 218.415 Florida Statutes
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018.

This report is intended solely to describe our testing of compliance with Section 218.415, Florida
Statutes, and it is not suitable for any other purpose.

Mareun LLP

Miami, FL
June 7, 2019

MARCUMGROUP
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CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
June 7, 2019

The City of Homestead respectfully submits the following corrective
action plan for the year ended September 30, 2018.

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN

Cay Couree 2CFR § 200.511(c)
Stephen R. Shelley
Mayor

Jon A. Burgess FINDINGS-FEDERAL AWARDS AUDITS
Vice Mayor

CFDA #14.218 CDBG Entitlement Grants Cluster

Jenifer N. Bailey
Councilwoman

SD 2018-001 (previously reported as SD 2017-003) - Grants Policies and
Procedures Manual
Management agrees with the recommendation and stated the 2012 CDBG

Patricia Fairclough
Councilwoman

Juclio Gg}zman Program Manual will be reviewed and updated to ensure its compliances
ounciman . . .
with grantor and governance requirements. Due to staff turnover, this was
Elvis R. Maldonado not accomplished as planned during 2018.
Councilman

Larry Roth Anticipated Completion Date: August 2019

Councilman Person(s) Responsible:
Chantel Pierre Michelange Jeudine
George Grewsas Accounting Manager Accountant II
City Manager Lt e G ; . s
cpierre(@cityothomestead.com mjeudine@cityothomestead.com
305-224-4545 305-224-4555

SD 2018-002 (previously reported as SD 2017-004) Sub-recipient

100 Civic Court Monitoring
Homestead, FL 33030
305-224-4400 Management agrees with the recommendation and will review the processes
www.cityofhomestead.com per specific sub-recipients. However, due to the Finance Department’s

limited resources, the objective when monitoring sub-recipients of the
public services grants was to make at least one site visit during the
program’s timeframe (usually a three to four month period). No monies are
reimbursed unless proper documentation is received and reviewed by staff.
The documentation includes expenditure support, a report on program
activities, and proof of program participant’s eligibility. An informal risk
assessment of the sub-recipient is made at the time of the grant application
review. The public facility grant sub-recipients are deemed to be little or
no risk due to the nature of the grant. In the future, sub-recipients
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determined to be riskier than others may be selected for additional site visits. Due to staff turnover,
a formal risk assessment process was not developed as planned during FY 2018

Anticipated Completion Date: August 2019
Person(s) Responsible:

Chante] Pierre Michelange Jeudine
Accounting Manager Accountant ]I
cpierre(@cityothomestead.com mjeudine@cityothomestead.com
305-224-4545 305-224-4555
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